
 
 
 
PO Box 159 
242 Fredonia Avenue 
Fredonia, Wi 53021 

 

  
 

 
 
Administrator: Christophe Jenkins 
admin@fredoniawi.gov  
 
Clerk: Michelle T. Johnson 
clerk@fredoniawi.gov  
 
Treasurer: Melissa Depies 
treasurer@fredoniawi.gov 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

FREDONIA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  
MONDAY, May 6th, 2024 - 7:00 P.M. 

Fredonia Government Center – Village Board Room 
242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin 

 
THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS WILL BE BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

FOR INITIATION, DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION, DELIBERATION AND 
 POSSIBLE FORMAL ACTION 

 
 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Consent Agenda: 
 

a) Approve Minutes from the Monday, April 8th, 2024, Planning Commission 
Meeting 

 
 

4. Zoning Code Change: 
 

a) A Public Hearing at 7:00 PM to Hear Public Comment on and Reaction to a 
Proposed Change to Chapter 306: Flood Plain Management of the Village’s 
Code of Ordinances. 
 

b) Motion To Close Public Hearing. 
 
 

c) Discussion and Possible Recommendation to the Village Board of Trustees 
on the Proposed Change to Chapter 306: Flood Plain Management of the 
Village’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
  

5. Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 

a) Discussion and Possible Recommendation to the Village Board of Trustees 
on CSM# 2024-02:  
 

   Applicant: Village of Fredonia 
 
   Agent: Strand Engineering 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Moments Here 

mailto:admin@fredoniawi.gov
mailto:clerk@fredoniawi.gov
mailto:treasurer@fredoniawi.gov


6. Action to Set a Public Hearing:

a) Discussion and Possible Action to Set a Public Hearing to Hear Public
Comment on and Reaction to the Proposed Rezoning the Southern Portion
of Parcel # 090351300400 from M-1 Limited Manufacturing District to B-2
Community Business District.

Applicant: Village of Fredonia 

Agent: Strand Engineering 

7. Items for Action and/or Discussion:

a) Motion to Approve Site Plan for Port Washington State Bank, Located at 
201 Regal Dr, Fredonia WI, 53021.

b) Motion to Approve Commercial Fence Permit Application Located at 441 
Fredonia Ave, Fredonia, WI 53021.

8. Items for Future Consideration:

9. Adjourn 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a majority of the Fredonia Village Board may attend this 
meeting in order to gather information about a subject over which they have decision-
making responsibility. 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to 
request this service, contact the Village Clerk at 262-692-9125. 

Village of Fredonia is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Topic: Planning Commission 
Time: May 6, 2024 07:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87288695713 

Meeting ID: 872 8869 5713 

--- 

One tap mobile 

+19292056099,,87288695713# US (New York)
+13017158592,,87288695713# US (Washington DC)



 
 
 
PO Box 159 
242 Fredonia Avenue 
Fredonia, Wi 53021 

 

  
 

 
 
Administrator: Christophe Jenkins 
admin@fredoniawi.gov  
 
Clerk: Michelle T. Johnson 
clerk@fredoniawi.gov  
 
Treasurer: Melissa Depies 
treasurer@fredoniawi.gov 
 

 

 

 
FREDONIA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, April 8th, 2024 - 7:00 P.M. 
Fredonia Government Center – Village Board Room 

242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin 
 
 

1. Chairman Gehrke called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
Commissioners present: Chairman Gehrke, Commissioner Dohrwardt, 
Commissioner Buvid, Commissioner Jaques. 
Commissioners excused: Commissioner Weiland, Commissioner Bretl 
Commissioners absent: Commissioner Wellskopf 
 

2. Consent Agenda: 
 

a) Motion to Approve Minutes from the Monday, March 4th, 2024, 
Planning Commission Meeting made by Commissioner Dohrwardt. 
Seconded by Commissioner Buvid. 
Passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 
 

3. Zoning Change: 
 

a) A Public Hearing at 7:00 PM to Hear Public Comment on and Reaction 
to the Proposed Rezoning of Portion of Parcel Number 090500122051 
from A-1 General Agricultural/Holding District to I-1 Institutional. 
 

   Applicant: St. John’s Lutheran Church 
 
   Agent: Same 
 
Tom Paulus explained that the church wished to expand the existing cemetery. 
 

b) Motion To Close Public Hearing made by Commissioner Dohrwardt 
Seconded by Commissioner Jaques. 
Passed by 4-0 vote. 
 

c) Discussion and Possible Recommendation to the Village Board of 
Trustees for the Rezoning of a Portion of Parcel Number 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Moments Here 

mailto:admin@fredoniawi.gov
mailto:clerk@fredoniawi.gov
mailto:treasurer@fredoniawi.gov


 

090500122051 from A-1 General Agricultural/Holding District to I-1 
Institutional. 
 

   Applicant: St. John’s Lutheran Church 
 
   Agent: Same 
 
No discussion was had.  
 
Motion to Recommend Approval to the Village Board of Trustees for the Rezoning 
of a Portion of Parcel Number 090500122051 from A-1 General 
Agricultural/Holding District to I-1 Institutional made by Commissioner Dohrwardt. 
Seconded by Commissioner Buvid. 
Passed by 4-0 voice vote. 
 

4. Action to Set a Public Hearing: 
 

a) Discussion and Possible Action to Set a Public Hearing to Hear Public 
Comment on and Reaction to a Proposed Change to Chapter 306: 
Flood Plain Management of the Village’s Code of Ordinances. 
 

 Administrator Jenkins said this update to Chapter 306 is a federal and state 
requirement. The Village’s flood plain ordinance has not been updated since 2008, and 
significant changes to maps and state and federal requirements obligate the Village to 
act. He shared that the DNR drafted the ordinance before the commission tonight, that 
the specific language must be adopted, except for one policy question regarding non-
conforming structures in the flood plain. He asked: does the commission wish to see 
existing nonconforming structures built in a flood plain that are destroyed be rebuilt as 
either conforming or nonconforming. His recommendation is to allow residents to build 
back to conforming standards, which will hopefully lead to fewer buildings being 
destroyed by floods.  Commissioner Dohrwardt felt that this update is housekeeping. He 
shared that there were items that give the Village discretion on how to apply the 
ordinance within the jurisdiction.  He said the ordinance suggests that structures in the 
flood plain can be rebuilt to modern standards and then would stand up to floods much 
better. He would be in favor of this equitable way to handle rebuilding. Chairman 
Gehrke agreed.  

 
Motion to Set a Public Hearing on Monday, May 6th, 2024, at 7:00PM to Hear Public 
Comment on and Reaction to a Proposed Change to Chapter 306: Flood Plain 
Management in the Village’s Code of Ordinances made by Commissioner 
Dohrwardt. 
Seconded by Commissioner Jaques. 
Passed by a 4-0 voice vote. 
 

5. Continued Review of Existing Sign Ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Gehrke ran through Clerk Johnson’s research regarding electronic signs. 
Administrator Jenkins highlighted that the current sign ordinance that had been provided 
was the totality of the ordinance, despite confusion at the previous meeting. He said that 



 

this ordinance was common across like municipalities. He asked the Commission to 
consider whether the existing ordinance is sufficient, or, if they wanted to see changes, 
to provide staff with key takeaways so they can draft an ordinance. Commissioner 
Dohrwardt shared that he has realized LED signs are a new incarnation of signs. He felt 
that trying to fit LED signs within the descriptions in the current ordinance might be 
confusing and restricting to regular signs. He suggested a separate section within the 
sign ordinance that addressed LED signs specifically. He asked that staff make sure to 
include that LED signs are not to be aimed facing a residential area and that most 
instances should require a two-sided sign perpendicular to the road so as not to shine 
into business windows. Commissioner Jaques expressed concern about light pollution 
and agreed with Commissioner Dohrwardt on making an addition instead of muddying 
up the current ordinance. Commissioner Buvid said that grouping signs utilizing 
uplighting and light bulbs with LED signs doesn’t make sense. Chairman Gehrke stated 
that he doesn’t want an ordinance to micromanage every situation in the Village, but in 
this instance, he wouldn’t object to creating an ordinance. Commissioner Dohrwardt 
moved that this topic be referred to staff to draft an ordinance relating to electronic 
signs. Chairman Gehrke asked staff to have an ordinance prepared for the next 
meeting. 
 

6. Items for Future Consideration:  Chairman Gehrke reminded the commission that 
there is a lot of work coming before this body in the future. He added that Dan 
Wellskopf decided to step down and asked for suggestions to replace him. 

 
7. Motion to Adjourn made by Commissioner Jaques. 

Seconded by Commissioner Buvid. 
Passed by a 4-0 voice vote. 

.               
Meeting adjourned at 7:23PM. 



Affidavit of Publication 

STATE OF WISCONSIN } 
Ozaukee County 

ss 

(Apr. 18, 25, 2024) 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR ZONING CODE CHANGE 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
242 FREDONIA AVENUE 

MONDAY, May 6th, 2024 - 7:00PM 

PUBLIC ~OTICE IS ~EREBY GIVEN that the Plannin 
Comm1~s1on of the Village of Fredonia will hold a pu~ 
he heanng f(!r the purpose of hearing public comment 
on and_ r~actIon to a prol)osed change in the Village of 
Fredoma_s flood plain ordinance and map revisions that 
are required by state and federal law. The proposed 
changes govern development in mapped flood plain ar
eas: The proposed ordinance and map revisions are on 
file in th~ office of th_e Village Clerk and will be available 
for viewing for a_ penod of two weeks prior to the sched
uled pubhc heanng. 

Followi_ng_ said hearing and after consideration of the Plan 
Comm1ss1on re~mmendation, the Village Board will then 
take formal action on the proposed ordinance change at 
the May 16th, 2024 and June 6th, 2024 meetings. 

lnter~sted citizens are encouraged to attend the public 
hearin~ on Monday, May 6th, 2024, at 7:00PM at the 
Fredonia Government Center Board Room, 242 Fredo
ma Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin. Further information 
about these matters may be obtained by contacting the 
clerk of the Village of Fredonia. 

By: 
Michelle T. Johnson 
Village Clerk 

Sent To: 

FOR: Fredonia Plan Commission 

Plan Commission Village Administration 

WNAXLP 

William F. Schanen IV, being duly sworn, says that he is the 

president of Port Publications, Inc., publishers of the Ozaukee 

Press, a public newspaper of general circulation, printed 
.. . 

and published in ·the city of Port Washington and county of 

Ozaukee, Wisc_onsin; that a notice, of which the printed one 

hereto attached is a true copy, was published in the Ozaukee 

Press once each week for __ l) __ weeks · successively; 

that the first publication thereof was on the Jgfh day 

of Aft:l/,l. A.D. 20 Ill/: , and that the last publication 

thereof was on the Jr6fhday of /tffl'tl A.D. 20_.lJ!l_. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this V~y of 

°'{)l--A.D..-20 ~ V\ 
-c:::::: --> :s ==..:::::::_ -----

Notary Public, Ozaukee co:0-isconsin. 

My commission expires ct ) J --r-}J...Jt 



Request for Commission Consideration 
Item Description: Flood Plain Ordinance 
Report Prepared By: Michelle T. Johnson 
Report Date: 03/27/2024 Meeting Date:  04/08/2024 
Strategic Priority? 

o Smart Residential, Industrial, or Commercial Growth
o Responsible Fiscal Priority
o Supports Public Safety and Infrastructure
o Encourages Open Communication and Collaboration
o Strong Sense of Community

Fiscal Summary: N/A 
Budget Line Item: N/A 
Wisconsin Statute or Local Ordinance: Chapter 306 of Village Ordinances 
Background Analysis:   
This update is required by FEMA at the federal level due to new mapping information or 
technology.  The regulatory floodplain maps the Village uses are in the process of being updated 
and remapped so the Village will need to update the ordinance to reflect the new maps.  This is 
also the time to update the rest of the ordinance text.  The last updated ordinance approved by the 
state is from 2008…. there have been significant changes to the minimum requirements in 
floodplain zoning for both state and federal regulations since 2008 so this is the opportunity to 
update not only the “Official Maps” section but also the other ordinance elements so that the 
Village’s ordinance complies with state and federal requirements. 
Communities that fail to enact the necessary flood plain management regulations will be suspended 
from the National Flood Insurance Program immediately.  

Staff Comments:  
This ordinance was drafted by the DNR, reviewed for formatting and editorial changes by Clerk 
Johnson, then on to Administrator Jenkins for content analysis, sent to Attorney Woodward for legal 
review, and then back to the DNR for a final review.  

Administrator’s Recommendation:  Approve 
Action Requested:  Motion to Set a Public Hearing to Hear Public Comment on and Reaction to a 
Proposed Change to Chapter 306: Flood Plain Management of the Village’s Code of Ordinances.  

Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 2024-02 Flood Plain Management

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Moments Here 

I 

• 



1 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-02 
FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE FOR VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 

 
Effective June 6th, 2024 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Optional if helpful:  Adoption schedule tracking 
1. Date of Public Hearing: May 6th, 2024  

a. (Requires a Class 2 Hearing Notice of Publication or Posting) 
2. Date of Adoption: June 6th, 2024 
3. Dates of Publication or Posting: April 18th, 2024 and April 25th, 2024 

a. (Second/last date must be at least 7 days before hearing, see definition, Ch 985 Stats) 
4. Date of Publication or Posting of Notice of Enacted Ordinance: 

a. June 13th, 2024 

  



2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE, TITLE, 
AND GENERAL PROVISIONS .................................................................................................................... 4 
1.1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.......................................................................................................... 4 
1.2 FINDING OF FACT ................................................................................................................................. 4 
1.3 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE ................................................................................................................... 4 
1.4 TITLE ........................................................................................................................................................ 4 
1.5 GENERAL PROVISIONS ........................................................................................................................ 4 

(1) AREAS TO BE REGULATED ................................................................................................... 4 
(2) OFFICIAL MAPS & REVISIONS ............................................................................................. 4 
(3) ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN ZONING DISTRICTS ............................................... 5 
(4) LOCATING FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES ............................................................................ 5 
(5) REMOVAL OF LANDS FROM FLOODPLAIN ....................................................................... 5 
(6) COMPLIANCE ........................................................................................................................... 6 
(7) MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED ................................................. 6 
(8) ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS ................................................................. 6 
(9) INTERPRETATION .......................................................................................................... 7 
(10) WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY ........................................................... 7 
(11) SEVERABILITY ................................................................................................................ 7 
(12) ANNEXED AREAS FOR CITIES AND VILLAGES ....................................................... 7 

2.0 GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS ............................................... 7 
2.1 HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC ANALYSES ................................................................................. 8 
2.2 WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS ......................................................................................................... 8 
2.3 CHAPTER 30, 31, WIS. STATS., DEVELOPMENT ...................................................................... 8 
2.4 PUBLIC OR PRIVATE CAMPGROUNDS ..................................................................................... 8 

3.0 FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW).................................................................................................................... 10 
3.1 APPLICABILITY ................................................................................................................................... 10 
3.2 PERMITTED USES ....................................................................................................................... 10 
3.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODWAY ............................................................ 11 
3.4 PROHIBITED USES .............................................................................................................................. 13 

4.0 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF) ................................................................................................................ 13 
4.1 APPLICABILITY ........................................................................................................................... 13 
4.2 PERMITTED USES ....................................................................................................................... 13 
4.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODFRINGE ....................................................... 14 

5.0 OTHER FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS ................................................................................................................... 16 
5.1 GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP)....................................................................................... 16 

6.0 NONCONFORMING USES AND STRUCTURES ..................................................................................... 17 
6.1 GENERAL ...................................................................................................................................... 17 
6.2 FLOODWAY DISTRICT ............................................................................................................... 20 
6.3 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT .......................................................................................................... 20 
6.4 NONCONFORMING BUILDING DESTROYED BY NON-FLOOD DISASTER ...................... 21 



3 

7.0 ADMINISTRATION ............................................................................................................................................. 21 
7.1 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR ....................................................................................................... 21 
7.2 ZONING AGENCY ................................................................................................................................ 26 
7.3 BOARD OF APPEALS .................................................................................................................. 27 
7.4 TO REVIEW APPEALS OF PERMIT DENIALS ................................................................................. 29 
7.5 FLOODPROOFING STANDARDS............................................................................................... 30 
7.6 PUBLIC INFORMATION ............................................................................................................. 31 

8.0 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................... 31 
8.1 GENERAL ...................................................................................................................................... 31 

9.0 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES .......................................................................................................... 32 

10.0 DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................................................. 32 



4 
 

1.0 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE, TITLE, AND 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1.1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION 
This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization in s. 61.35 and 62.23, for villages and cities; and 
the requirements in s. 87.30, Stats. 

1.2 FINDING OF FACT 
Uncontrolled development and use of the floodplains and rivers of this municipality would impair the 
public health, safety, convenience, general welfare, and tax base. 

1.3 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
This ordinance is intended to regulate floodplain development to: 

(1) Protect life, health and property; 
(2) Minimize expenditures of public funds for flood control projects; 
(3) Minimize rescue and relief efforts undertaken at the expense of the taxpayers; 
(4) Minimize business interruptions and other economic disruptions; 
(5) Minimize damage to public facilities in the floodplain; 
(6) Minimize the occurrence of future flood blight areas in the floodplain; 
(7) Discourage the victimization of unwary land and homebuyers; 
(8) Prevent increases in flood heights that could increase flood damage and result in conflicts 

between property owners; and 
(9) Discourage development in a floodplain if there is any practicable alternative to locate the activity, 

use or structure outside of the floodplain. 

1.4 TITLE 
This ordinance shall be known as the Floodplain Zoning Ordinance for Village of Fredonia, Wisconsin. 

1.5 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 (1) AREAS TO BE REGULATED 

This ordinance regulates all areas of special flood hazard identified as zones A, AO, AH, A1-30, 
or AE on the Flood Insurance Rate Map.  Additional areas identified on maps approved by the 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and local community may also be regulated under the 
provisions of this ordinance, where applicable. 

 

(2) OFFICIAL MAPS & REVISIONS 
Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) are designated as zones A, A1-30, AE, AH, or AO on the 
Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) based on flood hazard analyses summarized in the Flood 
Insurance Study (FIS) listed in subd. (a) below.  Additional flood hazard areas subject to 
regulation under this ordinance are identified on maps based on studies approved by the DNR 
and listed in subd. (b) below.  These maps and revisions are on file in the office of the Village 
Administrator/Zoning Administrator at the Village Hall, (Village of Fredonia).   

 
(a) OFFICIAL MAPS: Based on the Flood Insurance Study (FIS): 

1. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), panel numbers 55089C0101G, 
55089C0102G, 55089C0103G, 55089C0104G, and 55089C0106G dated 
07/31/2024; 
 

2. Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for Ozaukee County, 55089CV001B, 
55089CV002B, and 55089CV003B, dated 07/31/2024. 

 
Approved by:  The DNR and FEMA 



5 
 

(b) OFFICIAL MAPS:  Based on other studies.  Any maps referenced in this section must be 
approved by the DNR and be more restrictive than those based on the FIS at the site of 
the proposed development. 

(3) ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN ZONING DISTRICTS 
The flood hazard areas regulated by this ordinance are divided into districts as follows: 

 
a) The Floodway District (FW), is the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the 

floodplain adjoining the channel required to carry the regional floodwaters, within AE Zones 
as shown on the FIRM, or within A Zones shown on the FIRM when determined according 
to s. 5.1(5).  

 
b) The Floodfringe District (FF) is that portion of a riverine special flood hazard area outside 

the floodway within AE Zones on the FIRM, or, when floodway limits have been determined 
according to s. 5.1(5), within A Zones shown on the FIRM. 

 
c) The General Floodplain District (GFP) is those riverine areas that may be covered by 

floodwater during the regional flood in which a floodway boundary has not been delineated 
on the FIRM and also includes shallow flooding areas identified as AH and AO zones on 
the FIRM.   

 
(4) LOCATING FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES 

Discrepancies between the exterior boundaries of zones A1-30, AE, AH, or A on the official 
floodplain zoning map and actual field conditions may be resolved using the criteria in subd (a) 
or (b) below. If a significant difference exists, the map shall be amended according to s. 8.0 
Amendments.  The zoning administrator can rely on a boundary derived from a profile elevation 
to grant or deny a land use permit, whether or not a map amendment is required.  The zoning 
administrator shall be responsible for documenting actual pre-development field conditions and 
the basis upon which the district boundary was determined. Disputes between the zoning 
administrator and an applicant over the district boundary line shall be settled according to s. 
7.3(3) and the criteria in (a) and (b) below.  Where the flood profiles are based on established 
base flood elevations from a FIRM, FEMA must approve any map amendment or revision 
pursuant to s. 8.0 Amendments. 

a) If flood profiles exist, the map scale and the profile elevations shall determine the district 
boundary.  The regional or base flood elevations shall govern if there are any 
discrepancies. 

 
b) Where flood profiles do not exist for projects, including any boundary of zone A or AO the 

location of the boundary shall be determined by the map scale.   
 

(5) REMOVAL OF LANDS FROM FLOODPLAIN 
a) Compliance with the provisions of this ordinance shall not be grounds for removing land from 

the floodplain unless it is filled at least two feet above the regional or base flood elevation, the 
fill is contiguous to land outside the floodplain, and the map is amended pursuant to s. 8.0 
Amendments.  

 
b) The delineation of any of the Floodplain Districts may be revised by the community where 

natural or man-made changes have occurred and/or where more detailed studies have been 
conducted. However, prior to any such change, approval must be obtained from the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
A completed Letter of Map Revision is a record of this approval. The zoning administrator 
shall not sign a community acknowledgement form unless all criteria set forth in the following 
paragraphs are met: 

 



6 

1. The land and/or land around the structure must be filled at least two feet above the
regional or base flood elevation;

2. The fill must be contiguous to land outside the floodplain; Applicant shall obtain floodplain
development permit before applying for a LOMR or LOMR-F;

c) Removal of lands from the floodplain may also occur by operation of §87.30(1)(e), Wis. Stat.
if a property owner has obtained a letter of map amendment from the federal emergency
management agency under 44 C.F.R. 70.

(6) COMPLIANCE
a) No structure or use within areas regulated by this ordinance shall hereafter be located,

erected, constructed, reconstructed, repaired, extended, converted, enlarged, or altered
without full compliance with the terms of these regulations and all other applicable regulations
that apply to uses within the jurisdiction of these regulations.

b) Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit shall be a violation of these regulations and
shall be punishable in accordance with s. 9.0.

c) Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of plans and applications approved by
the Floodplain Administrator authorize only the use, and arrangement, set forth in such
approved plans and applications, or amendments thereto if approved by the Floodplain
Administrator.  Use, arrangement, or construction contrary to that authorized shall be deemed
a violation of these regulations and punishable in accordance with s. 9.0.

(7) MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED
Unless specifically exempted by law, all cities, villages, towns, and counties are required to
comply with this ordinance and obtain all necessary permits.  State agencies are required to
comply if s. 13.48(13), Stats., applies.  The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and
repair of state highways and bridges by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation is exempt
when s. 30.2022, Stats., applies.  Although exempt from a local zoning permit and permit fees,
DOT must provide sufficient project documentation and analysis to ensure that the community
is in compliance with Federal, State, and local floodplain standards. If a local transportation
project is located within a Zone A floodplain and is not a WisDOT project under s. 30.2022,
then the road project design documents (including appropriate detailed plans and profiles) may
be sufficient to meet the requirements for issuance of a local floodplain permit if the following
apply: The applicant provides documentation to the Floodplain Administrator that the proposed
project is a culvert replacement or bridge replacement under 20’ span at the same location, the
project is exempt from a DNR permit under s. 30.123(6)(d), the capacity is not decreased, the
top road grade is not raised, and no floodway data is available from a federal, state, or other
source.  If floodway data is available in the impacted area from a federal, state, or other source
that existing data must be utilized by the applicant in the analysis of the project site.

(8) ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS
a) This ordinance supersedes all the provisions of any municipal zoning ordinance enacted

under s. 61.35 for villages; or s. 87.30, Stats., which relate to floodplains. A more restrictive
ordinance shall continue in full force and effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but
not otherwise. No land use that is a conditional use in the zoning district governing a
particular location prior to the adoption of this ordinance shall become a permitted use as a
result of the adoption of this ordinance. A land use that is prohibited in the zoning district
governing a particular location prior to the adoption of this ordinance shall remain prohibited
after the adoption of this ordinance.



7 
 

b) This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing deed restrictions, 
covenants, or easements.  If this ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the provisions of 
this ordinance shall prevail. 

 
(9) INTERPRETATION 

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this ordinance are the minimum 
requirements liberally construed in favor of the governing body and are not a limitation on or 
repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes.  If a provision of this ordinance, 
required by ch. NR 116, Wis. Adm. Code, is unclear, the provision shall be interpreted in light 
of the standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this ordinance or in effect on the date 
of the most recent text amendment to this ordinance. 

 
(10) WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY 

The flood protection standards in this ordinance are based on engineering experience and 
research.  Larger floods may occur, or the flood height may be increased by man-made or 
natural causes.  This ordinance does not imply or guarantee that non-floodplain areas or 
permitted floodplain uses will be free from flooding and flood damages. This ordinance does 
not create liability on the part of, or a cause of action against, the municipality or any officer or 
employee thereof for any flood damage that may result from reliance on this ordinance. 
 

(11) SEVERABILITY 
Should any portion of this ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected. 
 

(12) ANNEXED AREAS FOR CITIES AND VILLAGES 
The Ozaukee County floodplain zoning provisions in effect on the date of annexation shall 
remain in effect and shall be enforced by the municipality for all annexed areas until the 
municipality adopts and enforces an ordinance which meets the requirements of ch. NR 116, 
Wis. Adm. Code and 44 CFR 59-72, National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  These 
annexed lands are described on the municipality's official zoning map.  County floodplain 
zoning provisions are incorporated by reference for the purpose of administering this section 
and are on file in the office of the municipal zoning administrator. All plats or maps of 
annexation shall show the regional flood elevation and the floodway location. 
 

2.0 GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS 
The community shall review all permit applications to determine whether proposed building sites will 
be reasonably safe from flooding and assure that all necessary permits have been received from 
those governmental agencies whose approval is required by federal or state law. 

 
1) If a proposed building site is in a flood-prone area, all new construction and substantial 

improvements shall: 
 

a. be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 
structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of 
buoyancy;  

 
b. be constructed with flood-resistant materials;  

 
c. be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damages; and  

 
d. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated to or above the flood protection 

elevation.   
 

2) If a subdivision or other proposed new development is in a flood-prone area, the community shall 
assure that: 

 



8 
 

a. such proposed subdivision or other proposed new development is consistent with the 
need to minimize flood damage within the flood-prone area; 

 
b. public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems are located 

and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and 
 

c. adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 
 
All subdivision proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional flood 
elevation and floodway data for any development that meets the subdivision definition of this 
ordinance and all other requirements in s. 7.1(2).   

 

2.1 HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC ANALYSES 
1) No floodplain development shall:   

 
a. Obstruct flow, defined as development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters by 

itself or with other development, causing any increase in the regional flood height; or 
 

b. Cause any increase in the regional flood height due to floodplain storage area lost. 
 

2) The zoning administrator shall deny permits if it is determined the proposed development will 
obstruct flow or cause any increase in the regional flood height, based on the officially adopted 
FIRM or other adopted map, unless the provisions of s. 8.0 Amendments are met.   

 

2.2 WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS 
No land use permit to alter or relocate a watercourse in a mapped floodplain shall be issued until the 
local official has notified in writing all adjacent municipalities, the Department and FEMA regional 
offices, and required the applicant to secure all necessary state and federal permits.  The standards 
of s. 2.1 must be met and the flood carrying capacity of any altered or relocated watercourse shall be 
maintained.   
 
As soon as is practicable, but not later than six months after the date of the watercourse alteration or 
relocation and pursuant to s. 8.0 Amendments, the community shall apply for a Letter of Map 
Revision (LOMR) from FEMA.  Any such alterations must be reviewed and approved by FEMA and 
the DNR through the LOMC process. 

 

2.3 CHAPTER 30, 31, WIS. STATS., DEVELOPMENT 
Development which requires a permit from the Department, under chs. 30 and 31, Stats., such as 
docks, piers, wharves, bridges, culverts, dams, and navigational aids, may be allowed if the 
necessary permits are obtained and amendments to the floodplain zoning ordinance are made 
according to s. 8.0 Amendments.   

 

2.4 PUBLIC OR PRIVATE CAMPGROUNDS 
Public or private campgrounds shall have a low flood damage potential and shall meet the following 
provisions: 
 

1) The campground is approved by the Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer 
Protection; 

 
2) A land use permit for the campground is issued by the zoning administrator; 

 
3) The character of the river system and the campground elevation are such that a 72-hour 



9 
 

warning of an impending flood can be given to all campground occupants; 
 

4) There is an adequate flood warning procedure for the campground that offers the minimum 
notice required under this section to all persons in the campground.  This procedure shall 
include a written agreement between the campground owner, the floodplain zoning agency or 
zoning administrator, the municipal emergency government coordinator and the chief law 
enforcement official which specifies the flood elevation at which evacuation shall occur, 
personnel responsible for monitoring flood elevations, types of warning systems to be used 
and the procedures for notifying at-risk parties, and the methods and personnel responsible 
for conducting the evacuation;  

 
5) This agreement shall be for no more than one calendar year, at which time the agreement 

shall be reviewed and updated - by the officials identified in sub. (4) - to remain in compliance 
with all applicable regulations, including those of the state Department of Agriculture, Trade 
and Consumer Protection and all other applicable regulations; 

 
6) All mobile recreational vehicles placed on site must meet one of the following: 

 
a. Be fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use; or 

 
b. Not occupy any site in the campground for more than 180 consecutive days, at which 

time the recreational vehicle must be removed from the floodplain for a minimum of 
24 hours; or 

 
c. Meet the requirements in either s. 3.0, 4.0,or  5.1 for the floodplain district in which 

the structure is located; 
 

A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 
system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security devices and 
has no permanently attached additions. 

 
7) All camping units that remain on site for more than 30 days shall be issued a limited 

authorization by the campground operator, a written copy of which is kept on file at the 
campground.  Such authorization shall allow placement of a camping unit consistent with 
2.4(6) and shall ensure compliance with all the provisions of this section; 

 
8) The municipality shall monitor the limited authorizations issued by the campground operator 

to assure compliance with the terms of this section; 
 

9) The campground shall have signs clearly posted at all entrances warning of the flood hazard 
and the procedures for evacuation when a flood warning is issued; and 

 
10) All service facilities, including but not limited to refuse collection, electrical service, gas lines, 

propane tanks, sewage systems and wells shall be properly anchored and placed at or 
floodproofed to the flood protection elevation; and 

 
11) Standards for structures in a campground: 

 
a. All structures must comply with section 2.4 or meet the applicable requirements in ss. 

3.0, 4.0, or 5.1 for the floodplain district in which the structure is located; 
 

b. Deck/landing-a portable landing may be allowed for a camping unit for each entry 
provided that the landing is not permanently attached to the ground or camping unit, 
is no more than 200 square feet in size, shall be portable, contain no walls or roof, 
and can be removed from the campground by a truck and/or trailer. Sections of such 
portable landings may be placed together to form a single deck not greater than 200 



10 
 

square feet at one entry point.  Provisions for the removal of these temporary 
landings during flood events must be addressed within the written agreement with the 
municipality compliant with section 2.4(4).  Any such deck/landing structure may be 
constructed at elevations lower than the flood protection elevation but must not 
obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the 
occurrence of the regional flood. 

 
c. Decks/patios that are constructed completely at grade may be allowed but must also 

comply with applicable shoreland zoning standards. 
 

d. Camping equipment and appurtenant equipment in the campground  may be 
allowed provided that the equipment is not permanently attached to the ground or 
camping unit, is not used as a habitable structure, and must not obstruct flow of flood 
waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the regional 
flood.  Provisions for the removal of this equipment during flooding events shall be 
addressed within the written agreement with the municipality compliant with section 
2.4(4). 

 
e. Once a flood warning in the written agreement has been issued for the campground, 

the campground owner or the designated operator shall ensure that all persons, 
camping units, decks, camping equipment and appurtenant equipment in the 
campground shall be evacuated within the timelines specified within the written 
agreement with the municipality compliant with section 2.4(4). 

 
12) A land use permit shall be obtained as provided under 7.1(2) before any development; repair, 

modification, or addition to an existing structure; or change in the use of a building or 
structure, including sewer and water facilities, may be initiated. 

 
3.0 FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW) 
 
3.1 APPLICABILITY 

This section applies to all floodway areas on the floodplain zoning maps and those identified pursuant 
to s. 5.1(5). 
 

3.2 PERMITTED USES 
The following open space uses are allowed in the Floodway District and the floodway areas of the 
General Floodplain District, if: 

• they are not prohibited by any other ordinance; 
• they meet the standards in s. 3.3 and 3.4; and 
• all permits or certificates have been issued according to s. 7.1. 

 
1) Agricultural uses, such as: farming, outdoor plant nurseries, horticulture, viticulture, and wild crop 

harvesting. 
 

2) Nonstructural industrial and commercial uses, such as loading areas, parking areas and airport 
landing strips. 

 
3) Nonstructural recreational uses, such as golf courses, tennis courts, archery ranges, picnic 

grounds, boat ramps, swimming areas, parks, wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish 
hatcheries, shooting, trap, and skeet activities, hunting and fishing areas and hiking and 
horseback riding trails, subject to the fill limitations of s. 3.3(4). 

 
4) Uses or structures accessory to open space uses or classified as historic structures that comply 

with s. 3.3 and 3.4. 
 



11 

5) Extraction of sand, gravel or other materials that comply with s. 3.3(4).

6) Functionally water-dependent uses, such as docks, piers or wharves, dams, flowage areas,
culverts, navigational aids and river crossings of transmission lines, and pipelines that comply
with chs. 30 and 31, Stats.

7) Public utilities, streets and bridges that comply with s. 3.3(3).

8) Portable latrines that are removed prior to flooding and systems associated with recreational
areas and Department-approved campgrounds that meet the applicable provisions of local
ordinances and Ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code.

9) Public or private wells used to obtain potable water for recreational areas that meet the
requirements of local ordinances and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code.

10) Wastewater treatment ponds or facilities permitted under s. NR 110.15(3)(b), Wis. Adm. Code.

11) Sanitary sewer or water supply lines to service existing or proposed development located outside
the floodway that complies with the regulations for the floodplain area occupied.

3.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODWAY 

1) GENERAL

a. Any development in the floodway shall comply with s. 2.0 and have a low flood damage
potential.

b. Applicants shall provide an analysis calculating the effects of this proposal on the
regional flood height to determine the effects of the proposal according to s. 2.1 and
7.1(2)(c).  The analysis must be completed by a registered professional engineer in the
state of Wisconsin.

c. Any encroachment in the regulatory floodway is prohibited unless the data submitted for
subd. 3.3(1)(b) above demonstrates that the encroachment will cause no increase in
flood elevations in flood events up to the base flood at any location or removes the
encroached area from the regulatory floodway as provided in s. 1.5(5).

2) STRUCTURES

Structures accessory to permanent open space uses, including utility and sanitary facilities, or
functionally dependent on a waterfront location may be allowed by permit if the structures comply
with the following criteria:

a. Not designed for human habitation, does not have a high flood damage potential and is
constructed to minimize flood damage;

b. Shall either have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation or
shall meet all the following standards:

1. Have the lowest floor elevated to or above the regional flood elevation and be dry
floodproofed so that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable
to the passage of water and completely dry to the flood protection elevation without
human intervention during flooding;

2. Have structural components capable of meeting all provisions of Section 3.3(2)(g)



12 
 

and; 
 

3. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, through the use of a 
Federal Emergency Management Agency Floodproofing Certificate, that the design 
and methods of construction are in accordance with Section 3.3(2)(g). 

 
c. Must be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement; 

 
d. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated to or above the flood protection 

elevation; and 
 

e. Must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the 
occurrence of the regional flood. 

 
f. For a structure designed to allow the automatic entry of floodwaters below the Regional 

Flood Elevation, the applicant shall submit a plan that meets s. 3.3(2)(a) through 3.3(2)(e) 
and meets or exceeds the following standards: 

 
1. The lowest floor must be elevated to or above the regional flood elevation; 

 
2. a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch 

for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding; 
 

3. the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above the lowest 
adjacent grade; openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other 
coverings or devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters, otherwise must remain open.  
 

4. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage. 
 

g. Certification: Whenever floodproofing measures are required, a registered professional 
engineer or architect shall certify that the following floodproofing measures will be 
utilized, where appropriate, and are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures, 
velocities, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the regional flood: 

 
1. Reinforcement of floors and walls to resist rupture, collapse, or lateral movement 

caused by water pressures or debris buildup; 
 

2. Construction of wells, water supply systems and waste treatment systems so as to 
prevent the entrance of flood waters in such systems and must be in accordance 
with provisions in Sections 3.4(4) and 3.4(5);  
 

3. Subsurface drainage systems to relieve external pressures on foundation walls and 
basement floors;  
 

4. Cutoff valves on sewer lines or the elimination of gravity flow basement drains; and  
 

5. Placement of utilities to or above the flood protection elevation. 
 

3) PUBLIC UTILITIES, STREETS AND BRIDGES 
Public utilities, streets and bridges may be allowed by permit, if: 

 
a. Adequate floodproofing measures are provided to the flood protection elevation; and 

 
b. Construction meets the development standards of s. 2.1. 

 



13 

4) FILLS OR DEPOSITION OF MATERIALS
Fills or deposition of materials may be allowed by permit, if:

a. The requirements of s. 2.1 are met;

b. No material is deposited in navigable waters unless a permit is issued by the Department
pursuant to ch. 30, Stats., and a permit pursuant to s. 404 of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344 has been issued, if applicable, and all
other requirements have been met;

c. The fill or other materials will be protected against erosion by riprap, vegetative cover,
sheet piling or bulkheading; and

d. The fill is not classified as a solid or hazardous material.

3.4 PROHIBITED USES 
All uses not listed as permitted uses in s. 3.2 are prohibited, including the following uses: 

1) Habitable structures, structures with high flood damage potential, or those not associated with
permanent open-space uses;

2) Storing materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, injurious to property, water quality, or
human, animal, plant, fish or other aquatic life;

3) Uses not in harmony with or detrimental to uses permitted in the adjoining districts;

4) Any private or public sewage systems, except portable latrines that are removed prior to flooding
and systems associated with recreational areas and Department-approved campgrounds that
meet the applicable provisions of local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code;

5) Any public or private wells which are used to obtain potable water, except those for recreational
areas that meet the requirements of local ordinances and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm.
Code;

6) Any solid or hazardous waste disposal sites;

7) Any wastewater treatment ponds or facilities, except those permitted under s. NR 110.15(3)(b),
Wis. Adm. Code; and

8) Any sanitary sewer or water supply lines, except those to service existing or proposed
development located outside the floodway which complies with the regulations for the floodplain
area occupied.

4.0 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF) 

4.1 APPLICABILITY 
This section applies to all floodfringe areas shown on the floodplain zoning maps and those identified 
pursuant to s. 5.1(5). 

4.2 PERMITTED USES 
Any structure, land use, or development is allowed in the Floodfringe District if the standards in s. 4.3 
are met, the use is not prohibited by this, or any other ordinance or regulation and all permits or 
certificates specified in s. 7.1 have been issued. 



14 

4.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODFRINGE 
Section 2.0 shall apply in addition to the following requirements according to the use requested. Any 
existing structure in the floodfringe must meet the requirements of s. 6.0 Nonconforming Uses; 

(1) RESIDENTIAL USES
Any structure, including a manufactured home, which is to be newly constructed or
moved into the floodfringe, shall meet or exceed the following standards. Any existing
structure in the floodfringe must meet the requirements of s. 6.0 Nonconforming Uses;

a) All new construction, including placement of manufactured homes, and
substantial improvement of residential structures, shall have the lowest floor
elevated to or above the flood protection elevation on fill. The fill around the
structure shall be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation extending
at least 15 feet beyond the limits of the structure. No area may be removed from
the floodfringe district unless it can be shown to meet s. 1.5(5).

b) Notwithstanding s. 4.3 (1)(a), a basement or crawlspace floor may be placed at
the regional flood elevation if the basement or crawlspace is designed to make all
portions of the structure below the flood protection elevation watertight with walls
substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural
components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic
loads and effects of buoyancy.  No floor of any kind is allowed below the regional
flood elevation;

c) Contiguous dryland access shall be provided from a structure to land outside of
the floodplain, except as provided in subd. (d).

d) In developments where existing street or sewer line elevations make compliance
with subd. (c) impractical, the municipality may permit new development and
substantial improvements where roads are below the regional flood elevation, if:

1. The municipality has written assurance from police, fire and emergency
services that rescue, and relief will be provided to the structure(s) by
wheeled vehicles during a regional flood event; or

2. The municipality has a DNR-approved emergency evacuation plan that
follows acceptable hazard mitigation planning guidelines.

(2) ACCESSORY STRUCTURES OR USES
In addition to s. 2.0, new construction and substantial improvements of Accessory
structures shall be constructed on fill with the lowest floor at or above the regional flood
elevation.

(3) COMMERCIAL USES
In addition to s. 2.0, any commercial structure which is erected, altered, or moved into the
floodfringe shall meet the requirements of s. 4.3(1).  Subject to the requirements of s.
4.3(5), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at lower
elevations if an adequate warning system exists to protect life and property.

(4) MANUFACTURING AND INDUSTRIAL USES
In addition to s. 2.0, any manufacturing or industrial structure which is erected, altered, or
moved into the floodfringe shall have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood
protection elevation or meet the floodproofing standards in s 7.5.  Subject to the



15 
 

requirements of s. 4.3(5), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be 
placed at lower elevations if an adequate warning system exists to protect life and 
property. 
 

(5) STORAGE OF MATERIALS 
Materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or injurious to property, water quality or 
human, animal, plant, fish, or aquatic life shall be stored at or above the flood protection 
elevation or floodproofed in compliance with s. 7.5. Adequate measures shall be taken to 
ensure that such materials will not enter the water body during flooding. 
 

(6) PUBLIC UTILITIES, STREETS AND BRIDGES 
All utilities, streets and bridges shall be designed to be compatible with comprehensive 
floodplain development plans; and 
 

a) When failure of public utilities, streets and bridges would endanger public health 
or safety, or where such facilities are deemed essential, construction or repair of 
such facilities shall only be permitted if they are designed to comply with s. 7.5. 
 

b) Minor roads or non-essential utilities may be constructed at lower elevations if 
they are designed to withstand flood forces to the regional flood elevation. 

 
(7) SEWAGE SYSTEMS 

a) All sewage disposal systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of flood water into the system, pursuant to s. 7.5(3), to the flood 
protection elevation and meet the provisions of all local ordinances and ch. SPS 
383, Wis. Adm. Code. 

b) Ozaukee County regulates all private, onsite, wastewater treatment systems 
(POWTS), as regulated under SPS 383 in incorporated parts of the county. 

 
(8) WELLS 

a) All wells shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into 
the system, pursuant to s. 7.5(3), to the flood protection elevation and shall meet 
the provisions of chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code. 

b) Ozaukee County administers this regulation for private wells on properties served 
by Private Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems in incorporated parts of the 
county. 

 
(9) SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES 

Disposal of solid or hazardous waste is prohibited in floodfringe areas. 
 

(10) DEPOSITION OF MATERIALS 
Any deposited material must meet all the provisions of this ordinance. 



16 
 

 
(11) MANUFACTURED HOMES  

a) Owners or operators of all manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall 
provide adequate surface drainage to minimize flood damage, and prepare, 
secure approval, and file an evacuation plan, indicating vehicular access and 
escape routes, with local emergency management authorities.   
 

b) In existing manufactured home parks, all new homes, replacement homes on 
existing pads, and substantially improved homes shall: 

 
1. have the lowest floor elevated to the flood protection elevation; and 

 
2. be anchored so they do not float, collapse, or move laterally during a 

flood. 
 

c) Outside of existing manufactured home parks, including new manufactured home 
parks and all single units outside of existing parks, all new, replacement and 
substantially improved manufactured homes shall meet the residential 
development standards for the floodfringe in s. 4.3(1). 

 
(12) MOBILE RECREATIONAL VEHICLES 

All mobile recreational vehicles must be on site for less than 180 consecutive days and 
be either: 

 
a) fully licensed and ready for highway use; or 

 
b) shall meet the elevation and anchoring requirements in s. 4.3 (11)(b) and (c).  

A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 
system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security devices and 
has no permanently attached additions. 

5.0 OTHER FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS 
 

5.1 GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP) 
 

1) APPLICABILITY 
The provisions for the General Floodplain District shall apply to development in all floodplains 
mapped as A, AO, AH, and in AE zones within which a floodway is not delineated on the Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps identified in s. 1.5(2)(a). 
 

2) FLOODWAY BOUNDARIES  
For proposed development in zone A, or in zone AE within which a floodway is not delineated on 
the Flood Insurance Rate Map identified in s. 1.5(2)(a), the boundaries of the regulatory floodway 
shall be determined pursuant to s. 5.1(5). If the development is proposed to encroach upon the 
regulatory floodway, the development is subject to the standards of s 3.0. If the development is 
located entirely within the floodfringe, the development is subject to the standards of s. 4.0.   
 

3) PERMITTED USES 
Pursuant to s. 5.1(5) it shall be determined whether the proposed use is located within the 
floodway or floodfringe. Those uses permitted in the Floodway (s. 3.2) and Floodfringe (s. 4.2) 



17 

Districts are allowed within the General Floodplain District, according to the standards of s. 5.1(4) 
provided that all permits or certificates required under s. 7.1 have been issued. 

4) STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT
Section 3.0 applies to floodway areas, determined to pursuant to 5.1(5); Section 4.0 applies to
floodfringe areas, determined to pursuant to 5.1(5).

a) New construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AO shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated:

1. To or above the depth, in feet, as shown on the FIRM above the highest adjacent
natural grade; or

2. If the depth is not specified on the FIRM, two (2) above the highest adjacent natural
grade or higher.

b) New Construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AH shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the flood protection elevation.

c) In AO/AH zones, provide adequate drainage paths to guide floodwaters around structures.

d) All development in zones AO and zone AH shall meet the requirements of s. 4.0 applicable
to flood fringe areas.

5) DETERMINING FLOODWAY AND FLOODFRINGE LIMITS
Upon receiving an application for development within zone A, or within zone AE where a floodway
has not been delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps, the zoning administrator shall:

a) Require the applicant to submit two copies of an aerial photograph or a plan which shows
the proposed development with respect to the general floodplain district limits, stream
channel, and existing floodplain developments, along with a legal description of the property,
fill limits and elevations, building floor elevations and flood proofing measures and the flood
zone as shown on the FIRM.

b) Require the applicant to furnish any of the following information deemed necessary by the
Department to evaluate the effects of the proposal upon flood height and flood flows,
regional flood elevation and to determine floodway boundaries.

1. A Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study as specified in s. 7.1(2)(c).

2. Plan (surface view) showing elevations or contours of the ground; pertinent structure,
fill or storage elevations; size, location, and layout of all proposed and existing
structures on the site; location and elevations of streets, water supply, and sanitary
facilities; soil types and other pertinent information.

3. Specifications for building construction and materials, floodproofing, filling, dredging,
channel improvement, storage, water supply and sanitary facilities.

6.0 NONCONFORMING USES AND STRUCTURES 

6.1 GENERAL 
1) Applicability



18 
 

a) The standards in this section shall apply to all uses and buildings that do not conform to the 
provisions contained within a floodplain zoning ordinance or with s. 87.30, Stats. and §§ NR 
116.12-14, Wis. Adm. Code and 44 CFR 59-72., these standards shall apply to all 
modifications or additions to any nonconforming use or structure and to the use of any 
structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this ordinance or any 
amendment thereto.  A party asserting existence of a lawfully established nonconforming use 
or structure has the burden of proving that the use or structure was compliant with the 
floodplain zoning ordinance in effect at the time the use or structure was created. 
 

b) As permit applications are received for additions, modifications, or substantial improvements 
to nonconforming buildings in the floodplain, municipalities shall develop a list of those 
nonconforming buildings, their present equalized assessed value, and a list of the costs of 
those activities associated with changes to those buildings. 

 
2) The existing lawful use of a structure or its accessory use which is not in conformity with the 

provisions of this ordinance may continue subject to the following conditions: 
 
a) No modifications or additions to a nonconforming use or structure shall be permitted unless 

they comply with this ordinance.  The words "modification" and "addition" include, but are not 
limited to, any alteration, addition, modification, structural repair, rebuilding or replacement of 
any such existing use, structure or accessory structure or use.  Maintenance is not considered 
a modification; this includes painting, decorating, paneling and other nonstructural 
components and the maintenance, repair or replacement of existing private sewage or water 
supply systems or connections to public utilities.  Any costs associated with the repair of a 
damaged structure are not considered maintenance. 
 
The construction of a deck that does not exceed 200 square feet and that is adjacent to the 
exterior wall of a principal structure is not an extension, modification, or addition.  The roof of 
the structure may extend over a portion of the deck in order to provide safe ingress and egress 
to the principal structure. 
 

b) If a nonconforming use or the use of a nonconforming structure is discontinued for 12 
consecutive months, it is no longer permitted and any future use of the property, and any 
structure or building thereon, shall conform to the applicable requirements of this ordinance; 
 

c) The municipality shall keep a record which lists all nonconforming uses and nonconforming 
structures, their present equalized assessed value, the cost of all modifications or additions 
which have been permitted, and the percentage of the structure's total current value those 
modifications represent; 

 
d) No modification or addition to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a 

nonconforming use, which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50% of its 
present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire structure is permanently 
changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable 
requirements of this ordinance. Contiguous dry land access must be provided for residential 
and commercial uses in compliance with s. 4.3(1).  The costs of elevating the lowest floor of a 
nonconforming building or a building with a nonconforming use to the flood protection 
elevation are excluded from the 50% provisions of this paragraph;  
 

e) No maintenance on a per event basis to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a 
nonconforming use, the cost of which would equal or exceed 50% of its present equalized 
assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire structure is permanently changed to a 
conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable requirements of 
this ordinance. Contiguous dry land access must be provided for residential and commercial 
uses in compliance with s. 4.3(1). Maintenance to any nonconforming structure, which does 
not exceed 50% of its present equalized assessed value on a per event basis, does not count 



19 
 

against the cumulative calculations over the life of the structure for substantial improvement 
calculations. 
 

f) If on a per event basis the total value of the work being done under (d) and (e) equals or 
exceeds 50% of the present equalized assessed value, the work shall not be permitted unless 
the entire structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in 
compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance. Contiguous dry land access 
must be provided for residential and commercial uses in compliance with s. 4.3(1). 
 

g) Except as provided in subd. (h), if any nonconforming structure or any structure with a 
nonconforming use is destroyed or is substantially damaged, it cannot be replaced, 
reconstructed, or rebuilt unless the use and the structure meet the current ordinance 
requirements.  A structure is considered substantially damaged if the total cost to restore the 
structure to its pre-damaged condition equals or exceeds 50% of the structure’s present 
equalized assessed value. 
 

h) For nonconforming buildings that are substantially damaged or destroyed by a nonflood 
disaster, the repair or reconstruction of any such nonconforming building shall be permitted in 
order to restore it to the size and use in effect prior to the damage event, provided that the 
following minimum requirements are met, and all required permits have been granted prior to 
the start of construction:  

 
1. Residential Structures 

 
a. Shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the base flood 

elevation using fill, pilings, columns, posts, or perimeter walls. Perimeter walls must 
meet the requirements of s. 7.5(2). 
 

b. Shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure 
resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, 
and shall be constructed with methods and materials resistant to flood damage. 
 

c. Shall be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning 
equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or elevated so as to 
prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions 
of flooding. 
 

d. In A Zones, obtain, review, and utilize any flood data available from a federal, state or 
other source. 
 

e. In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including 
basement, meet the standards in s. 5.1(4).  
 

f. in AO Zones, shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes to 
guide floodwaters around and away from the structure. 

 
2. Nonresidential Structures 

 
a. Shall meet the requirements of s. 6.1(2)(h)1a-f.  

 
b. Shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the 

regional flood elevation; or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, shall 
meet the standards in s. 7.5 (1) or (2). 
 



20 

c. In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, meet the standards in s. 5.1(4).

3) A nonconforming historic structure may be altered if the alteration will not preclude the structure’s
continued designation as a historic structure, the alteration will comply with s. 3.3 (1), flood
resistant materials are used, and construction practices and floodproofing methods that comply
with s. 7.5 are used.  Repair or rehabilitation of historic structures shall be exempt from the
development standards of s. 6.1 (2)(h)1 if it is determined that the proposed repair or rehabilitation
will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and is the minimum
necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

6.2 FLOODWAY DISTRICT 
1) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with

a nonconforming use in the Floodway District, unless such modification or addition:

a) Has been granted a permit or variance which meets all ordinance requirements;

b) Meets the requirements of s. 6.1;

c) Shall not increase the obstruction to flood flows or regional flood height;

d) Any addition to the existing structure shall be floodproofed, pursuant to s. 7.5, by means
other than the use of fill, to the flood protection elevation; and,

e) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation is enclosed, the following
standards shall apply:

1. The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for the
efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention.  A minimum of two
openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least one square inch for every
one square foot of the enclosed area.  The lowest part of the opening can be no more
than 12 inches above the adjacent grade;

2. The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be
constructed of flood-resistant materials;

3. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the flood
protection elevation; and

4. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage.

2) No new on-site sewage disposal system, or addition to an existing on-site sewage disposal
system, except where an addition has been ordered by a government agency to correct a hazard
to public health, shall be allowed in the Floodway District.  Any replacement, repair or
maintenance of an existing on-site sewage disposal system in a floodway area shall meet the
applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, s. 7.5(3) and Ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code.

3) No new well or modification to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be allowed in
the Floodway District.  Any replacement, repair, or maintenance of an existing well in the
Floodway District shall meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, s. 7.5(3)
and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code.

6.3 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT 



21 
 

1) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with 
a nonconforming use unless such modification or addition has been granted a permit or variance 
by the municipality and meets the requirements of s. 4.3 except where s. 6.3(2) is applicable. 
 

2) Where compliance with the provisions of subd. (1) would result in unnecessary hardship and only 
where the structure will not be used for human habitation or be associated with a high flood 
damage potential, the Board of Appeals, using the procedures established in s. 7.3, may grant a 
variance from those provisions of subd. (1) for modifications or additions using the criteria listed 
below.  Modifications or additions which are protected to elevations lower than the flood 
protection elevation may be permitted if: 
 
a) No floor is allowed below the regional flood elevation for residential or commercial 

structures; 
 

b) Human lives are not endangered; 
 

c) Public facilities, such as water or sewer, shall not be installed; 
 

d) Flood depths shall not exceed two feet; 
 

e) Flood velocities shall not exceed two feet per second; and 
 

f) The structure shall not be used for storage of materials as described in s. 4.3(5). 
 

3) All new private sewage disposal systems, or addition to, replacement, repair or maintenance of a 
private sewage disposal system shall meet all the applicable provisions of all local ordinances, s. 
7.5 (3) and ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code. 
 

4) All new wells, or addition to, replacement, repair, or maintenance of a well shall meet the 
applicable provisions of this ordinance, s. 7.5 (3) and ch. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code. 
 

6.4 NONCONFORMING BUILDING DESTROYED BY NON-FLOOD DISASTER 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of ss. 6.2-6.3, a nonconforming building that is destroyed by a non-
flood disaster may be repaired, reconstructed, or improved, in order to restore the nonconforming 
building after the non-flood disaster, except that such repair, reconstruction, or improvement shall 
not be permitted if the nonconforming building, after repair, reconstruction or improvement, will fail to 
meet one or more of the minimum requirements applicable to such a nonconforming structure under 
42 USC ss. 4001-4129 or under the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 
7.0 ADMINISTRATION 

Where a zoning administrator, planning agency or a board of appeals has already been appointed to 
administer a zoning ordinance adopted under ss. 59.69, 59.692 or 62.23(7), Stats., these officials 
shall also administer this ordinance. 
 

7.1 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 
1) DUTIES AND POWERS 

The zoning administrator is authorized to administer this ordinance and shall have the following 
duties and powers: 
 
a) Advise applicants of the ordinance provisions, assist in preparing permit applications and 

appeals, and assure that the regional flood elevation for the proposed development is shown 
on all permit applications. 
 



22 
 

b) Issue permits and inspect properties for compliance with provisions of this ordinance and 
issue certificates of compliance where appropriate. 
 

c) Inspect and assess all damaged floodplain structures to determine if substantial damage to 
the structures has occurred. 
 

d) Keep records of all official actions such as: 
1. All permits issued, inspections made, and work approved; 
2. Documentation of certified lowest floor and regional flood elevations; 
3. Floodproofing certificates. 
4. Water surface profiles, floodplain zoning maps and ordinances, nonconforming uses 

and structures including changes, appeals, variances and amendments. 
5. All substantial damage assessment reports for floodplain structures. 
6. List of nonconforming structures and uses. 

 
e) Submit copies of the following items to the Department Regional office: 

1. Within 10 days of the decision, a copy of any decisions on variances, appeals for map 
or text interpretations, and map or text amendments; 
 

2. Copies of case-by-case analyses and other required information. 
 

3. Copies of substantial damage assessments performed and all related correspondence 
concerning the assessments. 

 
f) Investigate, prepare reports, and report violations of this ordinance to the municipal zoning 

agency and attorney for prosecution.  Copies of the reports shall also be sent to the 
Department Regional office. 
 

g) Submit copies of amendments to the FEMA Regional office. 
 

2) LAND USE PERMIT 
A land use permit shall be obtained before any development; repair, modification, or addition to 
an existing structure; or change in the use of a building or structure, including sewer and water 
facilities, may be initiated.  Application to the zoning administrator shall include: 
 
a) GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
1. Name and address of the applicant, property owner and contractor; 

 
2. Legal description, proposed use, and whether it is new construction or a modification; 

 
b) SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

A site plan drawn to scale shall be submitted with the permit application form and shall 
contain: 
 
1. Location, dimensions, area and elevation of the lot; 

 
2. Location of the ordinary highwater mark of any abutting navigable waterways; 

 
3. Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot lines and street center 

lines; 
 



23 

4. Location of any existing or proposed on-site sewage systems or private water supply
systems;

5. Location and elevation of existing or future access roads;

6. Location of floodplain and floodway limits as determined from the official floodplain zoning
maps;

7. The elevation of the lowest floor of proposed buildings and any fill using the vertical datum
from the adopted study – either National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or North
American Vertical Datum (NAVD);

8. Data sufficient to determine the regional flood elevation in NGVD or NAVD at the location
of the development and to determine whether or not the requirements of s. 3.0 or 4.0 are
met; and

9. Data to determine if the proposed development will cause an obstruction to flow or an
increase in regional flood height or discharge according to s. 2.1.  This may include any of
the information noted in s. 3.3(1).

c) HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC STUDIES TO ANALYZE DEVELOPMENT
All hydraulic and hydrologic studies shall be completed under the direct supervision of a
professional engineer registered in the State.  The study contractor shall be responsible for
the technical adequacy of the study.  All studies shall be reviewed and approved by the
Department.

1. Zone A floodplains and in AE zones within which a floodway is not delineated:
a. Hydrology

i. The appropriate method shall be based on the standards in ch. NR 116.07(3),
Wis. Admin. Code, Hydrologic Analysis:  Determination of Regional Flood
Discharge.

b. Hydraulic modeling
The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards in ch. NR 116.07(4), Wis.
Admin. Code, Hydraulic Analysis:  Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the
following:

i. determination of the required limits of the hydraulic model shall be based on
detailed study information for downstream structures (dam, bridge, culvert) to
determine adequate starting WSEL for the study.

ii. channel sections must be surveyed.

iii. minimum four-foot contour data in the overbanks shall be used for the
development of cross section overbank and floodplain mapping.

iv. a maximum distance of 500 feet between cross sections is allowed in developed
areas with additional intermediate cross sections required at transitions in
channel bottom slope including a survey of the channel at each location.

v. the most current version of HEC-RAS shall be used.

vi. a survey of bridge and culvert openings and the top of road is required at each
structure.



24 
 

vii. additional cross sections are required at the downstream and upstream limits of 
the proposed development and any necessary intermediate locations based on 
the length of the reach if greater than 500 feet. 
 

viii. standard accepted engineering practices shall be used when assigning 
parameters for the base model such as flow, Manning’s N values, expansion and 
contraction coefficients or effective flow limits.  The base model shall be 
calibrated to past flooding data such as high-water marks to determine the 
reasonableness of the model results. If no historical data is available, adequate 
justification shall be provided for any parameters outside standard accepted 
engineering practices. 
 

ix. the model must extend past the upstream limit of the difference in the existing 
and proposed flood profiles in order to provide a tie-in to existing studies.  The 
height difference between the proposed flood profile and the existing study 
profiles shall be no more than 0.00 feet. 

 
c. Mapping 

A work map of the reach studied shall be provided, showing all cross-section locations, 
floodway/floodplain limits based on best available topographic data, geographic limits 
of the proposed development and whether the proposed development is located in the 
floodway.   

 
i. If the proposed development is located outside of the floodway, then it is 

determined to have no impact on the regional flood elevation. 
 

ii. If any part of the proposed development is in the floodway, it must be added to 
the base model to show the difference between existing and proposed 
conditions.  The study must ensure that all coefficients remain the same as in the 
existing model, unless adequate justification based on standard accepted 
engineering practices is provided. 

 
2. Zone AE Floodplains 
a. Hydrology 

If the proposed hydrology will change the existing study, the appropriate method to be 
used shall be based on ch. NR 116.07(3), Wis. Admin. Code, Hydrologic Analysis:  
Determination of Regional Flood Discharge. 
 

b. Hydraulic model 
The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards in ch. NR 116.07(4), Wis. 
Admin. Code, Hydraulic Analysis:  Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the 
following: 
i. Duplicate Effective Model 

The effective model shall be reproduced to ensure correct transference of the 
model data and to allow integration of the revised data to provide a continuous 
FIS model upstream and downstream of the revised reach.  If data from the 
effective model is available, models shall be generated that duplicate the FIS 
profiles and the elevations shown in the Floodway Data Table in the FIS report to 
within 0.1 foot. 

 
ii. Corrected Effective Model. 

The Corrected Effective Model shall not include any man-made physical 
changes since the effective model date but shall import the model into the most 
current version of HEC-RAS for Department review. 
 



25 
 

iii. Existing (Pre-Project Conditions) Model. 
The Existing Model shall be required to support conclusions about the actual 
impacts of the project associated with the Revised (Post-Project) Model or to 
establish more up-to-date models on which to base the Revised (Post-Project) 
Model. 
 

iv. Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model. 
The Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model shall incorporate the Existing 
Model and any proposed changes to the topography caused by the proposed 
development.  This model shall reflect proposed conditions. 
 

v. All changes to the Duplicate Effective Model and subsequent models must be 
supported by certified topographic information, bridge plans, construction plans 
and survey notes. 
 

vi. Changes to the hydraulic models shall be limited to the stream reach for which 
the revision is being requested.  Cross sections upstream and downstream of 
the revised reach shall be identical to those in the effective model and result in 
water surface elevations and top widths computed by the revised models 
matching those in the effective models upstream and downstream of the revised 
reach as required.  The Effective Model shall not be truncated. 

 
c. Mapping 

Maps and associated engineering data shall be submitted to the Department for 
review which meet the following conditions: 

 
i. Consistency between the revised hydraulic models, the revised floodplain and 

floodway delineations, the revised flood profiles, topographic work map, 
annotated FIRMs and/or Flood Boundary Floodway Maps (FBFMs), construction 
plans, bridge plans. 
 

ii. Certified topographic map of suitable scale, contour interval, and a planimetric 
map showing the applicable items.  If a digital version of the map is available, it 
may be submitted in order that the FIRM may be more easily revised. 
 

iii. Annotated FIRM panel showing the revised 1% and 0.2% annual chance 
floodplains and floodway boundaries. 
 

iv. If an annotated FIRM and/or FBFM and digital mapping data (GIS or CADD) are 
used, then all supporting documentation or metadata must be included with the 
data submission along with the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection 
and State Plane Coordinate System in accordance with FEMA mapping 
specifications. 
 

v. The revised floodplain boundaries shall tie into the effective floodplain 
boundaries. 
 

vi. All cross sections from the effective model shall be labeled in accordance with 
the effective map and a cross section lookup table shall be included to relate to 
the model input numbering scheme. 
 

vii. Both the current and proposed floodways shall be shown on the map. 
 

viii. The stream centerline, or profile baseline used to measure stream distances in 
the model shall be visible on the map. 



26 
 

 
d) EXPIRATION 

All permits issued under the authority of this ordinance shall expire no more than 180 days 
after issuance. The permit may be extended for a maximum of 180 days for good and 
sufficient cause.  If the permitted work has not started within 180 days of the permit date, the 
development must comply with any regulation, including any revision to the FIRM or FIS, that 
took effect after the permit date. 

 
3) CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE  

No land shall be occupied or used, and no building which is hereafter constructed, altered, added 
to, modified, repaired, rebuilt, or replaced shall be occupied until a certificate of compliance is 
issued by the zoning administrator, except where no permit is required, subject to the following 
provisions: 
 

a) The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part thereof, and 
the proposed use, conform to the provisions of this ordinance; 
 

b) Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a permit; 
 

c) If all ordinance provisions are met, the certificate of compliance shall be issued within 10 
days after written notification that the permitted work is completed; 
 

d) The applicant shall submit a certification signed by a registered professional engineer, 
architect, or land surveyor that the fill, lowest floor and floodproofing elevations are in 
compliance with the permit issued.  Floodproofing measures also require certification by a 
registered professional engineer or architect that the requirements of s. 7.5 are met. 
 

e) Where applicable pursuant to s. 5.1(4), the applicant must submit a certification by a 
registered professional engineer or surveyor of the elevation of the bottom of the lowest 
horizontal structural member supporting the lowest floor (excluding pilings or columns), and 
an indication of whether the structure contains a basement. 
 

f) Where applicable pursuant to s. 5.1(4), the applicant must submit certifications by a 
registered professional engineer or architect that the structural design and methods of 
construction meet accepted standards of practice as required by s. 5.1(4).   

 
4) OTHER PERMITS 

Prior to obtaining a floodplain development permit the applicant must secure all necessary permits 
from federal, state, and local agencies, including but not limited to those required by the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers under s. 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 
33 U.S.C. 1344. 

7.2 ZONING AGENCY 
1) The Planning Commission shall:  

 
a) oversee the functions of the office of the zoning administrator; and  

 
b) review and advise the governing body on all proposed amendments to this ordinance, maps, 

and text. 
 

c) publish adequate notice pursuant to Ch. 985, Stats., specifying the date, time, place, and 
subject of the public hearing. 

 
2) The Planning Commission shall not: 



27 

a) grant variances to the terms of the ordinance in place of action by the Board of Appeals; or

b) amend the text or zoning maps in place of official action by the governing body.

7.3 BOARD OF APPEALS 
The Board of Appeals, created under s. 62.23(7)(e), Stats., for cities or villages, is hereby authorized 
or shall be appointed to act for the purposes of this ordinance.  The Board shall exercise the powers 
conferred by Wisconsin Statutes and adopt rules for the conduct of business.  The zoning 
administrator shall not be the secretary of the Board. 

1) POWERS AND DUTIES
The Board of Appeals shall:
a) Appeals - Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order,

requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement
or administration of this ordinance;

b) Boundary Disputes - Hear and decide disputes concerning the district boundaries shown on
the official floodplain zoning map; and

c) Variances - Hear and decide, upon appeal, variances from the ordinance standards.

2) APPEALS TO THE BOARD
a) Appeals to the board may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any officer or department

of the municipality affected by any decision of the zoning administrator or other administrative
officer.  Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days unless otherwise provided by the rules of
the board, by filing with the official whose decision is in question, and with the board, a notice
of appeal specifying the reasons for the appeal.  The official whose decision is in question
shall transmit to the board all records regarding the matter appealed.

b) NOTICE AND HEARING FOR APPEALS INCLUDING VARIANCES

1. Notice - The board shall:

a. Fix a reasonable time for the hearing;
b. Publish adequate notice pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, specifying the date, time,

place, and subject of the hearing; and
c. Assure that notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the Department

Regional office at least 10 days in advance of the hearing.

2. Hearing - Any party may appear in person or by agent.  The board shall:
a. Resolve boundary disputes according to s. 7.3(3);
b. Decide variance applications according to s. 7.3(4); and
c. Decide appeals of permit denials according to s. 7.4.

c) DECISION:  The final decision regarding the appeal or variance application shall:

1. Be made within a reasonable time;

2. Be sent to the Department Regional office within 10 days of the decision;

3. Be a written determination signed by the chairman or secretary of the Board;

4. State the specific facts which are the basis for the Board's decision;



28 
 

 
5. Either affirm, reverse, vary or modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination 

appealed, in whole or in part, dismiss the appeal for lack of jurisdiction or grant or deny the 
variance application; and 
 

6. Include the reasons for granting an appeal, describing the hardship demonstrated by the 
applicant in the case of a variance, clearly stated in the recorded minutes of the Board 
proceedings. 

 
3) BOUNDARY DISPUTES 

The following procedure shall be used by the Board in hearing disputes concerning floodplain 
district boundaries: 
 

a) If a floodplain district boundary is established by approximate or detailed floodplain 
studies, the flood elevations or profiles shall prevail in locating the boundary. 
 

b) The person contesting the boundary location shall be given a reasonable 
opportunity to present arguments and technical evidence to the Board; and 
 

c) If the boundary is incorrectly mapped, the Board should inform the zoning 
committee or the person contesting the boundary location to petition the governing 
body for a map amendment according to s. 8.0 Amendments. 

 
4) VARIANCE 

a) The Board may, upon appeal, grant a variance from the standards of this ordinance if an 
applicant convincingly demonstrates that: 

 
1. Literal enforcement of the ordinance will cause unnecessary hardship; 

 
2. The hardship is due to adoption of the floodplain ordinance and unique property 

conditions, not common to adjacent lots or premises.  In such case the ordinance or map 
must be amended; 
 

3. The variance is not contrary to the public interest; and 
 

4. The variance is consistent with the purpose of this ordinance in s. 1.3. 
 
b) In addition to the criteria in subd. (a), to qualify for a variance under FEMA regulations, the 

Board must find that the following criteria have been met: 
 

1. The variance shall not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation; 
 

2. The applicant has shown good and sufficient cause for issuance of the variance; 
 

3. Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship; 
 

4. Granting the variance will not result in additional threats to public safety, extraordinary 
expense, create a nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with 
existing local laws or ordinances; 
 

5. The variance granted is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford 
relief. 

 
c) A variance shall not: 



29 

1. Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited in the zoning district;

2. Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gain or loss;

3. Be granted for a hardship which is self-created.

4. Damage the rights or property values of other persons in the area;

5. Allow actions without the amendments to this ordinance or map(s) required in s. 8.0
Amendments; and

6. Allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which would preclude its
continued designation as an historic structure.

d) When a floodplain variance is granted, the Board shall notify the applicant in writing that it
may increase risks to life and property and flood insurance premiums could increase up to
$25.00 per $100.00 of coverage.  A copy shall be maintained with the variance record.

7.4 TO REVIEW APPEALS OF PERMIT DENIALS 
(1) The Planning Commission (s. 7.2) or Board shall review all data related to the appeal.  This may

include:

a. Permit application data listed in s. 7.1(2);

b. Floodway/floodfringe determination data in s. 5.1(5);

c. Data listed in s. 3.3(1)(b) where the applicant has not submitted this information to the
zoning administrator; and

d. Other data submitted with the application or submitted to the Board with the appeal.

(2) For appeals of all denied permits the Board shall:

a. Follow the procedures of s. 7.3;

b. Consider zoning agency recommendations; and

c. Either uphold the denial or grant the appeal.

(3) For appeals concerning increases in regional flood elevation the Board shall:

a. Uphold the denial where the Board agrees with the data showing an increase in flood
elevation.  Increases may only be allowed after amending the flood profile and map and all
appropriate legal arrangements are made with all adversely affected property owners as per
the requirements of s. 8.0 Amendments; and

b. Grant the appeal where the Board agrees that the data properly demonstrates that the
project does not cause an increase provided no other reasons for denial exist.



30 
 

7.5 FLOODPROOFING STANDARDS 
(1) No permit or variance shall be issued for a non-residential structure designed to be watertight 

below the regional flood elevation until the applicant submits a plan certified by a registered 
professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing measures will protect the structure or 
development to or above the flood protection elevation and submits a FEMA Floodproofing 
Certificate.  Floodproofing is not an alternative to the development standards in ss. 2.0, 3.0, 4.0, 
or 5.1. 
 

(2) For a structure designed to allow the entry of floodwaters, no permit or variance shall be issued 
until the applicant submits a plan either: 

 
a. certified by a registered professional engineer or architect; or  

 
b. meeting or exceeding the following standards: 

1. a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch 
for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding; 

2. the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and 
3. openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 

devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. 
 

(3) Floodproofing measures shall be designed, as appropriate, to: 
 

a. Withstand flood pressures, depths, velocities, uplift and impact forces and other regional 
flood factors; 
 

b. Protect structures to the flood protection elevation; 
 

c. Anchor structures to foundations to resist flotation and lateral movement;  
 

d. Minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters; 
 

e. Minimize or eliminate discharges into flood waters; 
 

f. Placement of essential utilities to or above the flood protection elevation; and 
 

g. If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation is enclosed, the following 
standards shall apply: 

 
1. The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for 

the efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention.  A minimum of 
two openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least one square inch 
for every one square foot of the enclosed area.  The lowest part of the opening can 
be no more than 12 inches above the adjacent grade; 
 

2. The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be 
constructed of flood-resistant materials; 
 

3. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the 
flood protection elevation; and 
 

4. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage. 
 



31 
 

7.6 PUBLIC INFORMATION 
(1) Place marks on structures to show the depth of inundation during the regional flood. 

 
(2) All maps, engineering data and regulations shall be available and widely distributed. 

 
(3) Real estate transfers should show what floodplain district any real property is in. 

 

8.0 AMENDMENTS 
Obstructions or increases may only be permitted if amendments are made to this ordinance, the 
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway lines and water surface profiles, in accordance with s. 8.1.  

 
(1) In AE Zones with a mapped floodway, no obstructions or increases shall be permitted unless 

the applicant receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and amendments are 
made to this ordinance, the official floodplain zoning maps, floodway lines and water surface 
profiles, in accordance with s. 8.1.  Any such alterations must be reviewed and approved by 
FEMA and the DNR. 
 

(2) In A Zones increases equal to or greater than 1.0 foot may only be permitted if the applicant 
receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and amendments are made to this 
ordinance, the official floodplain maps, floodway lines, and water surface profiles, in 
accordance with s. 8.1. 
 

8.1 GENERAL 
The governing body shall change or supplement the floodplain zoning district boundaries and this 
ordinance in the manner outlined in s. 8.2 below.  Actions which require an amendment to the 
ordinance and/or submittal of a Letter of Map Change (LOMC) include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 
 

(1) Any fill or floodway encroachment that obstructs flow causing any increase in the regional 
flood height; 
 

(2) Any change to the floodplain boundaries and/or watercourse alterations on the FIRM; 
 

(3) Any changes to any other officially adopted floodplain maps listed in s. 1.5 (2)(b); 
 

(4) Any floodplain fill which raises the elevation of the filled area to a height at or above the flood 
protection elevation and is contiguous to land lying outside the floodplain; 
 

(5) Correction of discrepancies between the water surface profiles and floodplain maps; 
 

(6) Any upgrade to a floodplain zoning ordinance text required by s. NR 116.05, Wis. Adm. Code, 
or otherwise required by law, or for changes by the municipality; and 

 
(7) All channel relocations and changes to the maps to alter floodway lines or to remove an area 

from the floodway or the floodfringe that is based on a base flood elevation from a FIRM 
requires prior approval by FEMA.   
 

8.2 PROCEDURES 

Ordinance amendments may be made upon petition of any party according to the provisions of s. 
62.23, Stats., for cities and villages. The petitions shall include all data required by s. 5.1(5) and 
7.1(2). The Land Use Permit shall not be issued until a Letter of Map Revision is issued by FEMA for 
the proposed changes. 

 



32 
 

(1) The proposed amendment shall be referred to the zoning agency for a public hearing and 
recommendation to the governing body.  The amendment and notice of public hearing 
shall be submitted to the Department Regional office for review prior to the hearing.  The 
amendment procedure shall comply with the provisions of s. 62.23, Stats., for cities and 
villages. 
 

(2) No amendments shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the Department. 
 

(3) All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow causing any increase in 
the regional flood height, shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal 
arrangements from all adversely affected property owners and notify local units of 
government before the amendment can be approved by the governing body.   

 

9.0 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES 
Any violation of the provisions of this ordinance by any person shall be unlawful and shall be referred 
to the municipal attorney who shall expeditiously prosecute all such violators.  A violator shall, upon 
conviction, forfeit to the municipality a penalty of not more than $50.00 (fifty dollars), together with a 
taxable cost of such action.  Each day of continued violation shall constitute a separate offense.  
Every violation of this ordinance is a public nuisance, and the creation of the nuisance may be 
enjoined, and the maintenance of the nuisance may be abated by action at suit of the municipality, 
the state, or any citizen thereof pursuant to s. 87.30, Stats. 
 

10.0 DEFINITIONS 
Unless specifically defined, words and phrases in this ordinance shall have their common law 
meaning and shall be applied in accordance with their common usage.  Words used in the present 
tense include the future, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number includes 
the singular.  The word "may" is permissive, "shall" is mandatory and is not discretionary. 

 

1. A ZONES – Those areas shown on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map which would be inundated 
by the regional flood.  These areas may be numbered or unnumbered A Zones.  The A Zones 
may or may not be reflective of flood profiles, depending on the availability of data for a given 
area. 

 
2. AH ZONE – See “AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING”. 

 
3. AO ZONE – See “AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING”. 

 
4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE OR USE – A facility, structure, building or use which is accessory or 

incidental to the principal use of a property, structure or building.  An accessory structure shall not 
be used for human habitation. 

 
5. ALTERATION – An enhancement, upgrade or substantial change or modification other than an 

addition or repair to a dwelling or to electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and 
other systems within a structure. 

 
6. AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING – A designated AO, AH, AR/AO, AR/AH, or VO zone on a 

community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a 1 percent or greater annual chance of 
flooding to an average depth of 1 to 3 feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where 
the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flood may be evident.  Such flooding is 
characterized by ponding or sheet flow. 

 
7. BASE FLOOD – Means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in 

any given year, as published by FEMA as part of a FIS and depicted on a FIRM. 



33 

8. BASEMENT – Any enclosed area of a building having its floor sub-grade on all sides.

9. BUILDING – See STRUCTURE.

10. BULKHEAD LINE – A geographic line along a reach of navigable water that has been adopted by
a municipal ordinance and approved by the Department pursuant to s. 30.11, Stats., and which
allows limited filling between this bulkhead line and the original ordinary highwater mark, except
where such filling is prohibited by the floodway provisions of this ordinance.

11. CAMPGROUND – Any parcel of land which is designed, maintained, intended, or used for the
purpose of providing sites for nonpermanent overnight use by 4 or more camping units, or which
is advertised or represented as a camping area.

12. CAMPING UNIT – Any portable device, no more than 400 square feet in area, used as a
temporary shelter, including but not limited to a camping trailer, motor home, bus, van, pick-up
truck, or tent that is fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use.

13. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE – A certification that the construction and the use of land or a
building, the elevation of fill or the lowest floor of a structure is in compliance with all of the
provisions of this ordinance.

14. CHANNEL – A natural or artificial watercourse with definite bed and banks to confine and conduct
normal flow of water.

15. CRAWLWAYS or CRAWL SPACE – An enclosed area below the first usable floor of a building,
generally less than five feet in height, used for access to plumbing and electrical utilities.

16. DECK – An unenclosed exterior structure that has no roof or sides and has a permeable floor
which allows the infiltration of precipitation.

17. DEPARTMENT – The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

18. DEVELOPMENT – Any artificial change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not
limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures; the construction of
additions or alterations to buildings, structures or accessory structures; the repair of any damaged
structure or the improvement or renovation of any structure, regardless of percentage of damage
or improvement; the placement of buildings or structures; subdivision layout and site preparation;
mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations; the storage, deposition
or extraction of materials or equipment; and the installation, repair or removal of public or private
sewage disposal systems or water supply facilities.

19. DRYLAND ACCESS – A vehicular access route which is above the regional flood elevation, and
which connects land located in the floodplain to land outside the floodplain, such as a road with
its surface above regional flood elevation and wide enough for wheeled rescue and relief
vehicles.

20. ENCROACHMENT – Any fill, structure, equipment, use or development in the floodway.

21. FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) – The federal agency that
administers the National Flood Insurance Program.

22. FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) – A map of a community on which the Federal
Insurance Administration has delineated both the floodplain and the risk premium zones
applicable to the community.  This map can only be amended by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency.



34 
 

 
23. FLOOD or FLOODING – A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 

normally dry land areas caused by one of the following conditions: 
• The overflow or rise of inland waters; 
• The rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source; 
• The inundation caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical 

levels along the shore of Lake Michigan or Lake Superior; or 
• The sudden increase caused by an unusually high-water level in a natural body of water, 

accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as a seiche, 
or by some similarly unusual event. 

 
24. FLOOD FREQUENCY – The probability of a flood occurrence which is determined from statistical 

analyses. The frequency of a particular flood event is usually expressed as occurring, on the 
average once in a specified number of years or as a percent (%) chance of occurring in any given 
year. 

 
25. FLOODFRINGE – That portion of the floodplain outside of the floodway which is covered by flood 

waters during the regional flood and associated with standing water rather than flowing water. 
 

26. FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY MAP – A map designating approximate flood hazard areas.  
Flood hazard areas are designated as unnumbered A-Zones and do not contain floodway lines or 
regional flood elevations.  This map forms the basis for both the regulatory and insurance aspects 
of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) until superseded by a Flood Insurance Study 
and a Flood Insurance Rate Map. 

 
27. FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY – A technical engineering examination, evaluation, and 

determination of the local flood hazard areas.  It provides maps designating those areas affected 
by the regional flood and provides both flood insurance rate zones and base flood elevations and 
may provide floodway lines.  The flood hazard areas are designated as numbered and 
unnumbered A-Zones.  Flood Insurance Rate Maps, that accompany the Flood Insurance Study, 
form the basis for both the regulatory and the insurance aspects of the National Flood Insurance 
Program. 

 
28. FLOODPLAIN – Land which has been or may be covered by flood water during the regional 

flood.  It includes the floodway and the floodfringe and may include other designated floodplain 
areas for regulatory purposes. 

 
29. FLOODPLAIN ISLAND – A natural geologic land formation within the floodplain that is 

surrounded, but not covered, by floodwater during the regional flood.  
 

30. FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT – Policy and procedures to ensure wise use of floodplains, 
including mapping and engineering, mitigation, education, and administration and enforcement of 
floodplain regulations. 

 
31. FLOOD PROFILE – A graph or a longitudinal profile line showing the relationship of the water 

surface elevation of a flood event to locations of land surface elevations along a stream or river. 
 

32. FLOODPROOFING – Any combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments to 
properties and structures, water and sanitary facilities and contents of buildings subject to 
flooding, for the purpose of reducing or eliminating flood damage. 

 
33. FLOOD PROTECTION ELEVATION – An elevation of two feet of freeboard above the Regional 

Flood Elevation.  (Also see:  FREEBOARD.) 
 

34. FLOOD STORAGE – Those floodplain areas where storage of floodwaters has been taken into 
account during analysis in reducing the regional flood discharge. 



35 

35. FLOODWAY – The channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining the
channel required to carry the regional flood discharge.

36. FREEBOARD – A safety factor expressed in terms of a specified number of feet above a
calculated flood level.  Freeboard compensates for any factors that cause flood heights greater
than those calculated, including ice jams, debris accumulation, wave action, obstruction of bridge
openings and floodways, the effects of watershed urbanization, loss of flood storage areas due to
development and aggregation of the river or stream bed.

37. HABITABLE STRUCTURE – Any structure or portion thereof used or designed for human
habitation.

38. HEARING NOTICE – Publication or posting meeting the requirements of Ch. 985, Stats.  For
appeals, a Class 1 notice, published once at least one week (7 days) before the hearing, is
required.  For all zoning ordinances and amendments, a Class 2 notice, published twice, once
each week consecutively, the last at least a week (7 days) before the hearing.  Local ordinances
or bylaws may require additional notice, exceeding these minimums.

39. HIGH FLOOD DAMAGE POTENTIAL – Damage that could result from flooding that includes any
danger to life or health or any significant economic loss to a structure or building and its contents.

40. HIGHEST ADJACENT GRADE – The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

41. HISTORIC STRUCTURE – Any structure that is either:
• Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places or preliminarily determined by

the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National
Register;

• Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by
the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

• Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic preservation
programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or

• Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either by an approved state program, as
determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or by the Secretary of the Interior in states without
approved programs.

42. INCREASE IN REGIONAL FLOOD HEIGHT – A calculated upward rise in the regional flood
elevation greater than 0.00 foot, based on a comparison of existing conditions and proposed
conditions which is directly attributable to development in the floodplain but not attributable to
manipulation of mathematical variables such as roughness factors, expansion and contraction
coefficients and discharge.

43. LAND USE – Any nonstructural use made of unimproved or improved real estate.  (Also see
DEVELOPMENT.)

44. LOWEST ADJACENT GRADE – Elevation of the lowest ground surface that touches any of the
exterior walls of a building.

45. LOWEST FLOOR – The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement).

46. MAINTENANCE – The act or process of ordinary upkeep and repairs, including redecorating,
refinishing, nonstructural repairs, or the replacement of existing fixtures, systems or equipment
with equivalent fixtures, systems, or structures.



36 

47. MANUFACTURED HOME – A structure transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a
permanent chassis and is designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when
connected to required utilities.  The term "manufactured home" includes a mobile home but does
not include a "mobile recreational vehicle."

48. MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OR SUBDIVISION – A parcel (or contiguous parcels)
of land, divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

49. MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OR SUBDIVISION, EXISTING – A parcel of land,
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale, on which the construction of
facilities for servicing the lots is completed before the effective date of this ordinance.  At a
minimum, this would include the installation of utilities, the construction of streets and either final
site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.

50. MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK, EXPANSION TO EXISTING – The preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed.  This includes installation of utilities, construction of streets and either
final site grading, or the pouring if concrete pads.

51. MOBILE RECREATIONAL VEHICLE – A vehicle which is built on a single chassis, 400 square
feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled,
carried or permanently towable by a licensed, light-duty vehicle, is licensed for highway use if
registration is required and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use.  Manufactured homes
that are towed or carried onto a parcel of land, but do not remain capable of being towed or
carried, including park model homes, do not fall within the definition of "mobile recreational
vehicles."

52. MODEL, CORRECTED EFFECTIVE – A hydraulic engineering model that corrects any errors
that occur in the Duplicate Effective Model, adds any additional cross sections to the Duplicate
Effective Model, or incorporates more detailed topographic information than that used in the
current effective model.

53. MODEL, DUPLICATE EFFECTIVE – A copy of the hydraulic analysis used in the effective FIS
and referred to as the effective model.

54. MODEL, EFFECTIVE – The hydraulic engineering model that was used to produce the current
effective Flood Insurance Study.

55. MODEL, EXISTING (PRE-PROJECT) – A modification of the Duplicate Effective Model or
Corrected Effective Model to reflect any man-made modifications that have occurred within the
floodplain since the date of the effective model but prior to the construction of the project for
which the revision is being requested.  If no modification has occurred since the date of the
effective model, then this model would be identical to the Corrected Effective Model or Duplicate
Effective Model.

56. MODEL, REVISED (POST-PROJECT) – A modification of the Existing or Pre-Project Conditions
Model, Duplicate Effective Model or Corrected Effective Model to reflect revised or post-project
conditions.

57. MUNICIPALITY or MUNICIPAL – The county, city or village governmental units enacting,
administering, and enforcing this zoning ordinance.

58. NAVD or NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM – Elevations referenced to mean sea level
datum, 1988 adjustment.



37 
 

 
59. NGVD or NATIONAL GEODETIC VERTICAL DATUM – Elevations referenced to mean sea level 

datum, 1929 adjustment. 
 

60. NEW CONSTRUCTION – Structures for which the start of construction commenced on or after 
the effective date of a floodplain zoning regulation adopted by this community and includes any 
subsequent improvements to such structures. 

 
61. NON-FLOOD DISASTER – A fire or an ice storm, tornado, windstorm, mudslide, or other 

destructive act of nature, but excludes a flood.  
 

62. NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE – An existing lawful structure or building which is not in 
conformity with the dimensional or structural requirements of this ordinance for the area of the 
floodplain which it occupies.  (For example, an existing residential structure in the floodfringe 
district is a conforming use.  However, if the lowest floor is lower than the flood protection 
elevation, the structure is nonconforming.) The term “nonconforming building” as used in Wis. 
Stat. s. 87.30(1d)(a)1. is synonymous.  

 
63. NONCONFORMING USE – An existing lawful use or accessory use of a structure or building 

which is not in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance for the area of the floodplain which 
it occupies.  (Such as a residence in the floodway.) 

 
64. OBSTRUCTION TO FLOW – Any development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters such 

that this development alone or together with any future development will cause an increase in 
regional flood height. 

 
65. OFFICIAL FLOODPLAIN ZONING MAP – That map, adopted and made part of this ordinance, as 

described in s. 1.5(2), which has been approved by the Department and FEMA. 
 

66. OPEN SPACE USE – Those uses having a relatively low flood damage potential and not 
involving structures. 

 
67. ORDINARY HIGHWATER MARK – The point on the bank or shore up to which the presence and 

action of surface water is so continuous as to leave a distinctive mark such as by erosion, 
destruction or prevention of terrestrial vegetation, predominance of aquatic vegetation, or other 
easily recognized characteristic. 

 
68. PERSON – An individual, or group of individuals, corporation, partnership, association, 

municipality, or state agency. 
 

69. PRIVATE SEWAGE SYSTEM – A sewage treatment and disposal system serving one structure 
with a septic tank and soil absorption field located on the same parcel as the structure.  It also 
means an alternative sewage system approved by the Department of Safety and Professional 
Services, including a substitute for the septic tank or soil absorption field, a holding tank, a 
system serving more than one structure, or a system located on a different parcel than the 
structure. 

 
70. PUBLIC UTILITIES – Those utilities using underground or overhead transmission lines such as 

electric, telephone and telegraph, and distribution and collection systems such as water, sanitary 
sewer, and storm sewer. 

 
71. REASONABLY SAFE FROM FLOODING – Means base flood waters will not inundate the land or 

damage structures to be removed from the floodplain and that any subsurface waters related to 
the base flood will not damage existing or proposed buildings. 

 
72. REGIONAL FLOOD – A flood determined to be representative of large floods known to have 



38 
 

occurred in Wisconsin.  A regional flood is a flood with a one percent chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year, and if depicted on the FIRM, the RFE is equivalent to the BFE. 

 
73. START OF CONSTRUCTION – The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual 

start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other 
improvement was within 180 days of the permit date.  The actual start means either the first 
placement of permanent construction on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the 
installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond initial excavation, or the 
placement of a manufactured home on a foundation.  Permanent construction does not include 
land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling, nor does it include the installation of 
streets and/or walkways, nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers or 
foundations or the erection of temporary forms, nor does it include the installation on the property 
of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the 
main structure.  For an alteration, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any 
wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building. 

 
74. STRUCTURE – Any manmade object with form, shape and utility, either permanently or 

temporarily attached to, placed upon or set into the ground, stream bed or lakebed, including, but 
not limited to, roofed and walled buildings, gas or liquid storage tanks, bridges, dams and 
culverts. 

 
75. SUBDIVISION – Has the meaning given in s. 236.02(12), Wis. Stats. 

 
76. SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE – Damage of any origin sustained by a structure, whereby the cost of 

restoring the structure to its pre-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
equalized assessed value of the structure before the damage occurred.  

 
77. SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT – Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or 

improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 
equalized assessed value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started.  If the 
structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs are considered substantial improvement 
regardless of the work performed.  The term does not include either any project for the 
improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary or safety code violations 
identified by the building official and that are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 
conditions; or any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alteration will not preclude the 
structure’s continued designation as a historic structure. 

 
78. UNNECESSARY HARDSHIP – Where special conditions affecting a particular property, which 

were not self-created, have made strict conformity with restrictions governing areas, setbacks, 
frontage, height, or density unnecessarily burdensome or unreasonable in light of the purposes of 
the ordinance. 

 
79. VARIANCE – An authorization by the board of adjustment or appeals for the construction or 

maintenance of a building or structure in a manner which is inconsistent with dimensional 
standards (not uses) contained in the floodplain zoning ordinance. 

 
80. VIOLATION – The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 

floodplain zoning ordinance.  A structure or other development without required permits, lowest 
floor elevation documentation, floodproofing certificates or required floodway encroachment 
calculations is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided. 

 
81. WATERSHED – The entire region contributing runoff or surface water to a watercourse or body of 

water. 
 

82. WATER SURFACE PROFILE – A graphical representation showing the elevation of the water 



39 
 

surface of a watercourse for each position along a reach of river or stream at a certain flood flow.  
A water surface profile of the regional flood is used in regulating floodplain areas. 

 
83. WELL – means an excavation opening in the ground made by digging, boring, drilling, driving or 

other methods, to obtain groundwater regardless of its intended use. 
 

 

 



CSM/ Plat Review Application 
242 Fredonia Ave 

PO Box 159 

Date ff(iz/Vf 
Filed 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find You r Mom nts Here 

Owner of Property 

Property Address 

City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number 

Email 

Fredonia, Wisconsin 53021 
(262} 692-9125 

https://www.fredoniawi.gov/ 

Owner's Information 

Property Information 

Subdivision Requested: S ,A-
tt l1MtrM£;vr 

/ 

Does this property require a zoning change ®Yes 0 
Proposed Use of Property: 

U.AN'CE 571/i);t-0 - g2 

Fee* 
$250.00 

No 

Names and Addresses of Adjoining Property Owners 

{Use Reverse if Needed) 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

I certify that the forgoing state 

Signature of Owner· -
Address of Owner (if differen 

-

Notice: This application must be complete and accurate, or it will be returned. CSM, survey, building plans, 

and/or drawings pertaining to this subdivision request must be included with this application before a hearing 

will be scheduled. 

* Fee $250 PLUS $5 per lot PLUS any engineering, administrative, or special meeting costs related to the 

subdivision. 



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 
PART OF LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 4238 RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 1150618 AT THE OZAUKEE COUNTY REGISTER 
OF DEEDS BEING LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, OZUAKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

I I I 

i---------------------------------------------------g i,(il 
-l I 1-i 

QIJllilU 
_g;~2~ 

[)_O~12Q61§ 
-l III 
::J I u, 
::J \1-.J 

~-----------------------------1~ \ 
// \ 3 I 

// I =1 I 

-i ( : ~ i 
: I I j I 

___J_ ___ ___..__...____"- I =1 I 
---,- - _ ___.,______ "' _LQI_ 4_ I -j 

I -----..... \ CSM 4238 7 I 
\ dai;~ "'-\ \ [)_0~129.5Tu I 3 I 

[)_0~129,61§ I ~ I 
-L·: _________________ ~ t ~ ~- i 

------------- LOT1 ~ I -1, __ 1_1_0·_..c..._1_1_0·---1\ 
:I _0~211_ I I ~ - . -

LOCATION SKETCH 
T12N . R21E 

SE 114 OF NE 114 SECTION 35 
NOTTO SCALE 

GENERAL NOTES: 

THERE IS GENERAL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY BLANKET EASEMENT ON 
THE SOUTHEAST 114OFTHE 
SOUTHEAST 114 OF SECTION 35 
RECORDED IN VOL. 243, PAGE 54 
AS DOCUMENT NUMBER225628 

THIS ENTIRE CSM IS CURRENTLY 
ZONED M-2 (GENERAL 
MANUFACTURING) 

• 
• 
@) 

0 

() 

Ll.llJ 

LEGEND 

FOUND 314" REBAR 

FOUND IRON PIPE 
(SIZE NOTED) 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OZAUKEE COUNTY 
MONUMENT, EXISTING 

SET 3/4" O.D. x 24" REBAR 
(WEIGHING 1.50 LBS/L.F. 

RECORDED AS 

ACCESS RESTRICTED 

WETLAND BOUNDARY 

EDGE OF WATER 

SETBACK LINE 

~~ \::J I 
--~ -------------------1 I \ ::j s1;fo~--~.;~,1''' 

I~ I \ _LQI_2_ 
CSM 4244 

[)0~1~~ I t:;: S88°34'23"W 14.98' 
~ LOT 1 I - w (S88'14'03"E 15.00") 
~ ACRES = 5.00 ~ ~ ~~ l ~o I ~-~~~I I 

1 ~ SQ FT= 217798 l!) 6 '° I 
,--------------------,. z I t ~ ~ I 

---ll__ - T - . 7!
1
w~~~~~::---~(/) ~ I 

I OZAUKEE COUNTY > I I 
\ SHORELAND ZONING \ 0::: 1\ ---..._ 

\ ,:~;.. I~) " /' :~ i 
: [)_0~1~~ \01\ I I 

=="i-
1 

___________________ l~\
1

1
1 

£~lfu j ~ 1 

~ ~:I _____________ J_1T125' I 120·1 I\ 

\:: QIJllilU ~~,\ --_g;~2~ 
[)_0~129,61§ 

' 

PREPARED BY: 

:,.,,,,\\\\\\\\\11 
................... CON 1111 ...... ,s _C'\ ,,, 

$' ...._\ ............... "/A & '11 .:: ~---....,,,,•' .... -v "' 
ff ,/ HEATHER S. '•,.. \ 
3 f BARTELT \ ~ ~*' ·*-~ i S-2797 : ~ 
~ \ MADISON j § 
~ < .. .. fl:- -
~l ""9,,.':·•·· w1 .••• •·,o ff 

11111t 0 su~ ...... ~ 
-lk)ik~"'t,~ 

4/30/24 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 
Ozaukee County 
Received for record this 

HEATHER BARTELT AGENT FOR 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. of 

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET 
300 0 300 - - -- - -1" = 300' 

day 
A.D., 20 at 

910 WEST WINGRADR. 
MADISON, WI 53715 

.:7!1 
o'clock ______ M. and recorded in Vol. _________ _ 

SURVEYED FOR: 
VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
242 FREDONIAAVENUE 
FREDONIA, WI 53021 

STRAND 
ASSOCIATES ® 

SHEET 1 OF 3 

_____ ofC.S.M.'s, page(s) _____________ _ 
Document No. _____________ _ 
____________________ Register 
____________________ Deputy 



110' 110'

125' 120'

STH
 57

66'

OZAUKEE COUNTY
SHORELAND ZONING

LOT 1

850

850

840

840

850

850

850

840
830

830

83
0

83
0

840

830

IN
N

O
VA

TI
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

LOT 1
CSM 4238

DOC.1150618

LOT 3
CSM 4238

DOC.1150618

LOT 4
CSM 4238

DOC.1150618

OUTLOT 1
CSM 4238

DOC.1150618

LOT 1
CSM 4244

DOC.1154413

LOT 2
CSM 4244

DOC.1154413

LOT 3
CSM 4244

DOC.1154413

ACRES = 5.00
SQ FT = 217798

OUTLOT 2
CSM 4238

DOC.1150618

N

SHEET 2 OF 3

BE
AR

IN
G

S 
R

EF
ER

EN
C

ED
 T

O
 T

H
E 

W
IS

C
O

N
SI

N
ST

AT
E 

PL
AN

E 
C

O
O

R
D

IN
AT

E 
SY

ST
EM

, S
O

U
TH

ZO
N

E 
(N

AD
 1

98
3/

20
11

). 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

 L
IN

E 
O

F
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

EA
ST

 1
/4

 O
F 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

5,
 T

12
N

,
R

21
E,

 H
AS

 A
 B

EA
R

IN
G

 O
F 

N
87

°3
0'

44
"E

PART OF LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 4238 RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 1150618 AT THE OZAUKEE COUNTY REGISTER
OF DEEDS BEING LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, OZUAKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

4/30/24

S1
°4

5'
45

"E
26

0.
89

'

S87°36'11"W  656.01'

(S88°14'03"E  15.00')

(S
01

°4
5'

57
"E

)

S88°34'23"W  14.98'

(S01°45'57"E)N87°36'11"E  671.28'

N
1°

48
'4

7"
W

33
0.

36
'

S1°46'03"E  69.72'

~:--,'''""''1111 ,,, I 11 
................ e,CON 1,,, 

.::-~\ ......... 1$1/ ,,, 
..., •' •• A. I 
- •• •• ·v I 

ff ,/HEATHER s··.. ~ - ' . ~ ~ 

§ / BARTELT \ ~ 
--*· .*-., 
~ i S-2797 : ~ 

~ <\ MADISON / E 
~ ••• WI /{:!:-: 

11 "'yA ,'•, ••• Q ::-
l1 ·vr,.•·•••• .. ••••,.;.-{ ~ 
,, v , rv -::-

1tr SU " , ....... 

14/:t_ii\ "'l,'' , ..... 

.:1!1 
STRAND 
ASSOC I ATES ® 300 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

· i · · I 

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET 

0 300 

1" = 300 ' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 300'



SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

DATED THIS                   DAY OF                            , 202430TH APRIL

HEATHER S. BARTELT, AGENT FOR STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 2797
STRAND PROJECT NUMBER 3844.016

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4;
THENCE, SOUTH 87° 36' 11" WEST, 656.01 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 4 TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INNOVATION DRIVE;
THENCE, NORTH 01° 48' 47" WEST, 330.26 FEET ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE;
THENCE, NORTH 87° 36' 11" EAST, 671.28 FEET TO THE WESTERY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STH 57;
THENCE, SOUTH 01° 46' 03" EAST, 69.72 FEET ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE;
THENCE, SOUTH 88° 34' 23" WEST, 14.98 FEET ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE;
THENCE, SOUTH 01° 45' 45" EAST, 260.89 FEET ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 230,995 SQUARE FEET (5.30 ACRES).

I, HEATHER S. BARTELT, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR WITH STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC., DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE SURVEYED, DIVIDED AND MAPPED PART OF
LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 4238 RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 1150618 AT THE OZAUKEE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS BEING LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, OZUAKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

SUBJECT TO ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS, RECORDED AND UNRECORDED.

THAT I HAVE MADE SUCH SURVEY, LAND DIVISION, AND MAP BY THE DIRECTION OF THE VILLAGE OF FREDONIA.

THAT SUCH MAP IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF ALL EXISTING BOUNDARIES OF THE LAND SURVEYED AND THE DIVISION THEREOF.

THAT I HAVE FULLY COMPLIED WITH THE PROVISION OF SECTION 236.34 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS
OF THE VILLAGE OF FREDONIA IN SURVEYING AND MAPPING THIS PROPERTY TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF

VILLAGE BOARD APPROVAL

APPROVED ON: 

DANIEL GEHRKE - VILLAGE PRESIDENT

MICHELLE JOHNSON - VILLAGE CLERK

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION - VILLAGE

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL ON: 

DANIEL GEHRKE - PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN

MICHELLE JOHNSON - PLAN COMMISSION SECRETARY 

THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR RECORDING
BY THE VILLAGE BOARD OF THE VILLAGE OF FREDONIA

THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED FOR
APPROVAL TO THE VILLAGE BOARD OF THE VILLAGE OF FREDONIA

SHEET 3 OF 3

PART OF LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 4238 RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 1150618 AT THE OZAUKEE COUNTY REGISTER
OF DEEDS BEING LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST1/4 OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, OZUAKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

~!, 
STRAND 
ASSOCIATES® 

:-.''''""'"'''• ,,,,.._ CON 1111 ...... ,s .C-. ,,, 
.;:?" ... \ ••""••••°"/A. 11 .::: ~~ ... •' ·• .. ·v '1,-: = ,/HEATHERS.··•... \ 

~ [ BARTELT \ *\ : * : S-2797 : :; ,, . . .,,, 
~ \ MADISON l § 1 <. .. I"}.. -

~ =·• .. WI /ci'~ 
\ 71);~···• .. ·······~4: $ 

' 11, v suR-.Jv ........... -,,,, ,,, .... 
1\1\.\\\ "''''' 



VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find You r Moments Here 

Owner of Property 

Property Address 

City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number 

Email 

Present Use of Property 

Proposed Use of Property 

Current Zoning District 

Proposed Zoning District 

Zoning Change Application 
242 Fredonia Ave 

PO Box 159 
Fredonia, Wisconsin 53021 

{262) 692-9125 
https://www.fredoniawi.gov/ 

Owner's Information 

\/I-LLA6'€ OF rvt-eOON'rA 

Date 
Filed 

Fee 
$200.00 

PA/2ca # OC/15 l 300Cf00 { /(l;t:rr,dlV' qp) 

lft2€0oN.1:i4,, ~~ 53ozt 
Z62- 612 -1(Z5 
AO .AA:-r: N(g/ hi-£t)o!VJ/-l v-;!:. - 6'.0V 

Property Information 

VA CAN', LAND 

DArJcc Srvor-o 

/Vl- I 
8- 2-

Names and Addresses of Adjoining Property Owners 

7. 

8. 

9. 

4-/-;z/z, y 

-



· 11;; - f 
L ,I I 
I I 1 '' ~ 













X EX

CL

XXX
X XXX

X

X X

X

XXX
X

1

XXX'-X"
XXX

KEYNOTEXXXX-XX

CENTER LINE

REVISION LABEL REVISION CLOUD

DIMENSION
X'-X"

BREAK LINE

DETAIL REFERENCE

SECTION REFERENCE

NEW STRUCTURAL
GRID LINE REFERENCE

DATUM REFERENCE

ELEVATION REFERENCE

EXISTING STRUCTURAL
GRID LINE REFERENCE

DRAWING LABEL

SHEET NUMBER

GRID LABEL

GRID LINE

DRAWING LABEL

SHEET NUMBER

LEVEL NAME

ELEVATION HEIGHT

GRID LABEL

GRID LINE

DRAWING LABEL

SHEET NUMBER

c E3 ARCHITECTURE2024

SHEET NO:

SHEET NAME:

REVISIONS

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT NO:
SHEET INDEXVICINITY MAP ANNOTATION SYMBOLS

PROPOSED BUILDING ADDITION AND ALTERATION FOR:

PROJECT INFORMATION

A:
 N

73
W

26
81

4 
TH

O
U

SA
N

D
 O

AK
S 

D
R

IV
E│

SU
SS

EX
, W

I 5
30

89

P:
 (2

62
)-2

64
-8

42
3│

E:
 M

H
EN

SE
L@

E3
AR

C
H

.C
O

M
│

W
: W

W
W

.E
3A

R
C

H
.C

O
M

A-01
COVER SHEET +
INDEX

04│16│2024

23-002R

FREDONIA PLAN
COMMISSION SET

PO
RT

 W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST
AT

E
B

A
N

K
 -

FR
ED

O
N

IA

20
1 

R
EG

AL
 D

R
IV

E 
| F

R
ED

O
N

IA
, W

I 5
30

21

PORT WASHINGTON STATE BANK - FREDONIA
201 REGAL DRIVE | FREDONIA, WI 53021

NO: DESCRIPTION DATE

OWNER PORT WASHINGTON STATE BANK
206 N FRANKLIN STREET
PORT WASHINGTON, WI 53074

PROJECT TYPE BUILDING ADDITION + LEVEL 3 ALTERATION
OCCUPANCY B (BUSINESS), A-3 (ASSEMBLY), S-1 (STORAGE)
CONSTRUCTION CLASSIFICATION TYPE VB

NUMBER OF STORIES ALLOWED 2 (ABOVE GRADE PLANE)
NUMBER OF STORIES PROVIDED 1 (ABOVE GRADE PLANE)
BUILDIING HEIGHT

EXISTING FLOOR AREA 2,533 SF (LL) + 2,401 SF (FF)
PROPOSED ADDITION AREA 449 SF (LL) + 1,377 SF (FF)
PROPOSED CRAWL SPACE AREA 800 SF (NOT INCLUDED IN TOTAL)
TOTAL BUILDING AREA 6,760 SF

FIRE SUPPRESSION NONE
FIRE ALARM COMPLETE

OCCUPANT LOAD 68
EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE 200 FT MAX
COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL 75 FT MAX
DEAD END CORRIDOR LENGTH 35 FT MAX
EXITS REQUIRED 2 PER LEVEL
EXIST PROVIDED 2 PER LEVEL

A-01 COVER SHEET + INDEX

C1.01 EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN / DEMOLITION PLAN

C1.02 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

C1.03 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

C1.04 GRADING PLAN

C1.05 LANDSCAPE PLAN

C1.06 LIGHTING PLAN

C2.01 CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS

C2.02 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

A-02 LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

A-03 FIRST FLOOR PLAN

A-04 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-05 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-06 EXTERIOR RENDERINGS

N

" 

Stoney 
Creek Park 

r •• 
~ 

,. 
• -
·• ,-..- ~ '· 

Em~~\O Hills Dr 

FredOf'liO Av• • 0 

" 0 

I f 
Park Ave i ~ 

11'1 St Rose A-.e 

3 
I Airpol1 Rd 
j 

I • \_ 
• - --

-

4= 
L 

' r-
' L - . 

Fredonia Ave ~ I 

EB 

w >-
() 

a: z 
w 

::, () 

LL 
LL 

I- w 

0 w 
() 

w z 
w -

I-
a: 
w 
Cl. 
X 

:I: w 

0 w 
Cl) 

a: I-
a: 
w 

<C Cl. 
X 
w 

rr, 
LL.I 

-
- ' -
-=[ --=-----

-~--

if 
'• .. -/I 

.___ 

I 0 . 

r 
r 7 
l - - _) $ 

t 

---J\.r-

, t 

D 



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

EXISTING
CONDITIONS/
DEMOLITION

PLAN

JAB

EPN

EPN

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

...------
...------

...------
...------

...------

...------ \ 
\ 

\ 
I r I EX. ASPHALT 

( I I 
I I \ 

EX. BUILDING w -0 

EX. ASPHALT 

/ 

----------

LAWN 

/ 

I 
/ 

/ 

EX. ELECTRIC MH 

I 
I 
I 
e 

EX. TREE 
(TO BE REMOVED) 

EX. TREE 
(TO BE REMOVED) 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

I 

-
EX. LANDSCAPING 

EX. CONCRETE 
I 

EX. LANDSCAPING 
(TO BE REMOVED) 

I 
/ 

I 
( 
( 

EX. LIGHT POLE 
(TO BE REMOVED) 

FENCE 

EX. LANDSCAPING r 

I if/ 
I EX. CONCRETE \/ I 

I 
EX. TREE 

/ 

EX. LANDSCAPING 

EX. WATER 
VALVE 

SAWCUT CURB HEAD 
FOR NEW SIDEWALK 

,n 

EX. STM INL 
TC=840.60 

EX. TREE 

C) 

J> 
Ul 

\ 

(TO BE REMOVED) 

~ EX. HYDRANT 

I 
I 

EX. STM MH 
RIM=840.61 

I 

WATER VALVE 

EX. STM INL 
TC=840.83 

~If+'-"-! REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL 
FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW 
MOVE STONES TO GREAT NEW EDGE 
FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW 

~-1-----ft+i,-i SAWCUT ALONG 
EXISTING JOINT 
REMOVE STAMPED 
CONCRETE APRON 

REMOVE CONCRETE 
SAWCUT ALONG 
EXISTING JOINT 

(TO BE REMOVED) 
I 
I 

I 

/ I I 
AND STAMPED /' ...._ - \ll---"--~~,rlk~ 

CONCRETE EDGE / CV ~-11-\+:7--I REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL 

/I ~---' I 
/ 

I 
EX. FLAG POLE 

EX. TREE 
(TO BE REMOVED) l-_1/1-_L-1--"'-l' 

\ 

\ 

FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW 
MOVE STONES TO GREAT NEW EDGE 
FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW 

I 
I 
\ 

- -) 

I 
I 
\ 
I 

LAWN 

EX. BUILDING 
( / FFE=840.80 

c'r--, l LFE=830.30 

I /re EX. DOWNSPOUT 
I I/ (TO BE REMOVED) 
I , ~--------" 

40·-
EX. CONCRETE 

(TO BE REMOVED) 

D 
;o 
< 
Cl 
I 

/ 

-4 D 
I 
;o 
C 

EX. CANOPY 
-..; (TO BE REMOVED) 

EX. LANDSCAPING 
(TO BE REMOVED) 

PROTECT DRAIN 
DURING REMOVALS 

\ 

LAWN 

\ 
\ 

\ '\ \ 
I 
\{ 

(jl 

!, 
I \ 

\\ 
\ \ ..... " 

..... 
\ II 

cr, 
N 
N 
r-
N 

25' 
\SETBACK 

\ r--
0 

\ 

\ 

i I 
(/) 
)> 

I Z 

EX. TREE 
(TO BE REMOVED) 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

(jl 

I 
(/) 

~ 

I 

:c -G) 
:c 
r 
)> 
z 
0 

0 
;o -< rn 

I 

EX. A/C UNITS EX. STM MH 
RIM=839.87 

\ ·o '::i: ~ 
EX. WATER VALVE 

I 
I 
I 
I EX. SIGN AND \ ~ r ~ 3= I 

LANDSCAPING '..-_;.-:
1 
\82 rol ,11; EX. LANDSCAPING , .,'1,.-cv l (TO BE REMOVED) ':-

(TO BE REMOVED) I I I I I \ \ \ "- SAWCUT ALONG [i 
' ---7 I I I · \ \ \ \ '\ EXISTING JOINT ~----ffl\ 

CON_SRETE___ -1---------.._/ \ \ \ \ \ 
EX. RETAINING WALL \ \ \ \ \ '\ 'o>-,,,:c--~-✓ EX. TELEPHONE 

~ \ , <o \ \ \ 7- - / PEDESTAL 
\. \ ' ·'\..... \ \. \ , \ " , '-- \ EX. CON CRETE / ; \ , , _, / 

\. ' , "- " :" EX CULVERT / / 
' ' , , \--=-~1r-:~ \. ..._ ...._, , • IE=837.49 -- '-, \ - ,- / 

\. .... ,,.__ --- --...___ "-- ' ' -...... --- -.. ...... \ I 
........... , ------- - -,......._ - - - -......... "- ' ' ....._ --- ......__ --._ .....__ - - - 8 \ I I --- ,,--... ...... - '-. --- --- .... ... 

I // / ,,:/ 

EX. SAN MH 
RIM=841.08 I 

I 
/ -- -........... .......__ ....... ---- - .......... _ - ,,,,a \ 

/ ...._ '- ...._ ...._ - -" ...._ ...._ ' 8,39 ' \ EX. ENTRANCE / 8.31 / ..J -...... '--- ......_ --...... --...... --- -... -..... -........ --... .....__ --.... 83, ......._ ', .---- --.... _____ _.... ,1<-", "'-......._ -............._ ---....._ ---, , ---- --a, 8 --- -..._ ....._ \ '--\ I 
✓ 1'o'"" o1 - -........ ---- - ....... - 8 v/--... - --- ............ 

SAWCUT ALONG 
EXISTING JOINT 
REMOVE CONCRETE 

""{' ~!"!. -1.oA:O --- -- --...........__ --....... ' .............. 8.> .36-...._ -- -- -- ...... ) .b!x>000ll-' i \ sooJ c ,,,. ....__ - .....____ ........._ - vs ---- ......_ - -... ' I 09° 11:>0 ~ ,,,,, ✓ ................... --....., -..........., --8:~.1.,,,._:_-- ....... ----::-----'-........ '-~ --- ..... ,. ' -........ - a> ...,v __ --- ...... - ' "'- I 
/ ...... '--- 8. 02.._ - ---- - ...... - - - ........... ' .......... ,,..,,,,,,. ' 8.> 'J1--. -.........-..... --- --..... --.... --.... ', ...._ ........_ , .... "," ......__ \ , , I .,,,,,. vo - -- -- , "' - ...... 

/ .... - -........ - - - '-.. ..................... ' ...... \ 
/ ...... - --- --- ------ - - ...... '-.. "- ......... " _,,,,. ............ ....___ -........ -........ ------ ' ......__ ' "' " I 

?,:JO- - ___ s2.9- - - - --- ......_ ......_ ....._ --- ......_ -............"-...__' --. --- ........_ ' ' ' ""'- ' , \ - "-- ' "'- - I 
.,..,,. ---- - ......, -....__ ................. 

,,,,.. ,,,... _ ---- ....__ ....__ , ---.__ ...,____ ---................._ " EX. SIGN AND I 
,,,. - - - ...._ ...._ ', ...._ ...._ " 1 LANDSCAPING / 

//® CONIFEROUS 
; (TYPICAL) 

I 

// 0 

TREE (/) 
)> 
z 

\ 

I 
I 
I 
I // o.n<;i- - - - - ...._--..-.. ', I / (TO BE REMOVED) I 

/ / u,_ LAWN 1 '\ i I I I I ,J ' I ; 
// / - - - - - \ - - +-+ ~ - 1-----t"" 1--i I I I 

.,,.,, - - \ I I I I I I I I r), °' ;j> ~ 

(/) 
J> z 

\ 
(/) 
)> 

I 
EX. STM MH 
RIM=841.88 

SHEET 

C1 .01 

C1.02 

C1.03 

C1.04 

C1.05 

C1.06 

C2.01 

C2.02 

- - - -- - -,,, -~- - - - - -- --1- I I I I I I I I I I I / .!_ 
/ I > J I 1 1 .,.iiJ<Of;:,"Jirj'O , 

,/ I . / ' N ,,., ,,., ,,., ,,., Q'.) Q'.) . I / 
/ 25 SETBACK EX. CUL VERT - "'~co<!)'? , I / 

/ \ EX. 15" FES ~ IE=831.92 q) I I ( l \ I I I I / 

z 

\ 
EX. STM MH 
RIM=839.03 

24" RCP STORM // ; IE=829.82 ~ /,, I "': , '- \ \ \ I I I ki~ri~~~~~f;----1=1;;:-::: 
_,.,.,,. - --- _/_----~ I \ ,\ \ \ Cl ------

--- - --• X 
---- ---- /_ N881l8'29"E 295.95' ~/ """1~ /,,.:___ /J / / I T"":' / I 

/ / .,., I I l i 
I z EX. STM INL 

TC=841.84 

--EX. TELEPHONE . 
------------...._ 29 - ---- ------ / / // / /1

1; 1
1 I J I 

- .., - - 8 - - - - - _/ / / ; // / 
- -- ------- / I I I / I I 

/ \ .,C\:~ 
EX. LIGHT POLE:_/ 

__ -- -=--=---------- -=--=--=--=----830 --= -- , ----=.,// // I / I I / EX. SIGN 
--- -- -- -------- ___ 531--- -------=--------,~--/ / I I I II I I 

--- ------- --- --- - ------1:~ -::. __ ...., / / / I I 
-------- -- --- __ s32--- --- ---- -,o · -- 1 I I I I I 

PEDESTAL --------

------ -- --- ----- - ~ - _/ / / / I 
----- --- -- ----- 833--- -------- ------ - --- ./ / / / ___ ___ ---- _______ --_________ ~ ------ _,,.,./ / I 9 

-- _____ B34 ---- _______ ------ ______ ~ ~ ----- _,.,-" / £} 
-- --------- B35--------- --- ------ ----- I ~ __ .,,., ,, / 

- --- -- -- -- --- / 
---- ---------- --- -----.,:-_______ ___- EX. LIGHT POLE // 

-------- ---836 ___ --- --------- --- ----- ----- 537- - - -=-=-=--~~~~~== ---
EX. SIDEWALK 

FREDONIA AVENUE EX. STM INL 
TC=841.16 

I o'<'"~ 

o0"~ \ 

(/) 

~ 

\ 
(/) 
)> 
z 

EX. SAN MH 
RIM=843.47 

CIVIL SHEET INDEX: 

SHEET TITLE 

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN/DEMOLITION 

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 

EROSION CONTROL PLAN 

GRADING PLAN 

LANDSCAPE PLAN 

LIGHTING PLAN 

CONSTRUCTION NOTES AND DETAILS 

EROSION CONTROL DETAILS 

0 20 40 
• • • • • 

•••••------

LEGEND: 

- --- - SILT FENCE/SILT SOCK. 

- - -896- - - - EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR. 

- - · 895· - - - EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR. 

-- OHEL-- - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE. 

-- Bu El -- - BURIED ELECTRIC LINE. 

-- BuTet----- - BURIED TELEPHONE LINE. 

-- FO -- - FIBER OPTIC LINE. 

-- GAS -- - GAS LINE. 

PLAN 

-- SAN -- - SANITARY SEWER MAIN OR LATERAL. 

-- WAT -- - WATER MAIN OR SERVICE. 

••••••••••• - STORM SEWER LINE. 

8 - ELECTRIC METER. 

[81 - GAS METER. 

® - GAS VALVE. 

0 - FIRE HYDRANT. 

fl - POWER POLE. 

(§ - SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE. 

® - STORM SEWER MANHOLE. 

D - STORM SEWER INLET. 

[I) - TELEPHONE PEDESTAL. 

ITRANI 
- TRANSFORMER. 

@) - WATER VALVE. 

cii 
z 
0 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

(f) X 

> ~ 
wzx 
0::: Q ~ 

>- X 
"= X a:: X 
OX 
CJl X wx 
Cl X 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 
w 
-:, 
0 
a:: 
(l._ 

X 
WI 
>- X 
<( X 
c, I 

X 

o_ 
z 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

C1.01 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- STORM SEWER LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- BURIED ELECTRIC LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- BURIED TELEPHONE LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- FIBER OPTIC LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- GAS LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- SANITARY SEWER MAIN OR LATERAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- WATER MAIN OR SERVICE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
- GAS METER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- FIRE HYDRANT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- POWER POLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- TELEPHONE PEDESTAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- TRANSFORMER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- WATER VALVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
- GAS VALVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- STORM SEWER MANHOLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- STORM SEWER INLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
- ELECTRIC METER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
896

AutoCAD SHX Text
895

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE-THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM INL TC=841.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM INL TC=841.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM INL TC=840.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM INL TC=840.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN MH RIM=836.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN MH RIM=840.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN MH RIM=841.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN MH RIM=843.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM MH RIM=840.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM MH RIM=841.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM MH RIM=839.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN AND LANDSCAPING (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN AND LANDSCAPING (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER CORRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONIFEROUS TREE (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDIOUS TREE (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" RCP STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" PVC STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREDONIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090500304007 1.756 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090600500001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405001

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STM MH RIM=839.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT ALONG EXISTING JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT ALONG EXISTING JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PATIO (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CULVERT IE=831.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" FES IE=829.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A/C UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE STONE TRACKING PAD TO AVOID MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RAISED ISLAND AND PAVEMENT (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CANOPY (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE-THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL SHEET INDEX:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN/DEMOLITION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES AND DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. DOWNSPOUT (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CULVERT IE=837.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
- SILT FENCE/SILT SOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. OVERHEAD LINE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT DRAIN DURING REMOVALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE CONCRETE AND STAMPED CONCRETE EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT ALONG EXISTING JOINT REMOVE CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT ALONG EXISTING JOINT REMOVE STAMPED CONCRETE APRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW MOVE STONES TO CREAT NEW EDGE FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW MOVE STONES TO CREAT NEW EDGE FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT CURB HEAD FOR NEW SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'X12' FODS TRACKOUT CONTROL SYSTEM MAT 



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

PROPOSED
SITE PLAN

JDR

EPN

KJP

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. BUILDING 

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. TELEPHONE 
PEDESTAL 

• 

~ EX. HYDRANT 

r 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

i-----i-10• SETBACK 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

EX. MAILBOX 

25' SETBACK 

i--
82' 

LAWN 

LAWN 

---- -- EX. LIGHT POLE ~ 

EX. STOP SIGN 

2'x4' TACTILE 
WARNING PAD 

DUMPSTER CORRAL EX. FENCE 
,------, 

LAWN 
r'1 ---x-~-

® - - - - --1--

EX. CONCRETE 

PROPOSED 
LIGHT FIXTURE 

(j) 

47' 

4' SIDEWALK 

MATCH AT 
EXISTING JOINT EX. CONCRETE 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

24' :' < 
6"THICK SIDEWALK 
THROUGH DRIVEWAY 

PROPOSED 
LIGHT FIXTURE 62' --.,£-----I 

PROPOSED 
ACCESSIBLE 

PARKING SIGN 

• 

EX. BUILDING 
FFE=840.80 
LFE=830.30 

' . 
8' . 

PROPOSED 
12"WIDE X 6" 

CONCRETE CURB 

//. //. 

------------
PRO. A/C UNIT ~ 

EX. CONCRETE EX. RETAINING 
EX. A/C UNITS WALL 

.f 
~ • 

·-4 
7' • 

f:. 
23' 

• . 
' .f 

•• 

• . 
.f 

' 

' • 
• 

.{ 

T 
11' 

" _j • 

• 

• 
g• 

• 
.f 

® 

l"Jo-----lPROPOSED 
LIGHT FIXTURE 

• 
47' 

.{ 

' 

"g' 

PROPOSED CONCRETE • • • .. 

MATCH AT 
EXISTING JOINT 

R30' 

LAWN 

I 
I 
I 
I 

L 
I I 

I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I 1 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I 1 
I 
I 
I 

1, 1, 

I 
I I 

I 
I 

128' I I 

25' 
\SETBACK 

11 l,, 
I \ 
I ', 
I I 
I ', 
I I 

I 
I 

I I 
EX. TELEPHONE ~ I I 

PEDESTAL ~ I I 

I I I 
I I 

REPLACE APRON 

:r: -G) 
:r: 
r 
J> z 
0 

0 
:;o -< rr, 

4' SIDEWALK 

I I I 

EX. CONCRETE 61' ~ 1 

\\ 

I -...J,J._\,.}, -;, .. ~-rl 6"THICK SIDEWALK 
._ • , THROUGH DRIVEWAY 

I g' 

124' 
6"THICK SIDEWALK 
THROUGH DRIVEWAY 

LAWN PROPOSED SIGN ' 

I \ 

I 

-------- ----

I I 

52' I 4' SIDEWALK 

_J I I 
I I ------ / I I I 

I 
L --------- --1- I I 

25' SETBACK 

EX. WATER MAIN EASEMENT I I I 
/ I _1 

EX. ELECTRIC MH EX. TELEPHONE EASEMENTl_ 

EX. SIGN 

EX. LIGHT POLE h 
C) \;: 

EX. SIDEWALK 

FREDONIA AVENUE 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

\ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
\ 

I 
L 

0 20 40 
• • • • • 

•••••------

PAVING LEGEND 

~ 
~ 

D 

LEGEND: 

CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
6" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 
6" CONCRETE 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK 
4'" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 
6" CONCRETE 

(j) - PARKING STALLS IN A ROW 

SITE INFORMATION BLOCK 

Site Address 201 Regal Drive 

Site acreage (total) 1.756 Acres 
Existing Impervious Area 0.39 Acres 
Area of Disturbance 0.15 Acres 

Current Zoning ~B-_2e,_ __ _ 
Setbacks Building/Pavement 

Front 25' /10' 
Side 1 o· /1 o· 
Rear 25' /1 o· 

Number of Parking stalls provided: 20 

Surface Coverage Total: 

Im ervious 20, 146 SQ FT ( 0.46 Acres) 
Pervious 56,345 SQ FT (1.30 Acres) 
Total 76,491 SQ FT 1. 76 Acres 
Im ervious Percenta e 26.3% 

SITE PLAN NOTES: 

1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB AND FACE OF BUILDING UNLESS 
OTHERWISE NOTED. 

2. ALL STRIPING AND SIGNAGE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE WISCONSIN 
MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, LATEST EDITION. 

cii 
z 
0 
(f) 

> wz 
n:: 0 

w 
F 
F 
f-
0 
w 
--:, 
0 
QC 
(l_ 

F 
(L 

QC 
0 
CJ) 
w 
Cl 

0 
z 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

C1.02 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVING LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT 6" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 6" CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site Address

AutoCAD SHX Text
Site acreage (total)

AutoCAD SHX Text
201 Regal Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Current Zoning

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE INFORMATION BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN NOTES: 1. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB AND FACE OF BUILDING UNLESS DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB AND FACE OF BUILDING UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 2. ALL STRIPING AND SIGNAGE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE WISCONSIN ALL STRIPING AND SIGNAGE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE WISCONSIN MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, LATEST EDITION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Number of Parking stalls provided:  20

AutoCAD SHX Text
Setbacks Building/Pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Front

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'/10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Side

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'/10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rear

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'/10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Impervious Area

AutoCAD SHX Text
Area of Disturbance

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surface Coverage Total:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Impervious

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pervious

AutoCAD SHX Text
Total

AutoCAD SHX Text
Impervious Percentage

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,146 SQ FT (0.46 Acres)

AutoCAD SHX Text
76,491 SQ FT (1.76 Acres)

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
56,345 SQ FT (1.30 Acres)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PARKING STALLS IN A ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER CORRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREDONIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090500304007 1.756 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090600500001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405001

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MAIN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6" CONCRETE ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.756 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.15 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A/C UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CANOPY SEE ARCH. PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH AT EXISTING JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH AT EXISTING JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK 4" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 6" CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE STAMPED EDGE CONCRETE IN KIND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12"WIDE X 6" CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRO. A/C UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"THICK SIDEWALK THROUGH DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE APRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'x4' TACTILE WARNING PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"THICK SIDEWALK THROUGH DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"THICK SIDEWALK THROUGH DRIVEWAY



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

EROSION
CONTROL

PLAN

EPN

EPN

KJP

·

·

·

·
·
·
·
·

·

·

·

·

·

·

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. BUILDING 

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. TELEPHONE . 
PEDESTAL 

\ 
\ 

\ 

) r 
( I 
\ I 

T 
I 
I 

/ 

------
-------~ 

---

---

---- --

------

/ 

7'X12' FOOS TRACKOUT 
CONTROL SYSTEM MAT 

---
EX. SIDEWALK 

EX. LIGHT POLE 

p_c:-277,12' 

~ r:,c:-019"17'17: // 

/ 
/ 

I 

-
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

- I 
f-

/ 
I 

EX. FLAG POLE 

LAWN 

I 
I 

EX. CONCRETE 
I 

/ 
/ 

I 
I 
I 
I 

/ 

I 
I 

/ 
I 

I 
( 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

,,,---, /__, 
I 

.__ l 

I 
I 
I 

' SA SAN 
SAf':t \ 

\ 
iP 
~ 

/ 
/ 

S89"28' 48"W 98.37' 

EX. CONCRETE 

I 
\ 

LAWN 

I 
I 

I 

\ 

EX. FENCE 

JlfJr I 
I ;I ,,

;/I 
/ 

1/ 
I 

·\ 

I \ 
I 

I 
\ \ 

\ 
\ 

\ " I 
I 

\I 
' (jl 

~ 
I I 

I \ 
I 
I /1 

(J) 

N 
N 
r--
N 

25' 
\SETBACK 

\ r---
0 I 

I 
\ ·o 
\ n 
~ . 

n 
0 

\ \,11 
:;,: I 
[(l 

) 

I 
\ 

\ 

GAS 

WAT 

I 
C) 
)> 
Ul 

\ Ul 
• z 

INLET PROTECTION 
z 

\ 

\ 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Ul 

~ 

I 
:I 
~ 
1z 

i I 
I ~ 
I :-I 
I -
I G) 
I I 
I er 
I lJ> 
1 \z 1 0 
I 
I 
I 

Ul 

~ 

I 
\ 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

\ 
Ul 

~ 

\ 
Ul 
• z 

\ 

~EX. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

HYDRANT 

\ 

I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 

------

0 20 40 
• • • • • 

•••••----

LEGEND: 

- - -936- - - - EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR. 

- - · 935· - - - EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR. 

--936-- - PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR. 

--935-- - PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR. 

- - - - PROPOSED STORM SEWER. 

- - - - EXISTING STORM SEWER. ,~ a, -INSTALL EROSION CONTROL MATTING 

- - INSTALL SILT FENCE. 

- INSTALL DITCH CHECK. 

f-- - DRAINAGE ARROW. 

® - INSTALL WISDOT TYPE D INLET PROTECTION. 

STAGES OF CONSTRUCTION TIME SCHEDULE: 
MAY 6, 2024 

INSTALL SITE SILT FENCE, INLET PROTECTION AND TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES AS SHOWN ON PLANS. ANY 
ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES IF APPROVED BY THE 
VILLAGE OF FREDONIA SHALL HAVE A TRACKING PAD. 

MAY 6 2024 - AUGUST 30 2024 

STRIP TOPSOIL WITHIN THE WORK AREA AND CONSTRUCT A 
TEMPORARY STOCKPILE, TO BE SEEDED AND SILT FENCE 
PLACED AROUND THE PERIMETER. 
BEGIN PROPOSED SITE GRADING - RESEED SECTIONS OF 
PROJECT THROUGHOUT THE GRADING PROCESS TO MINIMIZE 
RUN-OFF. 
CONSTRUCT BUILDING ADDITION. 
CONTINUE SITE GRADING. 
INSTALL BASE COURSES, PROPOSED PAVIEMENTS 
INSTALL LANDSCAPING. 
APPLY FINAL STABILIZATION TO ENTIRE SITE. 

SEPTEMBER 3 - 6 2024 

ALL PERMANENT SEEDING SHALL BE COMPLETED BY 
SEPTEMBER 15. ALL TEMPORARY SEEDING SHALL BE 
COMPLETED BY OCTOBER 15 (REFER TO DNR STANDARD 1059.) 

STABILIZATION FOR ALL EXPOSED SOIL AFTER OCTOBER 15 
SHALL CONSIST OF ANIONIC POL YARCRYLAMIDE (PAM) IN 
ADDITION TO TEMPORARY SEEDING IN AREAS WITHOUT EROSION 
CONTROL MAT. PLACE PAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR 
TECHNICAL STANDARD 1050. AFTER OCTOBER 15 ALL SLOPES 
4: 1 OR STEEPER THAT ARE NOT PERMANENTLY VIEGETATED 
SHALL HAVE EROSION MAT INSTALILED IN PREPARATION OF 
WINTER CONDITIONS. 

SPREAD SALVAGED OR IMPORTED TOPSOIL IN PROPOSED LAWN 
AND LANDSCAPE AREAS AND RESTORE. 

CONTRACTOR MAY MODIFY SEQUENCING AS NEEDED TO 
COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION IF EROSION CONTROLS ARE 
MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION SITE 
EROSION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN FEDERAL, 
STATIE & LOCAL PERMITS. NOTIFY VILLAGE OF FREDONIA PRIOR 
TO CHANGE. 

AS CONDITIONS WARRANT DURING CONSTRUCTION ADDITIONAL 
BMPS SHALL BE INSTALLED TO REDUCE THE MIGRATION OF 
SEDIMENT THE THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE 

REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AFTER 
SITE IS STABILIZED AND STABILIZE AND AREAS DISTURBED BY 
REMOVAL OF BMPS. 

cii 
z 
0 
(f) 

> w 
n:: 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 
w 
--:, 
0 
QC 
(l_ 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

z X 
0 X 
F X 
(L X 

X QC X 
0 X 
CJ) X 
w X 
Cl X 

X 
w I 
>- X 
<( X 
Cl I 

X 

0 
z 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

(!) 

z LO 

~ E 
"' fri ~ w 
w ::: ., 
z <I) 

- .c: 
'O <I) 

(!) C: ·.:::: ., .. 
z ID q. 
w Ji olS 

>-
.., ., 

w ~ 
> iiio 
"' C: 0 
::::, ·- co 

<I) \"-
CJ) C: . 

0 (!) " .., I <I) <') 

CJ) ~~ 
"' NN 

N 
<( ~ 
(L 

C1.03 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAGES OF CONSTRUCTION TIME SCHEDULE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 6, 2024 INSTALL SITE SILT FENCE, INLET PROTECTION AND TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES AS SHOWN ON PLANS. ANY ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES IF APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE OF FREDONIA SHALL HAVE A TRACKING PAD.  SHALL HAVE A TRACKING PAD. MAY 6, 2024 - AUGUST 30, 2024 STRIP TOPSOIL WITHIN THE WORK AREA AND CONSTRUCT A TEMPORARY STOCKPILE, TO BE SEEDED AND SILT FENCE PLACED AROUND THE PERIMETER. BEGIN PROPOSED SITE GRADING - RESEED SECTIONS OF PROJECT THROUGHOUT THE GRADING PROCESS TO MINIMIZE RUN-OFF. CONSTRUCT BUILDING ADDITION. CONTINUE SITE GRADING. INSTALL BASE COURSES, PROPOSED PAVEMENTS BASE COURSES, PROPOSED PAVEMENTS INSTALL LANDSCAPING. APPLY FINAL STABILIZATION TO ENTIRE SITE. SEPTEMBER 3 - 6, 2024 ALL PERMANENT SEEDING SHALL BE COMPLETED BY SEPTEMBER 15. ALL TEMPORARY SEEDING SHALL BE COMPLETED BY OCTOBER 15 (REFER TO DNR STANDARD 1059.) STABILIZATION FOR ALL EXPOSED SOIL AFTER OCTOBER 15 SHALL CONSIST OF ANIONIC POLYARCRYLAMIDE (PAM) IN ADDITION TO TEMPORARY SEEDING IN AREAS WITHOUT EROSION CONTROL MAT. PLACE PAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1050. AFTER OCTOBER 15 ALL SLOPES 4:1 OR STEEPER THAT ARE NOT PERMANENTLY VEGETATED SHALL HAVE EROSION MAT INSTALLED IN PREPARATION OF WINTER CONDITIONS. SPREAD SALVAGED OR IMPORTED TOPSOIL IN PROPOSED LAWN AND LANDSCAPE AREAS AND RESTORE. CONTRACTOR MAY MODIFY SEQUENCING AS NEEDED TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION IF EROSION CONTROLS ARE MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION SITE EROSION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN FEDERAL, STATE & LOCAL PERMITS. NOTIFY VILLAGE OF FREDONIA PRIOR TO CHANGE. AS CONDITIONS WARRANT DURING CONSTRUCTION ADDITIONAL BMPS SHALL BE INSTALLED TO REDUCE THE MIGRATION OF SEDIMENT THE THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AFTER SITE IS STABILIZED AND STABILIZE AND AREAS DISTURBED BY REMOVAL OF BMPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
936

AutoCAD SHX Text
935

AutoCAD SHX Text
936

AutoCAD SHX Text
935

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED STORM SEWER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING STORM SEWER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- INSTALL SILT FENCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- INSTALL DITCH CHECK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DRAINAGE ARROW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER CORRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090500304007 1.756 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090600500001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405001

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MAIN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CULVERT IE=831.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" FES IE=829.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A/C UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
- INSTALL EROSION CONTROL MATTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CULVERT IE=837.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
700SF EROSION MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE STONE TRACKING PAD TO AVOID MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'X12' FODS TRACKOUT CONTROL SYSTEM MAT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
- INSTALL WISDOT TYPE D INLET PROTECTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTION



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

GRADING
PLAN

EPN

EPN

KJP

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. BUILDING 

EX. ASPHALT 

/ 

EX TELEPHONE - - - -
. PEDESTAL 

-- ------

----

--

----
EX. LIGHT POLE 

---- - 831------

---=--=833- - - =-----
-- -- ---_ 834 -

--835-- -- -- --

--836--

--837-- - - EX. SIDEWALK 

GAS 

WAT 

Vl 

~ 

I 

---------

Vl 

~ 

\ 

C) 
)> 
Ul 

\ 

i 

\ 

~EX. HYDRANT 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Vl 

~ 

\ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 

D 2D 4D 
• • • • •---• • 

LEGEND: 

_ - - -936 - - - - EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR. 

----935--- - EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR. 

~~936-- - PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR. 

- PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR. ~-935--

+ EX 934.23 

_ EP 934.23 

+ 934.23 

-----------

- EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION. 

EDGE OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION. _ PROPOSED 

- PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION. 

- EXISTING STORM SEWER. 

X 
X 
X 

(f) X 

z s:: 
0 X 

(f) s:: 
> X 
wzx 
0::: Q ~ 

>- X 
<L X 
QC X 
OX 
CJl X wx 
Cl X 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 
w ..., 
0 

"' (l_ 

X 
WI 
>- X 
<( X 
Cl I 

X 

o_ 
z 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

>-
.., 
" w ~ 

> iiio 
"' C: 0 
::::, ·- co "' ,._ 
CJ) C: . 

0 (!) " .., I -~ CW'.? 
CJ) :s: ~ 
"' NN 

N 
<( -(L 

C1.04 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
936

AutoCAD SHX Text
935

AutoCAD SHX Text
936

AutoCAD SHX Text
935

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING STORM SEWER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 934.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED EDGE OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP 934.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
934.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER CORRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090500304007 1.756 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090600500001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405001

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RAISED CONCRETE ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CULVERT IE=831.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15" FES IE=829.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A/C UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30



\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

JDR

JDR

KJP

”
”

”

”

”

”

”
”

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. BUILDING 

EX. ASPHALT 

\ 
\ 

\ 

) r 
( I 
\ I 

T 
I 
I 
I 

/ 

EX. 

------

/ 
/ 

I 
I 

I 
I ....--

....-- ---r 
~ 

<I) 

I 
\ 
I 
I 
\ 

LAWN \ 

LAWN 

\ 
\ 
I 

/ 
( 

I 
I 

/ 
/ 

EX. DECIDUOUS TREE 
(TYP.) 

/ 

1/ 
/ 

/ 

( 

/ 
/ 

--

/ 
/ 

I 
I 

I 
I 

--

I 
I 

--

I 
I 

/ 

EX. LIGHT POLE 

/ 
/ 

/ 

I 
I 

/ 

-
B3B ---- I 

I ~-

/ 
Cl 
X 

U1 
0 
Cl 
::E 
)> 
r ;,s; 

/ 
/ 

EX. 

/ 
I 

~ 
FLAG POLE 

EX. CONCRETE 
I 

/ 
/ 

(5) KFRG 

I 
I 

I 

/ 
/ 

I 
I 
I 

I 
( 
I 
I 
I 

I 
(1) GGBS 
(1) SJ 
(1) SDD 
(1) EA 

LAWN 
... 

EX. LANDSCAPING l -

EX. BUILDING 
FFE=840.80 
LFE=830.30 

//. //. 

-----

• 
• 

--
\ 

' ) I / 
I / 

(1) KFRG 

~-
(2) KFRG ' 

I 
l:EII • I 

(1) KFRG 

I 

/ 
/ 

EX. CONCRETE 

(1) GGBS 
(1) SJ 
(1) SDD 
(1) EA 

(1) GGBS 
(1) SJ 
(1) SDD 
(1) EA 

LAWN 

( 1) GGBS --""-- _ 
(1) SJ ~ 
( 1) SDD '--=' '--" 
(1) EA '0-(~/":~"'i'y 

I 
\ 

I 
I 

I 

\ 

' ' \ 
\ 
iP 
~ 

EX. FENCE 

~EX. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

HYDRANT 

EX. FEN_nCElt--_---j. r--1\..\..J REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL 

FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW 
~:o r MOVE STONES TO GREAT NEW EDGE 

/ - 1 FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW 

I ;I,,-
;/I 
/ 

1/ 
I 

·\ 

I \ 
I 

I 
I 
(jl 

~ 

REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL 
FENCE ANO LANDSCAPING IN ROW 
MOVE STONES TO CREAT NEW EDGE 
FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW 

I :r: 
I -

\ 
\ 

I 

I I G) 
:r: 
r \ "' I 

I 

\I 
' (jl 

~ 
I I 

I \ 
I \", 

' 
\ II 

I \ 
I \ 

\ 

I r 
-~ (I ; ~ 
6',,.7_ 1/ 

(jl 
~ 
' 

I 
I J> 

I I z 
I 0 
I 

I 0 

I I :;o 
I -
I < 
I rr, 
I I I 
I 

c'o 

I ~ 
' 
\ 
I 
I 

I I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

EX. CONCRETE 
EX. 

J Ji 
TELEPHO~E 

PEDESTAL / 
/ __ ; 

I I 
I 
I 

\ --+-',,::-::::\I 
\ 
\ 
I 
I 
) 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
(6) BRJ 

\ 

\ 

I 
\ 

\ 

L 
--- ~ I /--"J/ ;11 I I I 

- - - - - - - - - ,; /// ,,- "" / ; I / I / 
I 

-- - - - - - _ - 829· - - - - - - - - - - - - - ,,,. / I / / I I I I _-.., _______ _ ____ ./ I/ I / I I I I 
-- ---- ____ __/ / / I ; I EX. TELEPHONE . ~~ - LIGHT POLE/ 

I -- ----- --
_________ ----B30 -- ---- _,./ / / / / I I / EX. SIGN 

------------ -- ------ --------=-./ // / I / I I I 
---831--- - I 

------ - --- ------- _,,, / / / I I 
--- ------ --- 2 - --- ---- / / / / / / 

------ ----83 -- ----- I / 
----- -- -- --- --------- ------ - // / / J /, --- __ --- ----833--- ____ ---- --------- _ _.,- I I I !J 

--- ------ ------ -------~ ------ _ __,,. / I I'. 
- - __ - B34 - - - - _ - - - - - - - - - - - - - ____ - - - _,,. / ; / / -- --- --- - _,,, _/ / 

5 ---- -- ---- ---- - / ---83 -- __ --- - - r --- _________ _- EX. LIGHT POLE /..-

----------=- --B36---- --- ---------- -- ----- ---

PEDESTAL -------~ 

---

--
837----=-=-=--------~== ---

EX. SIDEWALK 

KEY QTY 

(3) 
ABS 2 
SSC 1 

(23) 
SJ 11 
GGBS 12 

(27) 
EA 12 
BRJ 6 
WBJ 9 

(21) 
KFRG 21 

(11) 
SDD 11 

NOTES: 

0 20 40 
• • • • • 

•••••------

PLANT LIST 

SIZE COMMON NAME 

I QI'/ QB~IIME~L'II IBEES 
1½ AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY 
1½ SPRING SNOW CRAB 

PECIPVQUS SHRUBS 
5 gal SPIREA JAPONICA 'ANTHONY WATERER' 
5 gal GLOW GIRL BIRCHLEAF SPIREA 

UPRIGHT EVERGREEN SHRUBS 
4 EMERALD ARBORVITAE 
1 G BLUE RUG JUNIPER 
4" \\1CHITA BLUE JUNIPER 

ORNAMENTAL GRASS 
5 GAL KARL FOERSTER REED GRASS 

PERENNIALS 
5 GAL STELLA D'ORO DAYLILL Y 

ROOT 

BB 
BB 

CON 
CON 

BB 
BB 
BB 

CON 

PLUG 

1) DESIGNATED LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF 6 OF TOPSOIL, STARTER FERTILIZER, 
AND LOCALLY GROWN BLUEGRASS SOD. 

2) PARKING LOT ISLANDS AND DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE MULCHED 111TH #2 WASHED 
STONE MULCH SPREAD TO A DEPTH OF 3 OVER WEED BARRIER FABRIC. 

3) FOUNDATION PLANTING BEDS AND DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE MULCHED WITH 
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH SPREAD TO A DEPTH OF 3. 

4) INDIVIDUAL TREES AND SHRUB GROUPINGS IN LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SHREDDED HARDWOOD 
BARK MULCH PLANT RINGS (4' DIAMETER) SPREAD TO A DEPTH OF 3 

5) DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE SEPARATED FROM LAWN AREAS 111TH 5 BLACK VINYL 
EDGING. 

6) OWNER \\1LL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AFTER COMPLETION AND 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT. 

FREDONIA AVENUE ------

cii 
z 
0 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

(f) X 

> ~ 
wzx 
0::: Q ~ 

>- X 
"= X a:: X 
OX 
CJl X wx 
Cl X 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 
w 
-:, 
0 
a:: 
"-

X 
WI 
>- X 
<( X 
Cl I 

X 

Oz 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

(!) 

z LO 

~ E 
"' fri ~ w 
w ::: ., 
z <I) 

- .c: 
"O <I) 

(!) C: ·.:::: ., .. 
z ID q. 
w Ji olS 

>-
.., ., 

w ~ 
> iiio 
"' C: 0 
::::, ·- co 

<I) \'-
CJ) C: . 

0 (!) " .., I <I) <') 

CJ) ~~ 
"' NN 

N 
<( ~ 
a. 

C1.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER CORRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREDONIA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090600500001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405001

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MAIN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PLANTING (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONIFEROUS TREE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. DECIDUOUS TREE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) ABS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) ABS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) BRJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) SSC

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) EA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) EA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANT LIST KEY QTY SIZE COMMON NAME ROOT QTY SIZE COMMON NAME ROOT SIZE COMMON NAME ROOT COMMON NAME ROOT ROOT       (3)           LOW ORNAMENTAL TREES  LOW ORNAMENTAL TREES  ABS  2 1 ” AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY BB  2 1 ” AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY BB 1 ” AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY BB 12AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY BB BB SSC  1 1 ” SPRING SNOW CRAB BB  1 1 ” SPRING SNOW CRAB BB 1 ” SPRING SNOW CRAB BB 12SPRING SNOW CRAB BB BB (23)          DECIDUOUS SHRUBS         DECIDUOUS SHRUBS DECIDUOUS SHRUBS SJ  11 5 gal    SPIREA JAPONICA 'ANTHONY WATERER'  CON  11 5 gal    SPIREA JAPONICA 'ANTHONY WATERER'  CON 5 gal    SPIREA JAPONICA 'ANTHONY WATERER'  CON CON GGBS  12 5 gal    GLOW GIRL BIRCHLEAF SPIREA CON  12 5 gal    GLOW GIRL BIRCHLEAF SPIREA CON 5 gal    GLOW GIRL BIRCHLEAF SPIREA CON CON       (27)           UPRIGHT EVERGREEN SHRUBS  UPRIGHT EVERGREEN SHRUBS  EA  12 4”  EMERALD ARBORVITAE BB  12 4”  EMERALD ARBORVITAE BB 4”  EMERALD ARBORVITAE BB  EMERALD ARBORVITAE BB BB BRJ  6 1 G  BLUE RUG JUNIPER BB  6 1 G  BLUE RUG JUNIPER BB 1 G  BLUE RUG JUNIPER BB  BLUE RUG JUNIPER BB BB WBJ  9 4"   WICHITA BLUE JUNIPER BB  9 4"   WICHITA BLUE JUNIPER BB 4"   WICHITA BLUE JUNIPER BB   WICHITA BLUE JUNIPER BB BB (21)           ORNAMENTAL GRASS  ORNAMENTAL GRASS  KFRG  21 5 GAL   KARL FOERSTER REED GRASS CON 5 GAL   KARL FOERSTER REED GRASS CON   KARL FOERSTER REED GRASS CON CON       (11)           PERENNIALS   PERENNIALS      SDD   11    5 GAL    STELLA D'ORO DAYLILLY             PLUG    STELLA D'ORO DAYLILLY             PLUG            PLUG          PLUG 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1) DESIGNATED LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF 6” OF TOPSOIL, STARTER FERTILIZER, DESIGNATED LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF 6” OF TOPSOIL, STARTER FERTILIZER,  OF TOPSOIL, STARTER FERTILIZER, AND LOCALLY GROWN BLUEGRASS SOD. 2) PARKING LOT ISLANDS AND DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE MULCHED WITH #2 WASHED PARKING LOT ISLANDS AND DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE MULCHED WITH #2 WASHED STONE MULCH SPREAD TO A DEPTH OF 3” OVER WEED BARRIER FABRIC.  OVER WEED BARRIER FABRIC. 3) FOUNDATION PLANTING BEDS AND DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE MULCHED WITH FOUNDATION PLANTING BEDS AND DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE MULCHED WITH SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH SPREAD TO A DEPTH OF 3”. . 4) INDIVIDUAL TREES AND SHRUB GROUPINGS IN LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SHREDDED HARDWOOD INDIVIDUAL TREES AND SHRUB GROUPINGS IN LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH PLANT RINGS (4' DIAMETER) SPREAD TO A DEPTH OF 3” 5) DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE SEPARATED FROM LAWN AREAS WITH 5” BLACK VINYL DESIGNATED PLANTING BEDS TO BE SEPARATED FROM LAWN AREAS WITH 5” BLACK VINYL  BLACK VINYL EDGING.  6) OWNER WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AFTER COMPLETION AND OWNER WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AFTER COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) GGBS (2) SJ (2) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090500304007 1.756 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) EA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) EA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) EA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS (1) SJ (1) SDD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) EA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION FFE=840.80 LFE=830.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) KFRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GGBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW MOVE STONES TO CREAT NEW EDGE FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE ONE SECTION OF SPLIT RAIL FENCE AND LANDSCAPING IN ROW MOVE STONES TO CREAT NEW EDGE FOR LANDSCAPE BED AT ROW



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

LIGHTING
PLAN

EPN

EPN

KJP

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. BUILDING 

EX. ASPHALT 

EX. TELEPHONE 
PEDESTAL 

• 

r 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

LAWN 

LAWN 

~ 
QJ 
I 

EX. DECIDUOUS TREE 
(TYP.) 

--

+D. 03 

+D· 02 +D- 4 +D· • 

----

• .69 

+ .1 

!'2 
0 
[Tl 
~+ 6 +1.4 
J> 

~ 

EX. LIGHT POLE 

+D.38 .25 +D.22 

•• .36 -

•• .85 +D•-~ c-/0'0 •• .55 •• .65 •• .74 •• .8 

EX. CONCRETE 

+ 6 +1.6 +D.97 JJ.69 +D.63 JJ.68 +D.79 JJ.89 +D.95 JJ.93 +D.84 JJ.74 +D.64 . . 
+ 7 

.{ . 
.•• • •• .EPi 

~ 
+1- 5 +D- 4 +D· 

• 

1.5 +1- 5 +1.6 +1. 4 +D- 5 +D. 1 

OB 
MH: 20' 

.• •• .72 +1- 5 +1.B +1- 4 •• .82 :;.• .47 

LAWN . . . 
+D. +D• B .,.•. 3 

. . +D. 3D +D-24 +D. 

• 

3 +D- 4 '·:· ._· ,· .· .. 

.•· . . 

+D-2 

/\Cl I 
. OBI +D. 05 ••.• 4 

L-----
.21 •• .17 .10 • •.• 5 • •.• 3 •• .02\ ~ ~ 

EX. CONCRETE 

EX. RETAINING WALL 

r 
Mt • 
•· 1 • • I • 

l . 
. 

• 

.{ 

• 
• 

• 
.{ .. 

CONCRETE'· 

. 

• • .. 

LAWN 

EX. CONCRETE 
EX. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 1, 

TELEPHOlE J 
PEDESTAL 

I 
I 

CORRAL 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I ~I 

1

1 1, 

I 
I 
I , 
I 
I 
I 
I ', 

I 11 

I I 
I I 

I 
I 1 

\

I I 
I I 
I ' 
' I 
\ I 
I I 

I r EX. CONIFEROUS TREE d (TYP.) 

~ 
LAWN 

I 

eeoeos,1 s,c, ') 
I 

'I I 
I I 
I I 

I \ 

--- --- -------
__________ _J 

/ 

I I 

I I 
L --- ---

/ 
I I 
I I 
I I _I 

EX. WATER MAIN EASEMENT-~-

/ 
EX. ELECTRIC MH EX. TELEPHONE EASEMENT l 

- -·-· 

EX. SIGN 

LUM IN AIRE SCHEDULE 

S)'IT1bol Qty Label Manufacturer Description Arrangement Lum. Lumens Lum. Watts LLF 

--El 2 OA COOPER LIGHTING SOLUTIONS PRV-C15-D-UNV-T3-BZ-HSS SINGLE 6,460 52 0.900 
- LUMARK (FORMERLY EATON) 

--El 1 OB COOPER LIGHTING SOLUTIONS PRV-C15-D-U NV-T3-BZ SINGLE 7,110 52 0.900 
- LUMARK (FORMERLY EATON) 

~EX. HYDRANT 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

:r: \ 
-

I G) 
:r: 
r 
J> 

I z 
0 

0 

I :;o -< rr, 

I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
\ 

I 
L 

EX. LIGHT POLE / 

CALCULATION SUMMARY 

Label Cole Type Units 

PARKING llluminance Fe 
AREA 

NOTES: 

SINGLE FIXTURE 

J 

..... -I ' 
l I I I 

LUMARK LIGHT FIXT 

17' V PARKING LOT 
STYLE POLE 

" ) \ 

3' 

FINISHED 
GRADE AT 

LIGHT BASE 
LOCATION 

POLE A DETAIL 

PARKING LOT LIGHTING DETAIL 

0 20 40 
• • • • • 

•••••------

1) STANDARD REFLECTANCE OF 80/50/20 UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE 
2) NOT A CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT. FOR DESIGN PURPOSES ONLY 

URE 

3) STANDARD INDOOR CALC POINTS @ 30 A.F.F. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE 
4) STANDARD OUTDOOR CALC POINTS @ GRADE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE 
5) PSE ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR INSTALLED LIGHT LEVELS DUE TO 

FIELD CONDITIONS, ETC. 

Avg Max Min Avg/Min Mox/Min 

0.68 1.9 0.00 N.A. N.A. 

cii 
z 
0 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

(f) X 

> ~ 
wzx 
0::: Q ~ 

>- X 
"= X a:: X 
OX 
/Jl X wx 
Cl X 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 
w 
---:, 
0 
QC 
0.. 

X 
WI 
>- X 
<( X 
c, I 

X 

Oz 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

(!) 

z LO 

~ E 
"' fri ~ w 
w ::: ., 
z <I) 

- .c: 
'O <I) 

(!) C: ·.:::: ., .. 
z ID q. 
w Ji olS 

>-
.., ., 

w ~ 
> iiio 
"' C: 0 
::::, ·- co <I) ,._ 

/J) C: . 
0 (!) " .., I <I) <') 

/J) :i:~ 
"' NN 

N 
<( ~ 
a. 

C1.06 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1) STANDARD REFLECTANCE OF 80/50/20 UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE STANDARD REFLECTANCE OF 80/50/20 UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE 2) NOT A CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT, FOR DESIGN PURPOSES ONLY NOT A CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT, FOR DESIGN PURPOSES ONLY 3) STANDARD INDOOR CALC POINTS @ 30 A.F.F. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE STANDARD INDOOR CALC POINTS @ 30 A.F.F. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE 4) STANDARD OUTDOOR CALC POINTS @ GRADE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE STANDARD OUTDOOR CALC POINTS @ GRADE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE 5) PSE ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR INSTALLED LIGHT LEVELS DUE TO PSE ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR INSTALLED LIGHT LEVELS DUE TO FIELD CONDITIONS, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATION SUMMARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Label

AutoCAD SHX Text
CalcType

AutoCAD SHX Text
Units

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max

AutoCAD SHX Text
Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avg/Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
Max/Min

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Illuminance

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fc

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Symbol

AutoCAD SHX Text
Qty

AutoCAD SHX Text
Label

AutoCAD SHX Text
Manufacturer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arrangement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lum. Lumens

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lum. Watts

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OA

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER LIGHTING SOLUTIONS - LUMARK (FORMERLY EATON)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRV-C15-D-UNV-T3-BZ-HSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,460

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.900

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER LIGHTING SOLUTIONS - LUMARK (FORMERLY EATON)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRV-C15-D-UNV-T3-BZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7,110

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.900

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE AT LIGHT BASE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE A DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT LIGHTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STONE MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090600500001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090610405001

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION FFE=840.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BUILDING FFE=840.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUMARK LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT STYLE POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER CORRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MAIN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONIFEROUS TREE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. DECIDUOUS TREE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. A/C UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OA MH: 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OA MH: 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB MH: 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX KEY# 090500304007 1.756 AC



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

CONSTRUCTION
SPECIFICATIONS

AND DETAILS

EPN

EPN

KJP

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES: 
1. 'THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO THE \\1SCONSIN D.O.T. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION, THE 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SE\\1ER & WATER IN \\1SCONSIN, AND WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, SPS 360 382-383, AND 'THE LOCAL ORDINANCES AND SPECIFICATIONS. 

2. 'THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL PERMITS REQUIRED FOR EXECUTION OF THE WORK. 'THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT HIS WORK ACCORDING TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF 'THE PERMITS. 

3. 'THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY 'THE OWNER AND THE MUNICIPALITY FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. 

4. 'THE MUNICIPALITY SHALL HAVE 'THE RIGHT TO INSPECT, APPROVE, AND REJECT 'THE CONSTRUCTION OF 'THE PUBLIC PORTIONS OF THE WORK. THE OWNER SHALL HAVE 'THE RIGHT TO INSPECT, 
APPROVE, AND REJECT THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL PRIVATE PORTIONS OF THE WORK. 

5. 'THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY THE OWNER, 'THE ENGINEER, AND 'THE MUNICIPALITY, 'THEIR AGENTS, ETC, FROM ALL LIABILITY INVOLVED 1111H THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND TESTING OF 
THE WORK ON THIS PROJECT. 

6. SITE SAFETY SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. 

7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FIELD VERIFYING ALL UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE AT 
1-800-242-8511 TO NOTIFY 'THE UTILITIES OF HIS INTENTIONS, AND TO REQUEST FIELD STAKING OF EXISTING UTILITIES. 

8. SILT FENCE AND OTHER EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES MUST BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OR ANY OTHER LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY. FOLLOW THE SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION ON THE 
EROSION CONTROL PLAN FOR MORE DETAILS. INSPECTIONS SHALL BE MADE \\1EEKLY OR AFTER EVERY RAINFALL OF 0.5" OR MORE. REPAIRS SHALL BE MADE IMMEDIATELY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL 
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES ONCE 'THE 'THREAT OF EROSION HAS PASSED Wl1H THE APPROVAL OF 'THE GOVERNING AGENCY. 

9. ANY ADJACENT PROPERTIES OR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAYS WHICH ARE DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION MUST BE RESTORED BY THE CONTRACTOR. 

10. TRASH AND DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED TO ACCUMULATE ON 'THIS SITE AND THE SITE SHALL BE CLEAN UPON COMPLETION OF WORK. 

11. 'THE OWNER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO HAVE ALL MATERIALS USED IN CONSTRUCTION TESTED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH 'THESE SPECIFICATIONS. 

SPECIFICATIONS FOR GRAPING & EROSION CONTROL: 
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE COMPUTATIONS OF ALL GRADING AND FOR ACTUAL LAND BALANCE, INCLUDING UTILITY TRENCH SPOIL. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL 

IMPORT OR EXPORT MATERIAL AS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE 'THE PROJECT. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY OWNER OF 'THE NEED TO IMPORT OR HAUL OFF SOIL. ON-SITE LOCATIONS SUITABLE FOR 
BORROW OR FILL MAY BE PRESENT. COORDINATE WITH OWNER. 

2. 'THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING SOIL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. A GEOTECHNICAL REPORT MAY BE AVAILABLE FROM THE OWNER. 

3. SITE SHALL BE CLEARED TO THE LIMITS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. REMOVE VEGETATION FROM THE SITE BURNING IS NOT PERMlffiD. PROTECT TREES AND OTHER FEATURES FROM DAMAGE 111TH FENCING. 

4. THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPACTION AND FILL PLACEMENT IN THE FIELD. THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER MAY SUPERCEDE THESE SPECIFICATIONS IF THERE IS 
GOOD CAUSE TO DO SO. AN EXPLANATION MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE ENGINEER IN WRITING BEFORE ANY DEVIATIONS ARE MADE. 

5. IF NO GEOTECHNICAL RECOMMENDATION IS AVAILABLIE, THEN THE FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS SHALL APPLY. ALL FILL SHALL BE CONSIDERED STRUCTURAL FILL AND SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE 
111TH THE FOLLOWING: THE COMPACTED FILL SUBGRADE SHALL CONSIST OF AND SHALL BE UNDERLAIN BY SUITABLE BEARING MATERIALS, FREE OF ALL ORGANIC, FROZEN OR OTHER DELETERIOUS 
MATERIAL AND INSPECTED AND APPROVED BY THE RESIDENT GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.PREPARATION OF 'THE SUBGRADE, AFTER STRIPPING, SHALL CONSIST OF PROOF-ROLLING TO DETECT UNSTABLE 
AREAS THAT MIGHT BE UNDERCUT, AND COMPACTING THE SCARIFIED SURFACE TO THE SAME MINIMUM DENSITY INDICATED BELOW.THE COMPACTED FILL MATERIALS SHALL BE FREE OF ANY 
DELETERIOUS, ORGANIC OR FROZEN MATTER AND SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM LIQUID LIMIT (ASTM-0-423) AND PLASTICITY INDEX (ASTM 0-424) IF 30 AND 10 RESPECTIFULLY, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY 
TESTED AND FOUND TO HAVE LOW EXPANSIVE PROPERTIES AND APPROVED BY AN EXPERIENCED SOILS ENGINEER. THE TOP TWELVE (12") INCHES OF COMPACTED FILL SHOULD HAVE A MAXIMUM THREE 
(3") INCH PARTICLE DIAMETER AND ALL UNDERLYING COMPACTED FILL A MAXIMUM SIX (6") INCH PARTICLE DIAMETER UNLESS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED BY AN EXPERIENCED SOILS ENGINEER. ALL FILL 
MATERIAL MUST BE TESTED AND APPROVED UNDER THE DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION OF AN EXPERIENCED SOILS ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT, IF THE FILL IS TO PROVIDE NON-FROST SUSCEPTIBLE 
CHARACTERISTICS, IT MUST BE CLASSIFIED AS A CLEAN GW, GP, SW, OR SP PER UNITED SOIL CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM(ASTM D-24B7). FOR STRUCTURAL FILL 'THE DENSITY OF 'THE STRUCTURAL 
COMPACTED FILL AND SCARIFIED SUBGRADE AND GRADES SHALL NOT BE LESS 'THAN 95 PERCENT OF 'THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY 'THE STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D-698) Wl1H 
'THE EXCEPTION TO 'THE TOP 12 INCHES OF PAVEMENT SUBGRADE WHICH SHALL A MINIMUM IN-SITU DENSITY OF 100 PERCENT OF THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY, OR 5 PERCENT HIGHER THAN 
UNDERLYING FILL MATERIALS. THE MOISTURE CONTENT OF COHESIVE SOIL SHALL NOT VARY BY MORE 'THAN -1 TO +3 PERCENT AND GRANULAR SOIL ±3 PERCENT OF OPTIMUM WHEN PLACED AND 
COMPACTED OR RECOMPACTED, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED BY THE SOILS ENGINEER TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION THE TYPE OF MATERIALS AND COMPACTION EQUIPMENT BEING USED. THE 
COMPACTION EQUIPMENT SHOULD CONSIST OF SUITABLE MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED FOR SOIL COMPACTION. BULLDOZERS OR SIMILAR TRACKED VEHICLES ARE TYPICALLY NOT 
SUITABLE FOR COMPACTION. MATERIAL THAT IS TOO \\1ET TO PERMIT PROPER COMPACTION MAY BE SPREAD ON THE FILL AND PERMITTED TO DRY. DISCING,HARROWING OR PULVERIZING MAY BE 
NECESSARY TO REDUCE THE MOISTURE CONTENT TO A SATISFACTORY VALUE, AFTER WHICH IT SHALL BE COMPACTED. THE FINISHED SUBGRADE AREAS OF THE SITE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 100 
PERCENT OF THE STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D-398) MAXIMUM DENSITY. 

6. NO FILL SHALL BE PLACED ON A WET OR SOFT SUBGRADE 'THE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PROOF-ROLLED AND INSPECTED BY 'THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER BEFORE ANY MATERIAL IS PLACED. 

7. SUBGRADE TOLERANCES ARE +/- 1" FOR LANDSCAPE AREAS AND +/- j" FOR ALL PAVEMENT AND BUILDING AREAS. 

8. TOPSOIL SHALL BE FREE OF DELETERIOUS MATERIALS, ROOTS, OLD VEGETATION, ROCKS OVER 2• DIAMETER AND SHALL NOT BE EXCESSIVELY CLAYIEY IN NATURE. NO CLUMPS LARGER 'THAN 4" ARE 
ACCEPTABLIE. TOPSOIL MAY BE AMENDED AS NEEDED WITH SAND OR COMPOST TO BE LOOSE WHEN SPREAD. 

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN SITE DRAINAGE 'THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. THIS MAY INCLUDE THE EXCAVATION OF TEMPORARY DITCHED OR PUMPING TO ALLEVIATE WATER PONDING. ANY 
DEWATERING SHALL NOT GO DIRECTILY TO STREAMS, CREEKS, WETLANDS OR OTHER ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS WITHOUT BEING TREATED FIRST. A DIRT BAG OR OTHER DEWATERING 
TREATMENT DEVICE MAY BE USED TO CAPTURE SEDIMENT FROM THE PUMPED WATER. 

10. THE STONE TRACKING PAD SHALL BE INSTALLIED PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION. THE TRACKING PAD IS TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN A CONDITION, WHICH WILL PREVENT THE TRACK OF 
MUD OR DRY SEDIMENT ONTO THE ADJACENT PUBLIC STREETS. SEDIMENT REACHING THE PUBLIC ROAD SHALL BE REMOVED BY STREET CLEANING (NOT HYDRAULIC FLUSHING) BEFORE THE END OF 
EACH WORKDAY. 

11. SOIL STOCKPILES SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 75 FEET FROM LAKES, STREAMS, WETILANDS, DITCHES, DRAINAGE WAYS, CURBS AND GUTTERS OR OTHER STORMWATER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM, 
UNLESS 01HERWISE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER. MEASURES SHALL BE TAKEN TO MINIMIZE EROSION AND RUNOFF FROM ANY SOIL STOCKPILES THAT WILL LIKELY REMAIN FOR MORE THAN FIVE 
WORKING DAYS. ANY STOCKPILE THAT REMAINS FOR MORE THAN 30 DAYS SHALL BE COVERED OR TREATED 111TH STABILIZATION PRACTICES SUCH AS TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT SEEDING AND 
MULCHING. 

12. EROSION CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO GRADING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE PROPERLY MAINTAINED FOR MAXIMUM EFFECTIVENESS UNTIL VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED. ALL EROSION 
CONTROL MEASURES AND STRUCTURES SERVING THE SITE MUST BE INSPECTED AT LEAST \\1EEKLY OR WITHIN 24 HOURS OF A 0.5 INCH RAIN EVENT. ALL MAINTENANCE WILL FOLLOW AN INSPECTION 
\\11HIN 24 HOURS. 

13. CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 3: 1. 

14. EROSION CONTROL IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROJECT. EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS SHOWN SHALL BE THE MINIMUM PRECAUTIONS THAT WILL BE 
ALLOWED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RECOGNIZING AND CORRECTING ALL EROSION CONTROL PROBLEMS THAT ARE A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. ADDITIONAL EROSION 
CONTROL MEASURES, AS REQUESTIED IN WRITING BY THE STATE OR LOCAL INSPECTORS, OR 'THE DEVELOPER'S ENGINEER, SHALL BE INSTALLED Wl1HIN 24 HOURS. 

15. ALL DISTURBED SLOPES OF 4:1 OR GREATER AND DRAINAGE SWALIES SHALL BE STABILIZED 111TH CURLEX EROSION CONTROL FABRIC (INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS). 

SPEClflCATIONS FOR PAVING: 
1. AGGREGATES USED IN THE CRUSHED STONE BASE SHALL CONFORM TO THE GRADATION REQUIREMENTS SECTIONS 301.2 AND 305.2.2 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THICKNESS SHALL BE PER 

THE DETAIL ON THE PLANS. BASE SHALL BE 1-1/4" INCH DIAMETER LIMESTONE TRAFFIC BOND AGGREGATE BASE COURSE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. SUBSTITUTION AND/OR RECYCLED MATERIALS 
MAY BE ALLOWED Wl1H APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER. 

2. SUBGRADE SHALL BE PROOFROLLED AND APPROVED BY A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF STONE BASE. EXCAVATE UNSUITABLE AREAS AND REPLACE 111TH BREAKER RUN STONE 
AND RECOMPACT. REFER TO THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS. 

3. EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL BE SAWCUT IN NEAT STRAIGHT LINES TO FULL DEPTH AT ANY POINT WHERE EXISTING PAVEMENT IS REMOVED. CURB AND WALIK SHALL BE REMOVED TO THE NEAREST 
JOINT. REMOVED PAVEMENT SHALL BE REPLACED 111TH THE SAME SECTION AS EXISTING. MUNICIPAL STANDARDS MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL WORK. 

4. ASPHALT FOR PARKING AREAS AND THE PRIVATE ROAD SHALL BE PER THE DETAILS MATERIALS AND PLACEMENT SHALL CONFORM TO THE DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, SECTION 450 AND 460 LT 
58-28 S IS REQUIRED UNLIESS NOTED OTHERWISE A COMMERCIAL GRADE MIX MAY BE SUBSTITUTED ONLY WITH APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER. 

5. TACK COAT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE Wl1H THE SUBSECTION 455.2.5 OF 'THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THE RATE OF APPLICATION SHALL BE 0.05 GAL/SY. 

6. CONCRETE FOR CURB, DRIVEWAYS, WALKS, AND NON-FLOOR SLABS SHALL CONFORM TO SECTION 415 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, GRADE A, ASTM C-94, 6 BAG MIX 111TH A MINIMUM 28 DAY 
COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,500 PSI. JOINTING SHALL BE PER SECTION 415.3.7 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS WITH CONSTRUCTION JOINTS HAVING A MAXIMUM SPACING OF 10". EXPANSION 
JOINTS SHALL BE PROVIDED EVERY 50'. CONCRETE SHALL BE FINISHED PER SECTION 415.3.8 WITH A MEDIUM BROOM TEXTURE. A CURING MEMBRANE IN CONFORMANCE 111TH SECTION 415.3.12 IS 
REQUIRED. 

7. PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE PAINT IN ACCORDANCE 111TH \\1SCONSIN DOT SECTION 646 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND WITH LOCAL CODES. THE FOLL0\\1NG ITEMS SHALL BE PAINTED 
111TH COLORS NOTED BELOW: 

PARKING STALLS: WHITE 
PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALKS: WHITE 
LANE STRIPING WHERE SEPARATING TRAFFIC IS MOVING IN OPPOSITE DIRECTIONS: YIELLOW 
LANE STRIPING WHERE SEPARATING TRAFFIC IS MOVING IN SAME DIRECTIONS: WHITE 
ADA SYIMBOLS: WHITE 

RESTORATION NOTES: 
1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT STREET PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK AREAS, SHALL RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF FOUR (4) INCHES OF TOPSOIL, FERTILIZER, SEED AND MULCH. RESTORATION WILL OCCUR AS 

SOON AFTER THE DISTURBANCE AS PRACTICAL. LAWN AREAS 111TH SLOPES GREATER THAN 4: 1 SHALL BE SEEDED ~TH OLDS "NOMOW" MIX OR EQUAL. ALL OTHER DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE 
SEEDED WITH MADISON PARKS MIX OR EQUAL. MIXTURES SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE ~TH SECTION 630 OF D.O.T. SPECIFICATIONS. 

2. AN EQUAL AMOUNT OF ANNUAL RYEGRASS SHALL BE ADDED TO THE MIX. SEED MIXTURES SHALL BE APPLIED AT THE RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET. FERTILIZER SHALL BE 
APPLIED AT TIHE RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET. FERTILIZER SHALL MEET THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS THAT FOLLOW: NITROGEN, NOT LESS THAN 16%: PHOSPHORIC ACID, 
NOT LESS THAN 6%; POTASH, NOT LESS 'THAN 6%. 

3. ALL FINISH GRADED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED BY SEPTEMBER 15TH. IF THE SITE DOES NOT HAVIE FINISH GRADED AREAS COMPLETED BY OCTOBER 15TH, ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL 
BE RESTORED WITH TEMPORARY SEEDING (COVER CROP). AREAS NEEDING PROTECTION DURING PERIODS WHEN PERMANENT SEEDING IS NOT APPLIED SHALL BE SEEDED WITH ANNUAL SPECIES FOR 
TEMPORARY PROTECTION. SEE TABLE 1 OF 'THE WISCONSIN DNR CONSERVATION PRACTICE STANDARD 1059, FOR SEEDING RATES OF COMMONLY USED SPECIES. 'THE RESIDUE FROM THIS CROP MAY 
EITHER BE INCORPORATED INTO THE SOIL DURING SEEDBED PREPARATION AT THE NEXT PERMANENT SEEDING PERIOD OR LEFT ON THE SOIL SURFACE AND THE PLANTING MADE AS A NO-TILL 
SEEDING. 

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR A SATISFACTORY STAND OF GRASS ON ALL SEEDED AREAS FOR ONE YIEAR AFTER 'THE PROJECT'S FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 

NEENAH 4984-300 
DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE 

(OR EQUAL) 

ADA COMPLIANT ACCESSIBLE RAMP DETAIL 

BLUE, SQUARE 
BACKGROUND 

PAINT 
t------ 5' -8" -----i 

WHITE 
PAINT 

NOTE: GRID FOR LAYOUT PURPOSES ONLY 

ADA COMPLIANT ACCESSIBLE STALL PAINTED SYMBOL 

4" -3500 PSI (28 DAY 
COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH) AIR 

ENTRAINED CONCRETE 
( 4.5-7.5% AIR ENTRAINED) 

6" BASE COURSE WDOT 
SECTION 305 ¾" CRUSHED 

AGGREGATE 

COMPACTED SUBGRADE 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION 

6"-4000 PSI (28 DAY 
COMPRESSIVE STRENG1H) AIR 

ENTRAINED CONCRETE 
( 4.5-7.5% AIR ENTRAINED) 

6" BASE COURSE WDOT 
SECTION 305 1 ¼" 

CRUSHED AGGREGATE 

<I 

~ 

COMPACTED SUBGRADE 

CONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION 

12" 

1 

-----i';==a:aaiF~----USE (2) STAINLESS STEEL 
BOLTS & WASHERS 

18" 

5' 

RESERVED 
PARKINII 

~ --.,..,:r.:= 
THIS SPAC 

0 

VAN 
ACCE881LE 

½" 

6" 

VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGN WHERE 
APPLICABLE 

$200 FINE SIGN WHERE 
APPLICABLE 

~t-----STEEL PIPE OR PAINTED 
CHANNEL 

REMOVABLE SIGN BASE 
(OPTIONAL FOR PAVING OR 
SIDEWALK AREAS) 

ASPHALT PAVING OR 

-+-----'-----+-+-----'----'--GRASS/LANDSCAPING 

COMPACTED SOIL 

2' 

~1'-0"~ 

NOTE: SIGN SHALL COMPY WITH CURRENT STATE AND ADA GUIDELINES 

ADA COMPLIANT ACCESSIBLE SIGN DETAIL 

cii 
z 
0 
(f) 

> w 
n:: 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 w 
-:, 
0 
QC 
()._ 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

z X 
0 X 
F X 
(L X 

X QC X 
0 X 
CJ) X 
w X 
Cl X 

X 
w I 
>- X 
<( X 
Cl I 

X 

0 
z 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

(!) 

z LO m a E 
"' "' ~ w LO 

w ~ 
., 

z <I) 
- .c: 

'O <I) 

(!) C: ·.:::: ., .. 
z ID q. 
w Ji olS 

>-
.., ., 

w ~ 
> iiio 
"' c: a 
::::, ·- co <I) ,._ 

CJ) C: . 
0 (!) " .., I 
<I) "' 

CJ) :i:~ 
"' NN 

N 
<( ~ 
(L 

C2.01 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO THE WISCONSIN D.O.T. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION, THE THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO THE WISCONSIN D.O.T. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION, THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER & WATER IN WISCONSIN, AND WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, SPS 360 382-383, AND THE LOCAL ORDINANCES AND SPECIFICATIONS. 2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL PERMITS REQUIRED FOR EXECUTION OF THE WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT HIS WORK ACCORDING TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL PERMITS REQUIRED FOR EXECUTION OF THE WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT HIS WORK ACCORDING TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITS. 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE MUNICIPALITY FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE MUNICIPALITY FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. 4. THE MUNICIPALITY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO INSPECT, APPROVE, AND REJECT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PUBLIC PORTIONS OF THE WORK.  THE OWNER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO  INSPECT, THE MUNICIPALITY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO INSPECT, APPROVE, AND REJECT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PUBLIC PORTIONS OF THE WORK.  THE OWNER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO  INSPECT, APPROVE, AND REJECT THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL PRIVATE PORTIONS OF THE WORK.  5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY THE OWNER, THE ENGINEER, AND THE MUNICIPALITY, THEIR AGENTS, ETC, FROM ALL LIABILITY INVOLVED WITH THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND TESTING OF THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY THE OWNER, THE ENGINEER, AND THE MUNICIPALITY, THEIR AGENTS, ETC, FROM ALL LIABILITY INVOLVED WITH THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND TESTING OF THE WORK ON THIS PROJECT.  6. SITE SAFETY SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. SITE SAFETY SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. 7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FIELD VERIFYING ALL UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE AT THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FIELD VERIFYING ALL UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE AT 1-800-242-8511 TO NOTIFY THE UTILITIES OF HIS INTENTIONS, AND TO REQUEST FIELD STAKING OF EXISTING UTILITIES. 8. SILT FENCE AND OTHER EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES MUST BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OR ANY OTHER LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY. FOLLOW THE SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION ON THE SILT FENCE AND OTHER EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES MUST BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OR ANY OTHER LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY. FOLLOW THE SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION ON THE EROSION CONTROL PLAN FOR MORE DETAILS. INSPECTIONS SHALL BE MADE WEEKLY OR AFTER EVERY RAINFALL OF 0.5" OR MORE.  REPAIRS SHALL BE MADE IMMEDIATELY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES ONCE THE THREAT OF EROSION HAS PASSED WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE GOVERNING AGENCY. 9. ANY ADJACENT PROPERTIES OR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAYS WHICH ARE DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION MUST BE RESTORED BY THE CONTRACTOR. ANY ADJACENT PROPERTIES OR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAYS WHICH ARE DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION MUST BE RESTORED BY THE CONTRACTOR. 10. TRASH AND DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED TO ACCUMULATE ON THIS SITE AND THE SITE SHALL BE CLEAN UPON COMPLETION OF WORK. TRASH AND DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED TO ACCUMULATE ON THIS SITE AND THE SITE SHALL BE CLEAN UPON COMPLETION OF WORK. 11. THE OWNER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO HAVE ALL MATERIALS USED IN CONSTRUCTION TESTED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THESE SPECIFICATIONS.THE OWNER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO HAVE ALL MATERIALS USED IN CONSTRUCTION TESTED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THESE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATIONS FOR GRADING & EROSION CONTROL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE COMPUTATIONS OF ALL GRADING AND FOR ACTUAL LAND BALANCE, INCLUDING UTILITY TRENCH SPOIL. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE COMPUTATIONS OF ALL GRADING AND FOR ACTUAL LAND BALANCE, INCLUDING UTILITY TRENCH SPOIL. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPORT OR EXPORT MATERIAL AS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY OWNER OF THE NEED TO IMPORT OR HAUL OFF SOIL. ON-SITE LOCATIONS SUITABLE FOR BORROW OR FILL MAY BE PRESENT. COORDINATE WITH OWNER. 2. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING SOIL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. A GEOTECHNICAL REPORT MAY BE AVAILABLE FROM THE OWNER. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING SOIL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. A GEOTECHNICAL REPORT MAY BE AVAILABLE FROM THE OWNER. 3. SITE SHALL BE CLEARED TO THE LIMITS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. REMOVE VEGETATION FROM THE SITE BURNING IS NOT PERMITTED. PROTECT TREES AND OTHER FEATURES FROM DAMAGE WITH FENCING. SITE SHALL BE CLEARED TO THE LIMITS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. REMOVE VEGETATION FROM THE SITE BURNING IS NOT PERMITTED. PROTECT TREES AND OTHER FEATURES FROM DAMAGE WITH FENCING. 4. THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPACTION AND FILL PLACEMENT IN THE FIELD. THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER MAY SUPERCEDE THESE SPECIFICATIONS IF THERE IS THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPACTION AND FILL PLACEMENT IN THE FIELD. THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER MAY SUPERCEDE THESE SPECIFICATIONS IF THERE IS GOOD CAUSE TO DO SO. AN EXPLANATION MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE ENGINEER IN WRITING BEFORE ANY DEVIATIONS ARE MADE.  5. IF NO GEOTECHNICAL RECOMMENDATION IS AVAILABLE, THEN THE FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS SHALL APPLY. ALL FILL SHALL BE CONSIDERED STRUCTURAL FILL AND SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE IF NO GEOTECHNICAL RECOMMENDATION IS AVAILABLE, THEN THE FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS SHALL APPLY. ALL FILL SHALL BE CONSIDERED STRUCTURAL FILL AND SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING: THE COMPACTED FILL SUBGRADE SHALL CONSIST OF AND SHALL BE UNDERLAIN BY SUITABLE BEARING MATERIALS, FREE OF ALL ORGANIC, FROZEN OR OTHER DELETERIOUS MATERIAL AND INSPECTED AND APPROVED BY THE RESIDENT GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.PREPARATION OF THE SUBGRADE, AFTER STRIPPING, SHALL CONSIST OF PROOF-ROLLING TO DETECT UNSTABLE AREAS THAT MIGHT BE UNDERCUT, AND COMPACTING THE SCARIFIED SURFACE TO THE SAME MINIMUM DENSITY INDICATED BELOW.THE COMPACTED FILL MATERIALS SHALL BE FREE OF ANY DELETERIOUS, ORGANIC OR FROZEN MATTER AND SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM LIQUID LIMIT (ASTM-D-423) AND PLASTICITY INDEX (ASTM D-424) IF 30 AND 10 RESPECTFULLY, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY TESTED AND FOUND TO HAVE LOW EXPANSIVE PROPERTIES AND APPROVED BY AN EXPERIENCED SOILS ENGINEER. THE TOP TWELVE (12") INCHES OF COMPACTED FILL SHOULD HAVE A MAXIMUM THREE (3") INCH PARTICLE DIAMETER AND ALL UNDERLYING COMPACTED FILL A MAXIMUM SIX (6") INCH PARTICLE DIAMETER UNLESS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED BY AN EXPERIENCED SOILS ENGINEER. ALL FILL MATERIAL MUST BE TESTED AND APPROVED UNDER THE DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION OF AN EXPERIENCED SOILS ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT, IF THE FILL IS TO PROVIDE NON-FROST SUSCEPTIBLE CHARACTERISTICS, IT MUST BE CLASSIFIED AS A CLEAN GW, GP, SW, OR SP PER UNITED SOIL CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM(ASTM D-2487). FOR STRUCTURAL FILL THE DENSITY OF THE STRUCTURAL COMPACTED FILL AND SCARIFIED SUBGRADE AND GRADES SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 95 PERCENT OF THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY THE STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D-698) WITH THE EXCEPTION TO THE TOP 12 INCHES OF PAVEMENT SUBGRADE WHICH SHALL A MINIMUM IN-SITU DENSITY OF 100 PERCENT OF THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY, OR 5 PERCENT HIGHER THAN UNDERLYING FILL MATERIALS.THE MOISTURE CONTENT OF COHESIVE SOIL SHALL NOT VARY BY MORE THAN -1 TO +3 PERCENT AND GRANULAR SOIL ±3 PERCENT OF OPTIMUM WHEN PLACED AND COMPACTED OR RECOMPACTED, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED BY THE SOILS ENGINEER TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION THE TYPE OF MATERIALS AND COMPACTION EQUIPMENT BEING USED. THE COMPACTION EQUIPMENT SHOULD CONSIST OF SUITABLE MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED FOR SOIL COMPACTION. BULLDOZERS OR SIMILAR TRACKED VEHICLES ARE TYPICALLY NOT SUITABLE FOR COMPACTION. MATERIAL THAT IS TOO WET TO PERMIT PROPER COMPACTION MAY BE SPREAD ON THE FILL AND PERMITTED TO DRY. DISCING,HARROWING OR PULVERIZING MAY BE NECESSARY TO REDUCE THE MOISTURE CONTENT TO A SATISFACTORY VALUE, AFTER WHICH IT SHALL BE COMPACTED. THE FINISHED SUBGRADE AREAS OF THE SITE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 100 PERCENT OF THE STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D-398) MAXIMUM DENSITY. 6. NO FILL SHALL BE PLACED ON A WET OR SOFT SUBGRADE THE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PROOF-ROLLED AND INSPECTED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER BEFORE ANY MATERIAL IS PLACED. NO FILL SHALL BE PLACED ON A WET OR SOFT SUBGRADE THE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PROOF-ROLLED AND INSPECTED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER BEFORE ANY MATERIAL IS PLACED. 7. SUBGRADE TOLERANCES ARE +/- 1" FOR LANDSCAPE AREAS AND +/-  " FOR ALL PAVEMENT AND BUILDING AREAS. SUBGRADE TOLERANCES ARE +/- 1" FOR LANDSCAPE AREAS AND +/-  " FOR ALL PAVEMENT AND BUILDING AREAS. 12" FOR ALL PAVEMENT AND BUILDING AREAS. 8. TOPSOIL SHALL BE FREE OF DELETERIOUS MATERIALS, ROOTS, OLD VEGETATION, ROCKS OVER 2" DIAMETER AND SHALL NOT BE EXCESSIVELY CLAYEY IN NATURE. NO CLUMPS LARGER THAN 4" ARE TOPSOIL SHALL BE FREE OF DELETERIOUS MATERIALS, ROOTS, OLD VEGETATION, ROCKS OVER 2" DIAMETER AND SHALL NOT BE EXCESSIVELY CLAYEY IN NATURE. NO CLUMPS LARGER THAN 4" ARE ACCEPTABLE. TOPSOIL MAY BE AMENDED AS NEEDED WITH SAND OR COMPOST TO BE LOOSE WHEN SPREAD. 9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN SITE DRAINAGE THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. THIS MAY INCLUDE THE EXCAVATION OF TEMPORARY DITCHED OR PUMPING TO ALLEVIATE WATER PONDING. ANY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN SITE DRAINAGE THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION. THIS MAY INCLUDE THE EXCAVATION OF TEMPORARY DITCHED OR PUMPING TO ALLEVIATE WATER PONDING. ANY DEWATERING SHALL NOT GO DIRECTLY TO STREAMS, CREEKS, WETLANDS OR OTHER ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS WITHOUT BEING TREATED FIRST. A DIRT BAG OR OTHER DEWATERING TREATMENT DEVICE MAY BE USED TO CAPTURE SEDIMENT FROM THE PUMPED WATER. 10. THE STONE TRACKING PAD SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.  THE TRACKING PAD IS TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN A CONDITION, WHICH WILL PREVENT THE TRACK OF THE STONE TRACKING PAD SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.  THE TRACKING PAD IS TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN A CONDITION, WHICH WILL PREVENT THE TRACK OF MUD OR DRY SEDIMENT ONTO THE ADJACENT PUBLIC STREETS. SEDIMENT REACHING THE PUBLIC ROAD SHALL BE REMOVED BY STREET CLEANING (NOT HYDRAULIC FLUSHING) BEFORE THE END OF EACH WORKDAY. 11. SOIL STOCKPILES SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 75 FEET FROM LAKES, STREAMS, WETLANDS, DITCHES, DRAINAGE WAYS, CURBS AND GUTTERS OR OTHER STORMWATER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM, SOIL STOCKPILES SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 75 FEET FROM LAKES, STREAMS, WETLANDS, DITCHES, DRAINAGE WAYS, CURBS AND GUTTERS OR OTHER STORMWATER CONVEYANCE SYSTEM, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.  MEASURES SHALL BE TAKEN TO MINIMIZE EROSION AND RUNOFF FROM ANY SOIL STOCKPILES THAT WILL LIKELY REMAIN FOR MORE THAN FIVE WORKING DAYS.  ANY STOCKPILE THAT REMAINS FOR MORE THAN 30 DAYS SHALL BE COVERED OR TREATED WITH STABILIZATION PRACTICES SUCH AS TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT SEEDING AND MULCHING. 12. EROSION CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO GRADING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE PROPERLY MAINTAINED FOR MAXIMUM EFFECTIVENESS UNTIL VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED. ALL EROSION EROSION CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO GRADING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE PROPERLY MAINTAINED FOR MAXIMUM EFFECTIVENESS UNTIL VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED. ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AND STRUCTURES SERVING THE SITE MUST BE INSPECTED AT LEAST WEEKLY OR WITHIN 24 HOURS OF A 0.5 INCH RAIN EVENT.  ALL MAINTENANCE WILL FOLLOW AN INSPECTION WITHIN 24 HOURS. 13. CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 3:1. CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL BE NO GREATER THAN 3:1. 3:1. . 14. EROSION CONTROL IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROJECT. EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS SHOWN SHALL BE THE MINIMUM PRECAUTIONS THAT WILL BE EROSION CONTROL IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROJECT. EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS SHOWN SHALL BE THE MINIMUM PRECAUTIONS THAT WILL BE ALLOWED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RECOGNIZING AND CORRECTING ALL EROSION CONTROL PROBLEMS THAT ARE A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES, AS REQUESTED IN WRITING BY THE STATE OR LOCAL INSPECTORS, OR THE DEVELOPER'S ENGINEER, SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN 24 HOURS. 15. ALL DISTURBED SLOPES OF 4:1 OR GREATER AND DRAINAGE SWALES SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH CURLEX EROSION CONTROL FABRIC (INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS). ALL DISTURBED SLOPES OF 4:1 OR GREATER AND DRAINAGE SWALES SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH CURLEX EROSION CONTROL FABRIC (INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PAVING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. AGGREGATES USED IN THE CRUSHED STONE BASE SHALL CONFORM TO THE GRADATION REQUIREMENTS SECTIONS 301.2 AND 305.2.2 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THICKNESS SHALL BE PER AGGREGATES USED IN THE CRUSHED STONE BASE SHALL CONFORM TO THE GRADATION REQUIREMENTS SECTIONS 301.2 AND 305.2.2 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THICKNESS SHALL BE PER THE DETAIL ON THE PLANS. BASE SHALL BE 1-1/4" INCH DIAMETER LIMESTONE TRAFFIC BOND AGGREGATE BASE COURSE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. SUBSTITUTION AND/OR RECYCLED MATERIALS MAY BE ALLOWED WITH APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER. 2. SUBGRADE SHALL BE PROOFROLLED AND APPROVED BY A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF STONE BASE. EXCAVATE UNSUITABLE AREAS AND REPLACE WITH BREAKER RUN STONE SUBGRADE SHALL BE PROOFROLLED AND APPROVED BY A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF STONE BASE. EXCAVATE UNSUITABLE AREAS AND REPLACE WITH BREAKER RUN STONE AND RECOMPACT. REFER TO THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS. 3. EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL BE SAWCUT IN NEAT STRAIGHT LINES TO FULL DEPTH AT ANY POINT WHERE EXISTING PAVEMENT IS REMOVED. CURB AND WALK SHALL BE REMOVED TO THE NEAREST EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL BE SAWCUT IN NEAT STRAIGHT LINES TO FULL DEPTH AT ANY POINT WHERE EXISTING PAVEMENT IS REMOVED. CURB AND WALK SHALL BE REMOVED TO THE NEAREST JOINT. REMOVED PAVEMENT SHALL BE REPLACED WITH THE SAME SECTION AS EXISTING. MUNICIPAL STANDARDS MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL WORK.  4. ASPHALT FOR PARKING AREAS AND THE PRIVATE ROAD SHALL BE PER THE DETAILS MATERIALS AND PLACEMENT SHALL CONFORM TO THE DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, SECTION 450 AND 460 LT ASPHALT FOR PARKING AREAS AND THE PRIVATE ROAD SHALL BE PER THE DETAILS MATERIALS AND PLACEMENT SHALL CONFORM TO THE DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, SECTION 450 AND 460 LT 58-28 S IS REQUIRED UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE A COMMERCIAL GRADE MIX MAY BE SUBSTITUTED ONLY WITH APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER. 5. TACK COAT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBSECTION 455.2.5 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THE RATE OF APPLICATION SHALL BE 0.05 GAL/SY. TACK COAT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBSECTION 455.2.5 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. THE RATE OF APPLICATION SHALL BE 0.05 GAL/SY. 6. CONCRETE FOR CURB, DRIVEWAYS, WALKS, AND NON-FLOOR SLABS SHALL CONFORM TO SECTION 415 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, GRADE A, ASTM C-94, 6 BAG MIX WITH A MINIMUM 28 DAY CONCRETE FOR CURB, DRIVEWAYS, WALKS, AND NON-FLOOR SLABS SHALL CONFORM TO SECTION 415 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, GRADE A, ASTM C-94, 6 BAG MIX WITH A MINIMUM 28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,500 PSI. JOINTING SHALL BE PER SECTION 415.3.7 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS WITH CONSTRUCTION JOINTS HAVING A MAXIMUM SPACING OF 10". EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PROVIDED EVERY 50'. CONCRETE SHALL BE FINISHED PER SECTION 415.3.8 WITH A MEDIUM BROOM TEXTURE. A CURING MEMBRANE IN CONFORMANCE WITH SECTION 415.3.12 IS REQUIRED. 7. PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE PAINT IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN DOT SECTION 646 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND WITH LOCAL CODES. THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHALL BE PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE PAINT IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN DOT SECTION 646 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND WITH LOCAL CODES. THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHALL BE PAINTED WITH COLORS NOTED BELOW: PARKING STALLS: WHITE PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALKS: WHITE LANE STRIPING WHERE SEPARATING TRAFFIC IS MOVING IN OPPOSITE DIRECTIONS: YELLOW LANE STRIPING WHERE SEPARATING TRAFFIC IS MOVING IN SAME DIRECTIONS: WHITE ADA SYMBOLS; WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT STREET PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK AREAS, SHALL RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF FOUR (4) INCHES OF TOPSOIL, FERTILIZER, SEED AND MULCH.  RESTORATION WILL OCCUR AS ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT STREET PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK AREAS, SHALL RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF FOUR (4) INCHES OF TOPSOIL, FERTILIZER, SEED AND MULCH.  RESTORATION WILL OCCUR AS SOON AFTER THE DISTURBANCE AS PRACTICAL.   LAWN AREAS WITH SLOPES GREATER THAN 4:1 SHALL BE SEEDED WITH OLDS "NOMOW" MIX OR EQUAL.  ALL OTHER DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED WITH MADISON PARKS MIX OR EQUAL. MIXTURES SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 630 OF D.O.T. SPECIFICATIONS. 2. AN EQUAL AMOUNT OF ANNUAL RYEGRASS SHALL BE ADDED TO THE MIX.  SEED MIXTURES SHALL BE APPLIED AT THE RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET. FERTILIZER SHALL BE AN EQUAL AMOUNT OF ANNUAL RYEGRASS SHALL BE ADDED TO THE MIX.  SEED MIXTURES SHALL BE APPLIED AT THE RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET. FERTILIZER SHALL BE APPLIED AT THE RATE OF FOUR (4) POUNDS PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET.  FERTILIZER SHALL MEET THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS THAT FOLLOW:  NITROGEN, NOT LESS THAN 16%; PHOSPHORIC ACID, NOT LESS THAN 6%; POTASH, NOT LESS THAN 6%. 3. ALL FINISH GRADED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED BY SEPTEMBER 15TH. IF THE SITE DOES NOT HAVE FINISH GRADED AREAS COMPLETED BY OCTOBER 15TH, ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL ALL FINISH GRADED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED BY SEPTEMBER 15TH. IF THE SITE DOES NOT HAVE FINISH GRADED AREAS COMPLETED BY OCTOBER 15TH, ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED WITH TEMPORARY SEEDING (COVER CROP).  AREAS NEEDING PROTECTION DURING PERIODS WHEN PERMANENT SEEDING IS NOT APPLIED SHALL BE SEEDED WITH ANNUAL SPECIES FOR TEMPORARY PROTECTION. SEE TABLE 1 OF THE WISCONSIN DNR CONSERVATION PRACTICE STANDARD 1059, FOR SEEDING RATES OF COMMONLY USED SPECIES. THE RESIDUE FROM THIS CROP MAY EITHER BE INCORPORATED INTO THE SOIL DURING SEEDBED PREPARATION AT THE NEXT PERMANENT SEEDING PERIOD OR LEFT ON THE SOIL SURFACE AND THE PLANTING MADE AS A NO-TILL SEEDING. 4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR A SATISFACTORY STAND OF GRASS ON ALL SEEDED AREAS FOR ONE YEAR AFTER THE PROJECT'S FINAL ACCEPTANCE.THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR A SATISFACTORY STAND OF GRASS ON ALL SEEDED AREAS FOR ONE YEAR AFTER THE PROJECT'S FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTORATION NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"-4000 PSI (28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH) AIR ENTRAINED CONCRETE (4.5-7.5% AIR ENTRAINED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE WDOT  SECTION 305 1  " 14" CRUSHED AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: SIGN SHALL COMPY WITH CURRENT STATE AND ADA GUIDELINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE (2) STAINLESS STEEL BOLTS & WASHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGN WHERE APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
$200 FINE SIGN WHERE APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL PIPE OR PAINTED CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVABLE SIGN BASE (OPTIONAL FOR PAVING OR SIDEWALK AREAS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING OR GRASS/LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA COMPLIANT ACCESSIBLE SIGN DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE, SQUARE BACKGROUND PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: GRID FOR LAYOUT PURPOSES ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA COMPLIANT ACCESSIBLE STALL PAINTED SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEENAH 4984-30Q DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE (OR EQUAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=12:1 MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=2% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA COMPLIANT ACCESSIBLE RAMP DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"-3500 PSI (28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH) AIR ENTRAINED CONCRETE (4.5-7.5% AIR ENTRAINED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE WDOT  SECTION 305  " CRUSHED 34" CRUSHED AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION



PO
R

T 
W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TA

TE
 B

A
N

K
20

1 
R

EG
A

L 
D

R
IV

E
FR

ED
O

N
IA

, W
I 5

30
21

\EA-01-23\

4/16/2024

EROSION
CONTROL
DETAILS

EPN

EPN

KJP

FREDONIA PLAN 
COMMISSION SET

~4. 

............ . . . . . .. .. . 

•••.•••.•••••••.••• 1 . .•.••• 

. . . .. .. . . . . . . . . .............. . ........... . .......... 

NOTE: REFER TO GENERAL STAPLE PATTERN GUIDE FOR CORRECT 
STAPLE PATTERN RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SLOPE INSTALLATIONS. 

1. PREPARE SOIL BEFORE INSTALLING BLANKETS, INCLUDING APPLICATION OF FERTILIZER AND SEED. 
NOTE: WHEN USING CELL-0-SEED DO NOT SEED PREPARED AREA. CELL-0-SEED MUST BE 
INSTALLED WITH PAPER SIDE DOWN. 

2. BEGIN AT THE TOP OF THE SLOPE BY ANCHORING THE BLANKET IN 6" DEEP X 6" WIDE TRENCH. 
BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING. 

3. ROLL THE BLANKETS (A.) DOWIN OR (B.) HORIZONTALLY ACROSS THE SLOPE. 

4. THE EDGES OF PARALLEL BLANKETS MUST BE STAPLED WITH APPROXIMATELY 2" OVERLAP. 

5. WHEN BLANKETS MUST BE SPLICED DOWN THE SLOPE, PLACE BLANKETS END OVER END (SHINGLE 
STYLE) WITH APPROXIMATELY 4" OVERLAP. STAPLE THROUGH OVERLAPPED AREA, APPROXIMATELY 

6. ALL BLANKETS MUST BE SECURELY FASTENED TO THE SLOPE BY PLACING STAPLES/STAKES IN 
APPROPRIATE LOCATIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTIJRER. 

EROSION CONIBOL MAI SLOPE INSTALLATION 

ROADWAY 

\ 

\ L 
KEY NOJFS: 

A. ANCHOR POINT. 
B. SILT OR ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE. 
C. INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS. 

FODS TRACKOUT CONTROL SYSTEM 

5. 

2. 

MAINTAIN SILT SOCKS UNTIL 
VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED. 

_L 
3" MIN 

T 

ROD STAKES (10' SPACING) 
NOMINAL 2" X 2" X 30" MIN 

FILTEREXX SIL TSOXX (OR EQUAL) 
(12" DIA.) 

SHEET FLOW 

SILT SOCK DETAIL 

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION SHALL 
CONFORM TO WISCONSIN DNR 
TECHNICAL STANDARD #1056) 

4' X 2" X 2" (MIN.) 
WOOD POST 

INLET SPECIFICATIONS 
AS PER THE PLAN 
DIMENSION LENGTH 

& WIDTH TO MATCH 

GEOTEXTILE 
FABRIC, TYPE FF 

MINIMUM DOUBLE 
STITCHED SEAMS 

ALL AROUND 
SIDE PIECES AND 

ON FLAP POCKETS. 

GEOTEXTILE 
FABRIC, TYPE HR 

FRONT, BACK, AND 
BOTTOM TO BE 

MADE FROM SINGLE 
PIECE OF FABRIC. 

! / FILTER FABRIC 

V SHEET FLOW --------
EXTEND FABRIC TO 
4" BELOW SURFACE 

SILT FENCE CONSTRUCTION (SHEET FLOW) 

FLAP POCKET 

0 .:i-''<:,.,_--1. USE REBAR OR STEEL ROD 
FOR REMOVAL OR FOR 
INLETS V,,TH CAST CURB 
BOX USE WOOD 2"x4", 
EXTEND 10" BEYOND GRATE 
WIDTH ON BOTH SIDES, 
LENGTH VARIES. SECURE 
TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR 
PLASTIC TIES. 

INLET PROTECTION INSTALLATION 
SHALL CONFORM TO WDNR 
TECHNICAL STANDARD #1060). 
INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE 
INSTALLED AT ALL STREET INLETS. 

4"x6" OVAL HOLE SHAUL BE HEAT 
CUT INTO ALL FOUR SIDE PANELS 

TAPER BOTTOM OF BAG TO 
MAINTAIN 3" SEPARATION BETWIEEN 
THE BAG AND THE STRUCTURE AT 
THE OVERFLOW HOLES 

TYPE D-HR INLET PROTECTION DETAIL 

cii 
z 
0 
(f) 

> w 
n:: 

w 
F 
F 
>-
0 w -, 
0 
QC 
D.. 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

z X 
0 X 
F X 
0.. X 

X QC X 
0 X 
CJ) X 
w X 
Cl X 

X 
w I 
>- X 
<( X 
Cl I 

X 

0 
z 

PLAN TITLE: 

DRAWN BY: 

DESIGNED BY: 

CHECKED BY: 

PLAN DATE: 

PROJECT NO: 

SHEET NO: 

(!) 

z LO m a E 
"' "' ~ w LO 

w ~ 
., 

z <I) 
- .c: 

"O <I) 

(!) C: ·.:::: ., .. 
z ID q. 
w Ji olS 

>-
.., ., 

w ~ 
> iiio 
"' c: a 
::::, ·- co <I) ,._ 

CJ) C: . 
0 (!) " .., I 
<I) "' 

CJ) ~~ 
"' NN 

N 
<( ~ 
0.. 

C2.02 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3(A)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: REFER TO GENERAL STAPLE PATTERN GUIDE FOR CORRECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
     STAPLE PATTERN RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SLOPE INSTALLATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. PREPARE SOIL BEFORE INSTALLING BLANKETS, INCLUDING APPLICATION OF FERTILIZER AND SEED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   NOTE: WHEN USING CELL-O-SEED DO NOT SEED PREPARED AREA. CELL-O-SEED MUST BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
   INSTALLED WITH PAPER SIDE DOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. BEGIN AT THE TOP OF THE SLOPE BY ANCHORING THE BLANKET IN 6" DEEP X 6" WIDE TRENCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3. ROLL THE BLANKETS (A.) DOWN OR (B.) HORIZONTALLY ACROSS THE SLOPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4. THE EDGES OF PARALLEL BLANKETS MUST BE STAPLED WITH APPROXIMATELY 2" OVERLAP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5. WHEN BLANKETS MUST BE SPLICED DOWN THE SLOPE, PLACE BLANKETS END OVER END (SHINGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
   STYLE) WITH APPROXIMATELY 4" OVERLAP. STAPLE THROUGH OVERLAPPED AREA, APPROXIMATELY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6. ALL BLANKETS MUST BE SECURELY FASTENED TO THE SLOPE BY PLACING STAPLES/STAKES IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
   APPROPRIATE LOCATIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uEROSION CONTROL MAT - SLOPE INSTALLATION%%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE CONSTRUCTION (SHEET FLOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM TO WISCONSIN DNR TECHNICAL STANDARD #1056)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND FABRIC TO 4" BELOW SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' X 2" X 2" (MIN.) WOOD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT SOCK DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN SILT SOCKS UNTIL VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTEREXX SILTSOXX (OR EQUAL) (12" DIA.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD STAKES (10' SPACING) NOMINAL 2" X 2" X 30" MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FODS TRACKOUT CONTROL SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORED, INSTALLED, MAINTAINED, AND REMOVED PER MANUFACTURER'S GUIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY NOTES: A. ANCHOR POINT. ANCHOR POINT. B. SILT OR ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE. SILT OR ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE. C. INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE D-HR INLET PROTECTION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTION INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM TO WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD #1060). INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE INSTALLED AT ALL STREET INLETS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET SPECIFICATIONS AS PER THE PLAN DIMENSION LENGTH & WIDTH TO MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE FF

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT, BACK, AND BOTTOM TO BE MADE FROM SINGLE PIECE OF FABRIC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM DOUBLE STITCHED SEAMS ALL AROUND SIDE PIECES AND ON FLAP POCKETS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAP POCKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE REBAR OR STEEL ROD FOR REMOVAL OR FOR INLETS WITH CAST CURB BOX USE WOOD 2"x4", EXTEND 10" BEYOND GRATE WIDTH ON BOTH SIDES, LENGTH VARIES. SECURE TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR PLASTIC TIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"x6" OVAL HOLE SHALL BE HEAT CUT INTO ALL FOUR SIDE PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW OPENING (FOR INLETS W/ CURB BOXES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE HR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER BOTTOM OF BAG TO MAINTAIN 3" SEPARATION BETWEEN THE BAG AND THE STRUCTURE AT THE OVERFLOW HOLES



102 SF
WOMEN

96 SF
MEN

45 SF
UTILITY

34 SF
STOR 2

34 SF
STAIR

255 SF
HALL 2

146 SF
VAULT

341 SF
STOR 1

269 SF
MECHANICAL

382 SF
CONFERENCE

179 SF

BREAK
ROOM

64 SF
WELLNESS

RENOVATION LEGEND

NEW ADDITION SPACE

RECONFIGURED SPACE

REPLACE FLOOR FINISHES

EXISTING TO REMAIN

UNFINISHED SPACE

REF

449 SF
STOR 3

799 SF

CRAWL
SPACE

REF

145 SF
KITCHENETTE

37 SF
HALL 2

c E3 ARCHITECTURE2024

SHEET NO:

SHEET NAME:

REVISIONS

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT NO:

ISSUANCE:

N
73

W
26

81
4 

TH
O

U
SA

N
D

 O
AK

S 
D

R
IV

E│
SU

SS
EX

, W
I 5

30
89

P:
 (2

62
)-2

64
-8

42
3│

E:
 M

H
EN

SE
L@

E3
AR

C
H

.C
O

M
│

W
W

W
.E

3A
R

C
H

.C
O

M

A-02
LOWER LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN

04│16│2024

23-002R

FREDONIA PLAN
COMMISSION SET

PO
RT

 W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST
AT

E
B

A
N

K
 -

FR
ED

O
N

IA

20
1 

R
EG

AL
 D

R
IV

E 
| F

R
ED

O
N

IA
, W

I 5
30

21

1/4" = 1'-0"
LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN1

N

0' 2' 4' 8'

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NO: DESCRIPTION DATE

00 

0 
0 

Lfl 1 

UP 

• \ 

\ 
" '"-, 

0 

0 

/ 

o[ 

> 

, 
,,// 

r ' 

L a 

7 
c,_ 

', I 
I 

f_o 

\~,J 

j 

UP 

\ 

w~ 
• 
• cc z 

w 

LJ ::::, 
(.) 

LL 

• I-
LL 

w 

• 0 w 
(.) 

w z 
w 

I-
a: 
w 
Cl. 

>< 

:I: w 

0 
w 
U) 

cc I-
a: 
w 

<( ~ 
rrl 
L&J 

• • 

0 



14
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

23
' -

 0
"

11
' -

 1
1 

1/
2"

91 SF
VESTIBULE

RENOVATION LEGEND

NEW ADDITION SPACE

RECONFIGURED SPACE

REPLACE FLOOR FINISHES

42 SF

VIEWING
ROOM

117 SF
STAIR

57 SF
MEN

53 SF
WOMEN

33 SF
UTILITY

50 SF
STORAGE

80 SF
HALL 2

122 SF
SD VAULT

36 SF
DATA

102 SF

EMPLOYEE
LOUNGE

CHECK
DESK

REFRESHMENTS

ADA

ATM

127 SF

BRANCH
MANAGER

98 SF

CASH
ROOM

136 SF

DRIVE UP
TELLERS

115 SF
OFFICE

113 SF
OFFICE

124 SF
OFFICE

121 SF

HOTEL
OFFICE

30 SF
KIDS

298 SF

LOBBY
TELLERS

591 SF
LOBBY

TELEVISION

FI
R

EP
LA

C
E

286 SF
CONFERENCE

348 SF
WAITING

CC

CW

11' - 0" 23' - 4" 49' - 0" 28' - 0" 4' - 0"

13' - 1" 21' - 3"

115' - 4"
49

' -
 3

"

A-052

A-05

1

A-04

1

A-04 2

PR PR PR

PR

PR

42 SF
HALL 1

c E3 ARCHITECTURE2024

SHEET NO:

SHEET NAME:

REVISIONS

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT NO:

ISSUANCE:

N
73

W
26

81
4 

TH
O

U
SA

N
D

 O
AK

S 
D

R
IV

E│
SU

SS
EX

, W
I 5

30
89

P:
 (2

62
)-2

64
-8

42
3│

E:
 M

H
EN

SE
L@

E3
AR

C
H

.C
O

M
│

W
W

W
.E

3A
R

C
H

.C
O

M

A-03
FIRST FLOOR
PLAN

04│16│2024

23-002R

FREDONIA PLAN
COMMISSION SET

PO
RT

 W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST
AT

E
B

A
N

K
 -

FR
ED

O
N

IA

20
1 

R
EG

AL
 D

R
IV

E 
| F

R
ED

O
N

IA
, W

I 5
30

21

1/4" = 1'-0"
FIRST FLOOR PLAN1

N

0' 2' 4' 8'

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NO: DESCRIPTION DATE

' 

' 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I ) 

I • -

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

' I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

L ----

' I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I ------, 
I 
I 
I 
I 

. 

I 

7 
I 

I 

L_ ___ _ 

, 

' 

' 

D 
000 

\ 
'~ 

Lfl 

/ 

/ /--

00 

[] 
[] 

r~--~I 
/ _ __ )\ 

J -
I I I. 

1~- -c:r 

, 

' 

I 

J 

__.../ 
/ 
/ 

-,✓ 
-

/ 
/ 

' 

. . ' [g] 

~\ 

/ 

/ 

----, --=--~, 
i :; 

I' 
' " ~"sc_==:,, 

~---=' ,, 
I' 
\ d 

/ 

/ 

I 

I 

\ 

' " -

-~ 
\ 

L__j 
( ' \ 

' ' 
'' ~ ;' I' ,_ \ ·, 

•-

I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

"-..._ 

I 
/ 

/ 

\, 

T'-,,' 
11 

' ' .c..,- ·-

,, 
', 

• 
• 

-------7 
I 

I 

LJ 
• 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

L ______ _ 

' 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

_J 

• 
• 
~ 

~. 
/ ·. \ r .• 

I . . • . \ 
I . , \ 

i . \ 

I ". . ' '\ 

( 

I • ·: \ j .: . .. ·, - - - - - - 7 --~~ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - / ·~ -: ~ -; - ~ "\\ : -~ ·.----::- , ·; \ . . . 
• • ·\ I 

. I 

.. 

. 

~l ' . 

I 

I 

I 

I 

. I 
~:/ >._ '. . .-_ - J - - - - - - J --- \.c -, - ~ - ✓ ----------------------- \ .·• - ; 

\ / 
\ • I 
\. I 
\ ' / "'- ,,. 
~ 

w >-
(.) 

z cc w 

(.) 

::::, LL 
LL 

I- w 

0 w 
(.) 

z w w 

I-
a: 
w 
Cl. 

>< 

:I: w 

0 
w 
U) 

I-cc a: 
w 

<( 
Cl. 

>< 
w 

rrl 
L&J 



2002 15 01

2'
 - 

4"
2'

 - 
4"

11 11 04 03 07

BUILDING ADDITION EXISTING BUILDING DRIVE UP CANOPY ADDITION

02

13

01

14

05

17

1008 09

02 13

080910021105

16

04

11

03

1102 01

04

T.O. EXISTING WALL
110'-8"

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

4

12

01

01

10 08 0911051907

04
2' - 0"

11

03

14

01

02

16

01

0211

05 09 08 10

15

4

12

16

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES

1. PROVIDE NEW ROOF MEMBRANE, SLOPED
INSULATION, + ROOF DRAINS ON EXISTING BUILDING

GENERAL NOTES

10 STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF PANELS
(COLOR: DARK GRAY)

01 THINSET STONE VENEER

04 1X8 ENGINEERED WOOD TRIM (WOODTONE
MOUNTAIN CEDAR OR EQUAL)

03 8" ENGINEERED WOOD SIDING (WOODTONE
MOUNTAIN CEDAR OR EQUAL)

14 PAINT EXISTING CMU RETAINING WALL

11 CLEAR ANODIZED STOREFRONT ASSEMBLY
W/ LOW-E GLAZING

06 PREFINISHED METAL PARAPET CAP
FLASHING (COLOR: CREAM)

09 PREFINISHED METAL GUTTERS +
DOWNSPOUTS

16 DECORATIVE WALL MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURE

08 PREFINISHED METAL FASCIA (COLOR: DARK
GRAY)

18 PARAPET BEYOND

19 DRIVE UP CANOPY BEYOND

20 MAIN ENTRY CANOPY BEYOND

02 PRECAST HEADER/ TRIM/ SILL

05 DECORATIVE BRACKET W/ ENGINEERED
WOOD TRIM (WOODTONE MOUNTAIN CEDAR
OR EQUAL)

22 EXISTING DRIVE UP WINDOW TO REMAIN

21 EXISTING NIGHT DEPOSIT TO REMAIN

12 CLEAR ANODIZED DOOR + FRAME W/ LOW-E
GLAZING

07 PREFINISHED METAL FASCIA (COLOR: LIGHT
GRAY) OVER NEW PARAPET FRAMING ON
EXISTING CMU WALL

17 4" BOLLARD W/ POLYETHYLENE COVER

13 PAINT EXISTING METAL DOOR + FRAME

15 WALL MOUNTED SIGNAGE

c E3 ARCHITECTURE2024

SHEET NO:

SHEET NAME:

REVISIONS

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT NO:

ISSUANCE:

N
73

W
26

81
4 

TH
O

U
SA

N
D

 O
AK

S 
D

R
IV

E│
SU

SS
EX

, W
I 5

30
89

P:
 (2

62
)-2

64
-8

42
3│

E:
 M

H
EN

SE
L@

E3
AR

C
H

.C
O

M
│

W
W

W
.E

3A
R

C
H

.C
O

M

A-04
EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

04│16│2024

23-002R

FREDONIA PLAN
COMMISSION SET

PO
RT

 W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST
AT

E
B

A
N

K
 -

FR
ED

O
N

IA

20
1 

R
EG

AL
 D

R
IV

E 
| F

R
ED

O
N

IA
, W

I 5
30

21

1/4" = 1'-0"
SOUTH ELEVATION1

1/4" = 1'-0"
WEST ELEVATION2

0' 2' 4' 8'

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

0' 2' 4' 8'

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

NO: DESCRIPTION DATE

7 7 n 

r 
C 

7 
' C 

_J 
C 

C 

• 

, -
-:! 

• 

= 

n 7 

LR.____. 

• 

b 
I-

LR.____. 

_J 

k~ 
.·u~;J 

n 

_J 

w >-
(.) 

• cc z 
w 
-

n 
_J 
_J 

7 
_J 

(.) 

::::, -
LL 
LL 

I- w 
-

0 w 
(.) 

w z 
w 
-

7 I-
a: 
w 
Cl. 

_J 
7 

>< 

:I: w 
-

7 0 
w 
U) 

-

_J cc I-
a: 
w 

_J 7 
7 _J 

<( 
Cl. 

>< 
w 

rrl 
7 _J • L&J 
_J 

• _J 7 
_J 

I 

7 
• 7 

_J 

I 

I 

I 

• • 

• 

• 

• 7 

'7 

I 

n 



11
10

09
07

03
09

10
08

051601

02

21
17

22
11

01
03

14 11 04 01

07
08

EXISTIN
G

 B
U

ILD
IN

G
AD

D
ITIO

N
M

AIN
 EN

TR
Y

4
12

16

03

G
R

AD
E

+/-91'-0"
D

RIVE U
P C

AN
O

PY AD
D

ITIO
N

EXISTIN
G

 B
U

ILD
IN

G
B

U
ILD

IN
G

 AD
D

ITIO
N

15
01

07
10

08
09

05
10

08
09

18
11

10
08

05

0104 0211

02
03

11
01

12
02

09

4

12

FIR
ST FLO

O
R

100'-0"

T.O
. EXISTIN

G
 W

ALL
110'-8"

17' - 4"

EXTER
IO

R
 ELEVA

TIO
N

 K
EYN

O
TES

1. PR
O

VID
E N

EW
 R

O
O

F M
EM

BR
AN

E, SLO
PED

IN
SU

LATIO
N

, + R
O

O
F D

R
AIN

S O
N

 EXISTIN
G

 BU
ILD

IN
G

G
EN

ER
A

L N
O

TES

10
STANDIN

G
 SEAM

 M
ETAL RO

O
F PANELS

(CO
LO

R
: DARK G

R
AY)

01
TH

IN
SET STO

N
E VEN

EER

04
1X8 EN

G
IN

EER
ED W

O
O

D
 TRIM

 (W
O

O
D

TO
NE

M
O

U
NTAIN CEDAR

 O
R

 EQ
UAL)

03
8" EN

G
IN

EER
ED

 W
O

O
D

 SID
IN

G
 (W

O
O

D
TO

N
E

M
O

U
NTAIN CEDAR

 O
R

 EQ
UAL)

14
PAIN

T EXISTIN
G

 C
M

U
 R

ETAIN
IN

G
 W

ALL

11
CLEAR AN

O
D

IZED
 STO

REFRO
NT ASSEM

BLY
W

/ LO
W

-E G
LAZIN

G

06
PREFINISHED M

ETAL PARAPET C
AP

FLASH
ING

 (CO
LO

R
: CR

EAM
)

09
PR

EFIN
ISH

ED
 M

ETAL G
U

TTER
S +

D
O

W
N

SPO
U

TS

16
D

EC
O

R
ATIVE W

ALL M
O

U
N

TED
 LIG

H
T FIXTU

R
E

08
PR

EFIN
ISH

ED
 M

ETAL FASC
IA (C

O
LO

R
: D

AR
K

G
R

AY)

18
PAR

APET BEYO
N

D

19
D

R
IVE U

P CAN
O

PY BEYO
N

D

20
M

AIN
 EN

TR
Y C

AN
O

PY BEYO
N

D

02
PR

EC
AST H

EAD
ER

/ TR
IM

/ SILL

05
DEC

O
RATIVE BRAC

KET W
/ ENG

INEERED
W

O
O

D
 TRIM

 (W
O

O
DTO

NE M
O

U
NTAIN CEDAR

O
R

 EQ
U

AL)

22
EXISTIN

G
 D

R
IVE U

P W
IN

D
O

W
 TO

 R
EM

AIN

21
EXISTIN

G
 N

IG
H

T D
EPO

SIT TO
 R

EM
AIN

12
C

LEAR
 AN

O
D

IZED
 D

O
O

R
 + FR

AM
E W

/ LO
W

-E
G

LAZING

07
PR

EFIN
ISH

ED
 M

ETAL FASC
IA (C

O
LO

R
: LIG

H
T

G
R

AY) O
VER

 NEW
 PARAPET FR

AM
ING

 O
N

EXISTIN
G

 C
M

U
 W

ALL

17
4" BO

LLAR
D

 W
/ PO

LYETH
YLEN

E C
O

VER

13
PAIN

T EXISTIN
G

 M
ETAL D

O
O

R
 + FR

AM
E

15
W

ALL M
O

U
N

TED
 SIG

N
AG

E

c
E3 AR

C
H

ITEC
TU

R
E

2024

SH
EET NO

:

SHEET NAM
E:

R
EVISIO

N
S

ISSU
E DATE:

PRO
JECT N

O
:

ISSUAN
C

E:

N73W26814 THOUSAND OAKS DRIVE│SUSSEX, WI 53089

P: (262)-264-8423│E: MHENSEL@E3ARCH.COM│WWW.E3ARCH.COM

A-05
EXTERIO

R
ELEVATIO

NS 04│
16│

2024

23-002R

FR
ED

O
N

IA
 PLAN

C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 SET

PORT WASHINGTON STATE
BANK - FREDONIA

201 REGAL DRIVE | FREDONIA, WI 53021

1/4" = 1'-0"
EAST ELEVATIO

N
2

1/4" = 1'-0"
NO

RTH EL EVATIO
N

1
0'

2'
4'

8'

SC
A

LE: 1/4" =
 1'-0"

0'
2'

4'
8'

SC
A

LE: 1/4" =
 1'-0"

N
O

:
D

ESC
R

IPTIO
N

D
ATE

• 

I I 

lR=l 
~ 1r:1 

r~t ,1J I n n 

,,, ~1l'IITT 
ul'f'i"'tjll mil 

•Ill ,UI~ 
ll~b 

I ll I _ ' •-,,lli,- I )ii>=• 

I. ,f1 , ··111 ·~' l!I I 

•~ u 

1 

1 -~ITT)YriJ 'I 
/1.J : ,1 ' I 'j \£rn~11 I'! 

• 

~--7 

_J 

• 

"-' • 

---I-++-----• 

a I I r II , II I II II I I I II Il l II I 

It.. f------• 
r ~--• 

1,-,, . 

,'~-Yo\ 
rm' in1 .I ' Jl.l 

- , , I 

•o· ' ' I 

11111 )~I 
,J 

D 

7 

_J 

--• 

c--• 

i --

• - ~ 
I 

~ 
11 111 '1111 11 11 1 11111 

L 

~ 

~ 

ll I 1PJ 
~'.l ,~;1-H ffl 1--1 ' ' 

' I 

' I r-1 

~ 

-• 

• • 

' 

• C 

• 

I I 

_J 

' 

• 

___ L_J_L_JLJL _J L _J L _J L _J L _J LLLJ 

IE3l~~Ts~~I~Ns~F~C~N~ 



c E3 ARCHITECTURE2024

SHEET NO:

SHEET NAME:

REVISIONS

ISSUE DATE:

PROJECT NO:

ISSUANCE:

N
73

W
26

81
4 

TH
O

U
SA

N
D

 O
AK

S 
D

R
IV

E│
SU

SS
EX

, W
I 5

30
89

P:
 (2

62
)-2

64
-8

42
3│

E:
 M

H
EN

SE
L@

E3
AR

C
H

.C
O

M
│

W
W

W
.E

3A
R

C
H

.C
O

M

A-06
EXTERIOR
RENDERINGS

04│16│2024

23-002R

FREDONIA PLAN
COMMISSION SET

PO
RT

 W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST
AT

E
B

A
N

K
 -

FR
ED

O
N

IA

20
1 

R
EG

AL
 D

R
IV

E 
| F

R
ED

O
N

IA
, W

I 5
30

21

SOUTHWEST PERSPECTIVE VIEW1

NORTHEAST PERSPECTIVE VIEW2

NO: DESCRIPTION DATE

w >-
(.) 

cc z 
w 

::::, 
(.) 

LL 
LL 

I- w 

0 w 
(.) 

w z 
w 

I-
a: 
w 
Cl. 

>< 

:I: w 

0 
w 
U) 

cc 1--
a: 
w 

<( 
Cl. 

>< 
w 

rrl 
L&J 

_\ ___ , 
--


	Fredonia Government Center – Village Board Room
	3A 04-08-2024 Planning Commission Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Fredonia Government Center – Village Board Room

	4A RCC Flood Plain Ordinance.pdf
	Fredonia_FP Ordinance FINAL.pdf
	1.0 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE, TITLE, AND GENERAL PROVISIONS
	1.1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION
	1.2 FINDING OF FACT
	1.3 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
	1.4 TITLE
	1.5 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	(1) AREAS TO BE REGULATED
	(2) OFFICIAL MAPS & REVISIONS
	(3) ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN ZONING DISTRICTS
	(4) LOCATING FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES
	(5) REMOVAL OF LANDS FROM FLOODPLAIN
	(6) COMPLIANCE
	(7) MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED
	(8) ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS
	(9) INTERPRETATION
	(10) WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY
	(11) SEVERABILITY
	(12) ANNEXED AREAS FOR CITIES AND VILLAGES


	2.0 GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS
	2.1 HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC ANALYSES
	2.2 WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS
	2.3 CHAPTER 30, 31, WIS. STATS., DEVELOPMENT
	2.4 PUBLIC OR PRIVATE CAMPGROUNDS

	3.0 FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW)
	3.1 APPLICABILITY
	3.2 PERMITTED USES
	3.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODWAY
	3.4 PROHIBITED USES

	4.0 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF)
	4.1 APPLICABILITY
	4.2 PERMITTED USES
	4.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODFRINGE

	5.0 OTHER FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS
	5.1 GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP)

	6.0 NONCONFORMING USES AND STRUCTURES
	6.1 GENERAL
	6.2 FLOODWAY DISTRICT
	6.3 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT
	6.4 NONCONFORMING BUILDING DESTROYED BY NON-FLOOD DISASTER

	7.0 ADMINISTRATION
	7.1 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
	7.2 ZONING AGENCY
	7.3 BOARD OF APPEALS
	7.4 TO REVIEW APPEALS OF PERMIT DENIALS
	7.5 FLOODPROOFING STANDARDS
	7.6 PUBLIC INFORMATION

	8.0 AMENDMENTS
	8.1 GENERAL

	9.0 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES
	10.0 DEFINITIONS



